
1

Planning Committee

Meeting: Tuesday, 3rd March 2020 at 6.00 pm in Civic Suite - North 
Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP

Membership: Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), D. Brown, J. Brown, Dee, 
Derbyshire, Finnegan, Hansdot, Hyman, Lugg, Toleman and Walford

Contact: Democratic and Electoral Services
01452 396126
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or non-
pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please 
see Agenda Notes.

3.  MINUTES (Pages 7 - 12)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on the 4th of February 2020.

4.  LATE MATERIAL 

Please note that any late material in respect of the applications detailed below will be 
published as a supplement on the Council’s website in the late afternoon of the day of the 
meeting

5.  MANOR GARDENS, BARNWOOD ROAD GLOUCESTER - 19/00672/FUL (Pages 
13 - 38)

Application for determination:- 

Demolition of existing housing (23 units) and redevelopment of site to provide 46 new build 
dwellings (16 no. 1 bedroom apartments, 24 no. 2 bedroom apartments, 4 no. 3 bedroom 
houses and 2 no. 3 bedroom bungalows), formation of new access to North Upton Lane and 
provision of parking, landscaping, external works and stores for bikes, refuse, plant etc.

The decision was previously defered to allow for a Site visit to take place, allowing for full 
consideration of the application. 

6.  WATERWELLS SPORTS CENTRE - 19/00402/FUL (Pages 39 - 54)

mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


2

Application for determination: -
Proposed floodlights to pitch one at Waterwells Sports Centre.

7.  LAND AT SPINNAKER ROAD - 19/01096/FUL (Pages 55 - 76)

Application for determination: -

Extensions to Class B2 Factory Building and Development of Adjacent Land to Covered 
Storage Area and Car parking to include raising the existing land level.

8.  KINGS QUARTER & KINGS SQUARE GLOUCESTER - 18/01454/FUL & 
19/01212/LBC (Pages 77 - 166)

Application for determination: -

Hybrid Planning Application for the redevelopment of Kings Square and land known as Kings 
Quarter.

9.  DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 167 - 178)

To consider a schedule of applications determined under delegated powers during the month 
of January 2020. 

10.  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

Tuesday, 7th April 2020. 

Jon McGinty
Managing Director

Date of Publication: Monday, 24 February 2020



3

NOTES

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member 
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows –

Interest Prescribed description

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months 
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a 
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil 
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest) 
and the Council
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or works are 

to be executed; and
(b)   which has not been fully discharged

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area.

For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or 
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your 
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a 
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
Council’s area for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) –

(a)   the landlord is the Council; and
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner 

or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has 
a beneficial interest

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where –

(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land 
in the Council’s area and

(b)   either –
i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 

or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or

ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with 



4

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture 
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme 
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest.

Access to Information
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date.

For enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk.

If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this information, or if 
you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information please call 01452 396396.

Recording of meetings
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those 
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy, 
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts. 

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, 
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed.  The use of flash photography and/or 
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in 
advance of the meeting.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council 
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions: 
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings;
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the 

assembly point in the car park and await further instructions;
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is 

safe to do so.

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


5

Copyright Notice for viewing documents via Public 
Access

Planning application information submitted to the Council is protected by the Copyright Acts 
(Section 47, 1988 Act). You may only use material which is downloaded and/or printed for 
consultation purposes, to compare current applications with previous schemes and to check 
whether developments have been completed in accordance with approved plans. Further 
copies must not be made without the prior permission of the copyright owner. If you link to 
Public Access you have acknowledged that you have read, understood and agree to the 
copyright and other limitations.

Gloucester City Council reserve the right to remove or not display certain planning 
application information for the confidentiality or other reasons.

HUMAN RIGHTS

In compiling the recommendations on the following reports we have given full consideration 
to all aspects of the Human Rights Act 1998 in relation to the applicant and/or the occupiers 
of any affected properties. In particular, regard has been had to Article 8 of the ECHR 
(Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence); Article 1 of the First 
Protocol (Right to the use and enjoyment of property) and the requirement to ensure that 
any interference with the right in this Article is both in accordance with the law and 
proportionate. A balance needs to be drawn between the right to develop land in 
accordance with planning permission and the rights under Article 8 and also Article 1 of the 
First Protocol of adjacent occupiers. On assessing the issues raised by the applications no 
particular matters, other than those referred to in the reports, warrant any different action to 
that recommended. 

EQUALITY ACT 2010

In considering this matter, full consideration has been given to the need to comply with the 
Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular to the obligation to 
not only take steps to stop discrimination, but also to the promotion of equality, including the 
promotion of equality of opportunity and the promotion of good relations.  An equality 
impact assessment has been carried out and it is considered that the Council has fully 
complied with the legal requirements.



This page is intentionally left blank



1

PLANNING COMMITTEE

MEETING : Tuesday, 4th February 2020

PRESENT : Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), D. Brown, J. Brown, Dee, 
Hansdot, Hyman, Lugg, Toleman and Walford

Officers in Attendance
Technical Planning Manager
Principal Planning Officer 
Solicitor, One Legal
Highways Development Manager, Gloucestershire County Council 
Democratic and Electoral Services Officer

APOLOGIES : Cllrs. Derbyshire and Finnegan

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Councillor Derbyshire and Councillor Finnegan.  

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The Chair declared a prejudicial interest in Agenda Item 5, Manor Gardens, 
Barnwood Road Gloucester - 19/00672/FUL and Agenda Item 6, 32 Hayward 
Close, Gloucester - 19/01127/FUL. He left the meeting and did not participate in 
any aspect of these applications.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 3rd December 2019 were confirmed and signed 
by the Chair as a correct record.

4. LATE MATERIAL 

Late material had been circulated in respect of item 5 (19/00672/FUL). 

5. MANOR GARDENS, BARNWOOD ROAD GLOUCESTER - 19/00672/FUL 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
04.02.20

2

The Principal Planning Officer presented the report detailing an application for the 
Demolition of existing housing (23 units) and redevelopment of site to provide 46 
new build dwellings (16 no. 1 bedroom apartments, 24 no. 2 bedroom apartments, 
4 no. 3 bedroom houses and 2 no. 3 bedroom bungalows), formation of new access 
to North Upton Lane and provision of parking, landscaping, external works and 
stores for bikes, refuse, plant etc.

Gordon Etherington, a local resident, addressed the Committee in opposition 
to the application. 

Mr Etherington stated that the application was ‘totally unsympathetic to the 
environmental and historical aspects of the site and surrounding areas’ and 
therefore, the application should be rejected or deferred. 

He stated that the area currently has low-level bungalows and the proposed builds 
would be of a high level and density with several 2 storey and apartment blocks. He 
added that the ‘design and construction’ would not blend in with the surroundings. 

Mr Etherington said that Gloucester City Council’s Principal Environmental Officer 
opposed the application as it conflicted with Paragraph 196 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and its granting would be contrary to the requirements of section 
16 and the Statutory Duty of section 66(1) of the 1990 act. 

He said that the design approach was also contrary to policies SD4 and SD10 of 
the JCS and section 12 of the NPFF as the size and scale of the builds would be 
unreflective of the surrounding properties. 

Mr Etherington noted that the site was mainly for those with a disability. He said that 
considering that this was the case, he did not understand why most of the car 
parking spaces were on the ‘extremities of the site’ and not where they were 
needed.

He concluded by stating that he ‘respectfully requested’ that the proposal in its 
current form was rejected or deferred as certain aspects were contrary to several 
national policy issues, concerning the environmental, social and historical nature of 
the site. 

Lawrence Miller, the Programmes Director for Barnwood Trust, addressed the 
Committee in support of the application.

Mr Miller stated that Barnwood Trust assisted people with physical and mental 
disabilities. He added that Barnwood Trust wanted to create the best ‘possible 
vision’.

He said that it was difficult for disabled people to find suitable housing. He stated 
that in Gloucester, there were currently 150 families with a disabled person waiting 
for a Wheelchair ramp to their home. He added that only 142 homes in Gloucester 
were properly wheelchair accessible. 

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE
04.02.20

3

Mr Miller stated that the accommodation proposed was ‘care ready’ and prioritised 
the needs of residents. He said that 50% of the schemes would have subsidised 
rent. He said that the proposal maximised the use of light and green space which 
would be conducive to good ‘health and wellbeing’. He added that the landscape 
increased permeability and would help to create a sense of belonging for the 
community. 

Mr Miller said that he had listened to local concerns and decreased density as a 
response to these concerns. He stated that the flats that would be demolished if the 
application was granted did not meet the requisite standard.

Mr Miller stated that 75% of the proposed new housing would cater to those with 
physical or mental disabilities. He added that 12 of the properties would be 
available for non-disabled residents. 

Mr Miller concluded by saying that the proposal would meet the needs of the most 
vulnerable and that it was an exemplar scheme. 

 
The Principal Planning Officer responded to Members’ questions as follows:

- In respect of the reference to 3-storey buildings, the landscape advisor was 
looking at the wider locality beyond the application site. 

- The boundary wall on Upton Lane would be at a similar height as the highest 
point of the ground floor of the proposed new buildings.

Members Debate:

Councillor Lugg expressed her surprise at the mix of tenants that would move into 
the property. She believed that the buildings were too tall and that it had too many 
walkways, especially considering the reduced mobility of many of the residents that 
would move into the site. She said that the area also had a ‘historical significance’, 
particularly from a psychiatric perspective, and that the important poet Ivor Gurney 
had been treated there.  She stated that the area to the east of Barnwood Road 
was impossible to turn down during rush hour and that the proposed build would 
contribute further to this problem.  

The Highways Development Manager responded that Barnwood Road has ‘some 
issues’ but that broadly speaking, the proposal would not add much to the traffic 
during rush hour. 

Councillor Joanne Brown stated that she knew the area well. She noted that there 
had been one submission in favour of the application and plenty against it. She 
expressed her disappointment that the site visit had not taken place prior to the 
meeting. 

Councillor David Brown said that he also knew the area well. He stated that he 
recognised that Barnwood Trust did excellent work. He said that he had seen the 

Page 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE
04.02.20

4

site plan develop, had gone to public consultations and listened to the concerns of 
local residents. He stated that there had been a long list of objections raised by 
residents, many that he agreed with, though they were not all necessarily planning 
issues. He said that he wanted to focus on the highways issues concerning the 
proposed application. Councillor David Brown said that there was an Aldi 
supermarket on the opposite side of the staggered crossroad, which was a 
problematic area for pedestrians, mainly because there was not a push-button for 
crossing there. 

Councillor David Brown stated that North Upton Lane was already busy without 
extra additions. He noted that the report had a condition to remove bollards to allow 
for full access for mobility scooters. Councillor David Brown said that the bollards 
were there initially to stop vehicles turning left onto Barnwood Road and the 
pavement. He stated that he was also ‘disappointed’ that there had not been a site 
visit arranged. He concluded by saying that he was ‘torn’ on the issue as he was 
aware of the excellent work Barnwood Trust do but was particularly concerned 
about potential problems regarding the crossing at North Upton Lane going into 
Barnwood Road. 

Councillor Lewis responded that the issues regarding crossing did not necessarily 
come under the planning application. He added that he agreed that there should be 
a site visit and suggested that the application could be deferred until there was a 
site visit. 

Councillor Dee stated that the amenities of the area could be improved. 

In response to Members’ concerns, the Highways Development Manager advised 
that there was an individual perception of what was safe and what was not safe. He 
said that there was not enough car, pedestrian or scooter trips based on the 
application that would warrant looking at the issues of signalling. He added that 
Gloucestershire Highways had ensured that the proposed application was DDA 
compliant. 

Councillor Toleman stated that he was surprised that the highways authority raised 
no objections.

Councillor Lugg stated that councillors needed to see the bungalows at the site to 
fully understand the effect that a two-storey development would have on the look of 
the area. 
  
Councillor Lugg proposed to defer the application until a site visit was arranged, 
Councillor Joanne Brown seconded her proposal.  

RESOLVED THAT: - Planning permission be deferred, so a site visit could be 
arranged to allow for full consideration of the application. 

6. 32 HAYWARD CLOSE, GLOUCESTER - 19/01127/FUL 

The Technical Planning Manager presented the report detailing an application for a 
Single and two storey rear extension.

Page 10



PLANNING COMMITTEE
04.02.20

5

Members Debate:  

Councillor Hyman stated that the report noted that neighbours were notified about 
the extension and that no one raised any concerns. He stated that this suggested 
that there were no objections to the application.

The Vice Chair moved, and Councillor Lugg seconded the Officer’s 
recommendation. 

RESOLVED that: -  Planning permission be granted. 

7. DELEGATED DECISIONS 

The schedule of applications determined under delegated powers during the month 
of December 2019 was noted.

RESOLVED that: - The schedule be noted.

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

Tuesday, 3rd of March 2020 at 6pm.

Time of commencement:  18:00pm 
Time of conclusion:  18:57pm

Chair

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL - DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning

Date: 3rd March 2020

Address/Location: Manor Gardens, Barnwood Road Gloucester 

Application No: 19/00672/FUL

Ward: Barnwood

Expiry Date:

Applicant: Barnwood Trust

Proposal:

Demolition of existing housing (23 units) and redevelopment of site to 
provide 46 no. new build dwellings (16 no. 1 bedroom apartments, 24 no. 
2 bedroom apartments, 4 no. 3 bedroom houses and 2 no. 3 bedroom 
bungalows), formation of new access to North Upton Lane and provision 
of parking, landscaping, external works and stores for bikes, refuse, plant 
etc.

 
Report by: Ron Moss

Appendices: Site location and site layout plan

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application site is located on the south side of Barnwood Road in a predominantly 
residential area, just over 3 kilometres to the east of the city centre. The site covers an area 
of approximately 2.5 square kilometres and has road frontages to Barnwood Road to the 
north and North Upton Lane to the east, as well as a road connection to Weir Bridge Close 
to the west.        

1.2 The site includes the Grade II Listed former Manor House and a community of sheltered 
bungalows, set within landscaped grounds with mature trees, some covered by a Tree 
Preservation Order.   Wotton Brook crosses the southern part of the site. The site also 
includes a former NHS facility, Wheatstone House, located towards the east of the site and 
accessed from North Upton Lane.         

 
1.3 The Manor House grounds specifically comprise a central garden surrounded by the above 

mentioned self-contained bungalows that were built in the 1980’s. The bungalows are 
bordered by landscape walkways, which also run along the fenced off Wotton brook. 
Beyond the brook are further bungalows as well as a public footpath linking Upton Lane 
with a modern estate of houses built in the grounds of the former Barnwood House to the 
west. A number of large specimen trees and sections of the ramped brick garden are now 
all that remain of this former private garden.
         

1.4        The Manor House itself is a red brick building with stone, moulded brick details, slate tiled 
roof and chimneys. It is accessed via a wide tarmacked drive way and now has a small 
fenced garden and patio to the rear. The single depth house has been extended during the 
19th and 20th centuries, but retains the northern frontage with its elegant and symmetrical 
c1740 origins. The House and the surrounding site are occupied by the Barnwood Trust 
who are a charitable organisation that provide care and accommodation for people with 
physical and mental health disabilities.   

1.5        The full application proposes the demolition of the existing 23 1980’s built self-contained Page 13

Agenda Item 5



bungalows and replace them with 46 dwellings. The new build elements would be as one, 
two and three storey forms. Overall there would be 16 x 1 bedroom apartments, 3 x 2 
bedroom wheelchair apartments, 21 x 2 bedroom apartments, 4 x 3 bedroom houses and 2 
x3 bedroom bungalows.  The two storey housing would be positioned nearest to the Manor 
House with the three storey apartment accommodation located slightly further away. There 
is an application to create a community activity hub with 2 two bedroom apartments in the 
Manor House itself, which is subject to a separate planning application.   

1.6       The main entrance to the site would remain from Barnwood Road and this would provide 
access to an entrance forecourt with parking, servicing, waiting and drop off areas. A 
secondary entrance on to North Upton Lane would serve the apartments in the southern 
part of the site, while the existing entrance on this road would be downgraded from 
vehicular to just pedestrian. The two proposed bungalows south of the brook would gain 
access from Newstead Road. Car parking provision is shown in the following locations: 35 
parking spaces plus a mini bus drop off space along the Barnwood Road frontage; 22 
parking spaces accessed from North Upton Lane; 4 parking spaces for the two bungalows 
accessed from Newstead Road; 11 parking spaces accessed from Weir Bridge Road after 
demolition of the garage block. This would give a total of 72 car parking spaces. 40 cycle 
parking spaces are shown and the application has been accompanied by a travel plan.            

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application 
Number

Proposal Decision Decision 
Date   

19/00834/LBC Removal of rear single storey extension 
and front lift shaft, internal and external 
alterations and extension to create a 
community activities hub (including 
community kitchen, changing and w.c. 
facilities, games room, IT / library, office 
and meeting room) and creation of 2 two 
bedroom apartments.

Pending 
Consideration

17/00346/COU Change of use from dwelling house to 
house for multiple occupation for 9 no. 
students

GSC 23.06.2017 

44/01721/HIST 13300 (P/1191/73):-  Change of use from 
residential to nursing home 

Z45WDR  

15/00617/NMA Non material amendment to dormer 
window

NPW 18.05.2015 

15/00628/FUL Enlargement of dormer window in north 
west elevation.

G3Y 11.08.2015 

15/01143/FUL Enlargement to dormer window G3Y 01.10.2015 
17/01153/NMA Enlargement to dormer window ROS96 24.11.2017 
17/01330/FUL Extension of approved dormer to existing 

adjacent dormer
REFUSE 23.01.2018 

98/00526/COU Change of use from C2 Nursing Home to 
C3 Residential Home.

PDV 26.10.1998 

08/01587/COU Change of use from C3 residential dwelling 
to C2 residential care home and creation of 
new vehicular access.

G3Y 02.02.2009 

12/00440/FUL Proposed Residential Development 
comprising of 3 detached dwellings, 

G3Y 03.08.2012 
Page 14



associated car parking, garaging and 
landscaping. (Alternative proposal to 
scheme previously allowed at appeal).

12/00582/FUL Two storey rear extension, plus alterations 
to the side elevation and erection of front 
porch.

G3Y 17.08.2012 

13/00105/NMA Non material amendments to planning 
permission 12/00582/FUL to make 
alterations and additions to the approved 
fenestration

NOS96 22.02.2013 

11/00964/LBC Internal and external alterations to Grade 2 
listed building.

WDN 12.03.2014 

12/00625/LBC Installation of insulation on the inside of 
external walls in rooms on the south-west 
and north-west corners of the building

G3L 10.01.2013 

17/00462/LBC Construct internal insulation to the inside of 
the external walls of the ground floor hall

RET 19.06.2017 

17/00584/LBC Construct internal insulation to the inside of 
the external walls and insertion of 
rooflights.

REFLBC 25.10.2017 

17/01155/LBC To install timber framing ready to accept an 
approved insulation material.  This will 
allow a floor covering to be laid

RET 08.02.2018 

3.0 RELEVANT POLICY

3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this 
application:

3.2 National guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance

3.3 Development Plan
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted 11 
December 2017) 

SP1 - The need for new development 
SP2 – Distribution of new development 
SD3 – Sustainable design and construction
SD4 – Design requirements
SD6 – Landscape
SD8 – Historic Environment
SD9 – Biodiversity and geodiversity
SD10 – Residential development
SD11 – Housing mix and standards
SD12 – Affordable housing 
SD14 – Health and environmental quality
INF1 –Transport network
INF2 – Flood risk management
INF3 – Green Infrastructure
INF4 – Social and community Infrastructure
INF6–Infrastructure delivery
INF7 – Developer contributions

3.4 City of Gloucester Local Plan (Adopted 14 September 1983)
Page 15



The statutory Development Plan for Gloucester includes the partially saved 1983 City of 
Gloucester Local Plan. Paragraph 213 of the NPPF states that ‘…due weight should be 
given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with this 
framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater 
the weight that may be given.’ Therefore it is considered that the 1983 Local Plan is out-of-
date and superseded by later planning policy including the NPPF and the Joint Core 
Strategy.

3.5 Emerging Development Plan
Gloucester City Plan
The Gloucester City Plan (“City Plan”) will deliver the JCS at the local level and provide 
policies addressing local issues and opportunities in the City. The pre submission version 
of the Gloucester Local Plan (City Plan) was approved for publication and submission at 
the Council meeting held on 26 February 2019. On the basis of the stage of preparation 
that the plan has reached, and the consistency of its policies with the NPPF, the emerging 
policies of the plan can be afforded limited - moderate weight in accordance with 
paragraph 48 of the NPPF, subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections 
to each individual policy (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the 
weight that may be given).  

A1 – Effective and efficient use of land and buildings 
A2 – Affordable Housing 
A5 -  Specialist Housing 
A6 – Accessible and adaptable homes
C1 – Active design and accessibility
D1 - Historic Environment 
E2 – Biodiversity and geodiversity 
E5 – Green Infrastructure; Building with nature 
E6 – Flooding, sustainable drainage, and waste water 
E8 – Development affecting Cotswold Beechwoods Special Conservation Area 
F1 – Materials and Finishes 
F2 – Landscape and Planting 
F6 – Nationally described space standards 
G1 – Sustainable transport 
G2 – Charging infrastructure for electric vehicles                      .

3.6 Other Planning Policy Documents
Gloucester Local Plan, Second Stage Deposit 2002 
Regard is also had to the 2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan. This has been subjected 
to two comprehensive periods of public and stakeholder consultation and adopted by the 
Council for development control purposes. There are no relevant policies for this application.  

4.0 CONSULTATIONS

4.1 Highway Authority
The Highway Authority raise no objection to the proposal , providing that there are 
conditions/ a legal agreement on any planning permission restricting the use to the 
Barnwood Trust Community only ( private open market housing here with indicated 
provision considered likely to cause a deficit in onsite parking), a schedule of improvements 
to the surrounding footway network, the proposed vehicular access to North Upton Lane not 
to be brought in to use until the existing access here has been permanently closed for 
vehicles and for further Travel Plan details to be provided.           

4.2 Conservation Officer
The Manor House is a Grade II listed heritage asset and is identified as being of special or 

Page 16



historical interest. As such the Local Planning Authority is statutorily required to have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest that it possesses.  The site proposed for development was 
originally the gardens of the Manor House. The principle of the demolition of the existing 
bungalows is not unacceptable. The current proposal however by virtue of the scale and 
density of the proposed development would harm aspects of the listed buildings garden 
setting which contribute positively to its significance, thereby neither preserving its special 
architectural or historic interest, nor sustaining its significance as a designated heritage 
asset. The harm would be less than substantial, albeit considerable and this harm should 
be taken in to account when reviewing the scheme and any public benefits.      

4.3 Landscape Adviser
At present the site has a very pleasant, semi -private suburban feel with relatively low 
density of bungalows and other buildings set within attractive grounds that are well 
vegetated with mature trees and shrubs. The proposals are likely to lead to a significant 
change in character of the application site, especially within its eastern half. The height of 
the tallest of the proposed flats (block 4) would however be similar to that of the existing 
Manor House and thus the proposed height would not be incongruous. The character of 
the local area beyond the site is also quite varied and includes 3 storey buildings. Views in 
to the site are very limited and the proposed blocks of flats would likely be fairly well 
screened from public roads and footways beyond the site. The overall effect on local 
character is thus likely to be limited though not negligible.    

4.4 Tree Officer 
The Development Site Method Statement (DSMS) with regard to trees has now been 
updated, and the DSMS and the tree protection plan are considered acceptable. There is 
no objection to the proposal subject to these matters forming conditions on any approval.   

4.5 Contaminated Land Adviser
No significant contamination concerns have been identified. 

4.6 Drainage Adviser
The site is at very low risk of surface water flooding. The proposed Drainage strategy is to 
discharge surface water in to the Wotton Brook. This is considered an acceptable option 
given that the geology of the site is Blue Lias Clay which makes infiltration difficult. No 
objection is raised to the development subject to conditions for details of a Sustainable 
Drainage System and then for details of its management and maintenance.      

4.7 City Centre Improvement Officer (Environmental Protection)
No objection to the proposed development subject to conditions on hours of construction, a 
dust management plan and electric vehicle charging points.   

4.8 Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer
Barnwood Trust have stated that the development is not viable as either an open market 
or Affordable Development. They state that they are committed to delivering a scheme for 
households who have a disabled member and are willing to subsidise the development to 
meet their charitable objectives. They have offered to allocate 50% of the homes to people 
with local connection to Gloucester. Officers would recommend that nomination 
arrangements should be in-line with Homeseeker policy on local connection. All of the 
above would be via a voluntary agreement. 

The proposal delivers a higher proportion of Category 2 dwellings than required by the 
City Plan. These homes are the equivalent to the former Life Time Homes Standard, and 
reflect best practice in delivering adaptable housing to meet the need of a diverse and 
aging society. 

Page 17



Barnwood Trust’s desire to develop an intergenerational and mixed community is to be 
welcomed. The absence of any legal agreement means that this aim has not been 
formalised.

4.9 Urban Design Adviser
No objection. The architectural appearance of the buildings is modern and of high quality. 
The layout respects the open character of the site and the area of the site covered by 
buildings remains similar to as existing, albeit with additional units gained from higher 
buildings.  

4.10 Ecology Advisor
No objection to the proposal subject to a condition on any planning permission requiring 
that the recommendations outlined in Chapter 4 of the Ecology report in relation to bat 
foraging corridors and lighting, bat roost advice, Wotton Brook protection, nesting birds, 
hedgehog mitigation and invasive weeds be implemented.

4.11    The applicants report (appropriate assessment) to inform Habitat Regulations Assessment 
Stage 1 and Stage 2 has also been reviewed. This report assesses the pathways to likely 
significant effects (HRA Stage 1) of the development proposals upon relevant designated 
Natura 2000 sites and subsequently assesses whether these would lead to an adverse 
effect upon the integrity of such designated Natura sites (HRA Stage 2). The Natura 2000 
sites identified by Natural England with the potential to be affected by visitor pressure from 
the proposed new development are Cotswold Beechwoods SAC (3.9km from development) 
and the Severn Estuary SPA and Ramsar site (circa 15km from development). Due to the 
distance of these Natura 2000 sites from the proposed development, no other likely 
significant effects are considered relevant.  

4.12       The conclusion of the appropriate assessment was that the impacts of increased visitor 
levels would be so small that there would be no significant effect on the Natura 2000 sites. 
It is recommended that as an additional measure homeowner packs are distributed to each 
residential unit to make the residents aware of the numerous areas of public space within 
Gloucester City and best practice guidelines to avoid damaging habitats//disturbing wildlife. 
In conclusion subject to these measures forming conditions on any approval, the proposed 
development would not affect the integrity of Cotswolds Beechwood SAC and the Severn 
Estuary SPA and Ramsar.    
     

4.13      Archaeology 
The desk based assessment submitted by the applicant has been reviewed. It concludes 
that the site has the potential to contain heritage assets of archaeological interest of 
prehistoric or Roman date (potentially Palaeolithic deposits and inhumations of Roman 
date.). Access constraints have made evaluation slightly difficult, however there is no 
objection to the proposal subject to conditions on any approval for an archaeological 
evaluation, details of foundations and potential necessary mitigation.  
      

4.14      Severn Trent Water 
No objection subject to a condition for disposal of foul and surface water.

4.15     Natural England 
No objection, subject to the mitigation measures set out in the appropriate assessment 
being secured.  

4.16 Civic Trust 
The panel has no objection to the style of the architecture, but would prefer to see buildings 
which are no more than 1.5 storeys in height. The proposal constitutes overdevelopment.  

Page 18



5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 Neighbouring properties were notified and press and site notices were published.

5.2 11 letters of objection received, raising the following issues 

a) The proposal would fail to respond positively to the character of the area, which is of 2 
storey
detached and semi-detached properties set back from the highway edge.

b) The proposal would not be of appropriate design, scale and form, and would therefore 
be contrary to policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy.

c) The failure to respond positively to the character of the area would ensure that the 
proposal would be contrary to Section 12 and paragraph 127 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

d) Block 4 is shown as a large 3 storey building that would dominate the street scene of 
North Upton Lane.

e) The indicated raised walkways are representative of 1960’s/1970’s inner city, high rise 
flats.

f) The height and scale of the proposals would be overbearing on the existing dwellings in 
Manor Gardens and Weir Bridge Close.  

g) The proposal due to its height and scale would cause harm to the character and setting 
of the listed Manor building, thereby making it contrary to policies SD8 and SD10 of the 
JCS.   

h) The two proposed bungalows would fall within the untouched part of the historic 
gardens. 

i) The proposal by reason of its height and location would result in an unacceptable loss 
of light to the residents of 17 and 18 Manor Gardens. 

j) Loss of light to future occupants due to existing trees.

k) Potential for overlooking between occupiers of the proposed blocks, particularly 
between Block 4 and Block 1 and from Blocks 1 and 2 to the proposed houses.  

l) The proposed balconies would lead to the potential for the overlooking of neighbouring 
properties in North Upton Lane. 

m) For the above reasons the proposal would be contrary to policy SD14 of the JCS. 

n) The submitted ecology appraisal establishes that a number of the trees on Wotton Brook 
support roosting bats, while the brook provides suitable foraging / commuting habitat for 
bats. Concern is raised that light pollution from the proposal could have an unacceptable 
impact on bat foraging and commuting routes. The proposal therefore can not satisfy 
policy SD9 of the JCS. 

Page 19



o) A number of mature trees appear likely to be removed as part of this proposal and there 
is potential to cause damage to other trees. Further information should be provided.

p) The application proposes the relocation of the existing vehicular access closer to the 
road access with Lilliesfield Avenue, which could result in conflict between pedestrian 
and vehicle users in this area. 

q)  The proposed removal of the existing 4 bollards on North Upton Lane raises concerns 
for pedestrian safety as they were put in to stop vehicles from mounting the kerb to turn 
left on to Barnwood Road, when traffic backs up along North Upton Lane.

r) Tracking diagrams need to be provided for the refuse vehicle before a decision is made 
on the application.

s) Number of car parking spaces would appear insufficient for the number of new dwellings, 
which could lead to parking in neighbouring streets to the detriment of the amenity of 
occupiers living on the street. Furthermore no visitor parking appears to be provided for 
the tradesmen, carers and emergency vehicles. 

t) The proposed car parking is shown scattered around the edges of the site and not where 
it would be most needed, close to the accommodation as the apartments would be 
geared to those with ability issues. Also why are there so many cycle racks shown.  

u) Concern as towards future ownership and occupation of the units and the impact that 
might have on vehicle numbers. The homes appear to currently be on subsidised 
assisted housing rental agreements with the tenants and what would prevent sell off for 
residential development opportunities. If housing were sold, then there would be no 
landlord to resolve parking disputes. 

v) It is stated that the pedestrian access on North Upton Lane is to increase foot traffic to 
Barnwood Road, however the only crossing point is a zebra crossing further down 
Barnwood Road. This could make a big difference to people with limited mobility.       

w) Loss of sunlight to properties in North Upton Lane, in particular no.1.  

x) There is potential for the brook to flood.

y) Concern in relation to the environmental harm from the demolition and construction 
phase. The whole redevelopment would be likely to cause significant disruption to the 
neighbouring occupiers and surrounding road ways.  

z) Excessive number of two bedroomed flats in the proposal in relation to one bedroomed 
flats , which is contrary to local need.

aa) People with ability needs should surely be better located in ground floor development 
rather than on first or second floors. 

bb) Too much development is shown concentrated in a small area, and a divide both 
physical and community wise, will be created in relation to the existing lower scale 
bungalows. 

cc)  The proposed footbridge across the brook would create a security problem as people 
would use it to short cut to North Upton and Barnwood Lane. The path from Weir Bridge 
Close could equally be a security problem, potentially used by bikes and moped riders.    

Page 20



dd) The peaceful, tranquil and therapeutic ambiance that currently exists on the site would 
be lost.   

5.3 1 letter of support received, stating the following:-
a) There is a need for good quality accessible housing;
b) The scheme is to be applauded for being a well designed modern, attractive and 

accessible scheme with good connectivity;
c) The proposal would make effective use of the site and retains the character and 

setting of the dwelling house.

5.4        The following 2 objections have been received in relation to the revisions to increase the 
car parking:-  

a)  There is still insufficient car parking provision for the carers, family and other 
visitors to the site. 

b) Some concerns expressed that the new parking spaces impede access from the 
parking area to footpaths, would reduce turning abilities and have involved the loss 
of a couple of trees.

c) The number of two bedroomed units has increased       

5.5 The full content of all correspondence on this application can be viewed on: 
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-
access.aspx 

6.0 OFFICER OPINION

6.1 Legislative background
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Local 
Planning Authority to determine planning applications in accordance with the Development 
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

6.2 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) states that in 
dealing with a planning application, the Local Planning Authority should have regard to the 
following:
a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application;
b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application; and
c) any other material considerations.

6.3 The development plan consists of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 
Strategy (JCS) and the partially saved 1983 City of Gloucester Local Plan. However, as 
outlined earlier, the 1983 Local Plan is considered to be out-of-date.

6.4 It is considered that the main issues with regards to this application are as follows:
 Principle
 Design, layout and landscaping
 Impact on the Listed Building
 Archaeology  
 Affordable Housing
 Traffic and transport
 Residential amenity 
 Drainage and flood risk
 Ecology 
 Economic considerations

Principle Page 21

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx


6.5 Policy SD10 of the JCS allows for infilling within the existing built up areas of the City 
Gloucester. In terms of the broad principles of development, the site is within the built up 
area of the City, is in a sustainable location for residential use and would contribute to 
housing supply. 

6.6 As the site is located within the built up area of the city, the principle of development is 
considered to be acceptable in accordance with JCS Policy SD10, subject to assessment 
against other planning considerations in the remaining sections of this report.

Design, Layout and Landscaping
6.7 The NPPF states that new residential developments should be of high quality design, create 

attractive places to live, and respond to local character integrating into the local 
environment. Policy SD4 sets out requirements for high quality design, while Policy SD10 
requires housing of an appropriate density, compatible with good design, the protection of 
heritage assets, local character and compatible with the road network.

6.8 The applicant Barnwood Trust provides accommodation for people with disabilities and 
mental health challenges. It has a strategy of seeking to provide more inclusive 
accommodation and is seeking to move away from the more traditional institutionalised 
approach. The concept here is    to construct a scheme that builds in belonging to obtain a 
more inclusive community with an element of the development being open to able persons 
to help obtain a mixed and balanced community.   

6.9 The proposed new buildings consist of one, two and three storey forms, with the lower two 
storey houses placed in close proximity to the Manor House and the highest three storey 
element positioned further away by the brook. One of the key design concepts is to maintain 
as much of the attractive lawned and treed gardens as possible as it is recognized that this 
is very much part of the character of the area. The proposed development is therefore 
predominantly shown to the east of the site to allow the central grassed and treed area to 
remain intact and remain a focal feature. Additional development is then shown to the south, 
with the existing bungalows bordering the main garden area to the west and the listed 
Manor House building bordering to the north.                                  

6.10      The majority of the units would be provided in the apartment blocks. To break up the 
massing of the apartment blocks, they have been designed to appear as separate houses 
in perpendicular orientation to one another and stepping down the site with the natural drop 
of the landscape. This helps create a variety of built forms with differing storey heights. In 
the middle of the apartment blocks is then shown a parking court, while the ground floor 
apartments all would have space for a buggy to be parked outside their door. Open deck 
walkways would link the apartments, allowing people to interact with their neighbours in line 
with the inclusivity concept, while double aspect windows would provide good viewing and 
surveillance. This would be further enhanced by full height windows for the lounges and 
bedrooms.  The provision of external space in the form of balconies and terraces would 
then allow even the non ground level dwellings to have personal amenity space. 
             

6.11 The apartments are all shown with generous space standards of 58 – 78 square metres, 
which would be well above national minimum space standards. Within each of the individual 
apartments, consideration has been given to the Wheel Chair Housing Guide and Lifetime 
Homes Standards with layouts set for wheel chair users and apartments ‘care ready’ to 
allow for future adaptions to suit changing needs. The apartments would all exceed Part M 
Category 2 of Building Regulations in accordance with emerging policy C1.

6.12        The four proposed houses would be given private garden space as would the two 
bungalows. The houses would look out over the shared play area and are shown located 
between the apartments and the listed Manor House. The two bungalows would then be 

Page 22



located to the south of the site at the end of Newstead Road. This part of Newstead Road 
is characterized by bungalows and the two bungalows would accord with the street scene. 
They would also all be fitted out as fully wheelchair accessible to Category M Part 3.  

6.13      In terms of appearance the apartment blocks and houses have sought to mimic design 
features from the listed Manor House, including steep pitched roofs with natural slate or 
similar, first floor string courses, gable ends, chimneys and dormers. Further detailing would 
include recessed brick work, textured brick patterning and soldier courses, with the brick 
choice proposed as light and red multi bricks to again ensure the development would relate 
to the listed building. At the same time the proposal has also introduced some more modern 
features including providing the dormers on the apartments in powder coated aluminum 
and metal work, large feature windows to habitable rooms, glazed bricks located at front 
entrances to aid wayfinding and the open deck walkways. It is considered that this design 
approach of combining traditional features of the listed Manor House with a modern 
approach of creating a light, spacious and airy development is acceptable in the context of 
Policy SD4 of the JCS.   
             

6.14      As stated previously the landscape setting has played a key part in the design concept of 
this proposal, with the recognition of the benefits that the outdoor space, planting and 
greenery would bring to the inhabitants of the development. The grass land and trees within 
the centre of the site would form a large focal garden feature identified as ‘the lawn’ on the 
Landscape Masterplan with a residents terrace to the north and a wild flower meadow to 
the south. Further smaller garden areas are shown located off the main lawn in the form of 
the Quiet Garden, Water garden,       
Apple orchard and Cherry Walk. A Natural Play area and a herb and kitchen terrace would 
further compliment the landscape areas. These differing garden areas all interlink with each 
other, via the central lawn feature. Many of the trees on the site would be retained, while a 
condition on any approval would seek to ensure ‘large’ trees would constitute part of the 
detailed landscape plan.     

6.15 

               

The development would all be interlinked via a network of pathways through the site, 
including a new bridge across Wotton Brook. This would ensure good access/egress and 
permeability throughout and into/out of the site from Barnwood Road, North Upton Lane 
and Weir Bridge Road.
 

6.16 In light of the above it is considered that the design is of high quality in accordance with the 
requirements of the NPPF and Policy SD4 of the JCS.

Impact on Listed Building 
6.17      Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that 

with development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local authority ‘shall have 
special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest it possesses. The property known as ‘The Manor 
House’ is a grade 11 designated heritage asset and is identified as being of special 
architectural and historic interest.  

6.18 Policy SD8 of the JCS recognises the part that the City’s built, natural and cultural heritage 
play in respect of local identity, quality of life and the economy. Heritage assets will be 
conserved and enhanced as appropriate to their significance. This is reflected in policy D1 
of the emerging City Plan.

6.19 The Council’s Conservation Officer (CO) has no objections to the demolition of the 
Wheatstone building and garages as these are not of historic or architectural value. There 
are also no objections to the demolition of the bungalows. 

6.20 Nevertheless, the CO considers the development on the scale as proposed would be 
Page 23



inappropriate for the historic context and harmful to the setting of the grade II Manor 
House, with the opinion that the scheme is of high density and massing in the context of 
the two storey Grade II designated asset and within its setting of the historic gardens. The 
CO has further concerns that the new proposed second entrance would result in greater 
areas of car parking and hardstanding within the garden area further exacerbating the 
harm. In conclusion the CO states that the proposal would cause harm, albeit less than 
substantial harm to this heritage asset. In the range of less than substantial harm the CO 
considers the proposal to be at the higher end, i.e considerable.       

6.21 Paragraph 196 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that ‘Where a 
development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a 
designated asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal 
including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.’ The less than substantial 
harm to the setting of the Grade 11 Listed Manor House can be balanced against the 
importance of providing a high quality inclusive development for persons with mental and 
physical needs. It is recognised that the proposal would bring a certain mass of 
development into the original grounds of the Manor House, however care has been taken 
to ensure the greater height and bulk of the scheme, i.e. the apartments are located at a 
distance from the Manor House itself. Key features of the Manor House are copied in to 
the development (see paragraph 6.13), the trees and lawned areas that form the 
character of the previous garden would be retained as much as possible and an 
innovatively designed development utilising linked walkways, big windows and upper level 
open areas. The design quality would be significantly higher than the existing buildings 
which are proposed to be demolished. Additionally, the proposal would provide large units 
both set up with adaptions and future proofed for further adaption. This proposal would be 
an enlightened approach to move away from a more traditional institutionalised scheme 
towards an inclusive mixed and balanced community development, seeking to provide 
buildings and an outdoor environment for the maximum benefit of the occupiers. The 
development would also add a further 23 much needed residential units towards the 
Council’s housing supply whilst the economic benefits arising both during and post 
construction weigh in favour of the development. 

6.22 In light of the above, whilst considerable importance and weight is given to the fact that 
the proposal would result in less than substantial harm to the Grade II listed Manor 
House, on balance, it is considered that the public benefits arising from the proposals 
would outweigh that less than substantial harm. A condition would be attached to any 
planning permission requiring that no more than 12 of the 46 new units within the 
residential development shall be occupied by households which do not include individuals 
with a disability. This would ensure that the scheme would be restricted so as to cater 
predominantly for people with ability needs.  This being important in the balance of public 
benefit outweighing the substantial harm to the heritage asset. 

Archaeology
6.23 The site has the potential to contain heritage assets of archaeological interest of prehistoric 

or Roman date (potentially Palaeolithic deposits and inhumations of Roman date.). The 
Council’s archaeologist states that there is no objection to the proposal subject to conditions 
on any approval for an archaeological evaluation, details of foundations and potential 
necessary mitigation.  

Affordable Housing
6.24 The NPPF states that where local authorities have identified the need for affordable 

housing, polices should be set for meeting this need on site, unless off site provision or a 
financial contribution can be robustly justified. Policy SD12 of the JCS provides that a 
minimum of 20% affordable housing will be sought on sites of 11 or more dwellings in the 
Gloucester City administrative area. The supporting text at paragraph 4.13.6 explains that 

Page 24



the policy reflects the viability of differing value areas that exist across the JCS, hence the 
requirement for a 40% contribution within Cheltenham and Tewkesbury but only a 20% 
contribution within Gloucester. However, bullet 10 of the Policy provides that the viability of 
the site may enable additional levels of affordable housing to be provided. The emerging 
City Plan refers to a 25% affordable housing level. The Plan has recently been endorsed 
by the Council for consultation and submission. The evidence base supporting the City Plan 
supports the requirement for 25% and is more up to date than the JCS evidence base.

6.25 However, bullet point 9 of the Policy states that ‘If a development cannot deliver the full 
affordable housing requirement, a viability assessment conforming to an agreed 
methodology, in accordance with Policy INF7 will be required...’

6.26 In this case the applicant has submitted a viability appraisal to seek to demonstrate that 
there is insufficient viability in the scheme to provide affordable housing. This appraisal has 
then been assessed by an independent party appointed by the Local Planning Authority to 
ensure proper scrutiny.

6.27 The independent assessor has viewed the proposal by initially looking at a scenario where 
35 of the 46 units would be a form of affordable housing and then where all the units were 
provided at market housing value.  Their conclusion was that in the first scenario there 
would be a negative Residential Land Value of - £2, 785,454, while in the second, the 
proposal came out with a negative Residential Land Value of - £856,950. This approach 
shows that there is insufficient viability in the development for affordable housing provision. 
 

6.28 Policy SD12 does then suggest that where there is an issue with regard to viability, then 
developers should consider securing public subsidy to assist the delivery of affordable 
housing. The applicant has responded to this point by stating they are not a Registered 
Provider nor an Investment Partner of Homes England and are therefore not entitled to any 
Affordable Housing Grant from Homes England. They confirm that they will be putting their 
own funding into the scheme to enable it to be brought forward.    

6.29 In conclusion it is recognised that the development would be unable to provide affordable 
housing nor any other form of s106 contributions. The Barnwood Trust have undertaken 
to voluntarily accept nominations from Gloucester City Council for vacancies arising from 
25% of the scheme which is allocated to those with a Gloucester connection, and who 
meet eligibility criteria, however this would not be secured through the planning system.

Traffic and Transport 
6.30 Policy INF1 ‘Transport Network’ states that developers should provide safe and accessible 

connections to the transport network to enable travel choice for residents and commuters.  
Paragraph 109 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused 
on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the 
residual cumulative impact on the road network would be severe.

6.31 In terms of sustainable transport measures the site can be seen to have strong inter 
connectivity with the surrounding area, with pedestrian routes linking to Barnwood Road, 
North Upton Lane, and Weir Bridge Road. This would allow occupants access to local 
facilities such as Hucclecote Road/Brook field Road stores at just over 500m away and 
Hucclecote surgery/Lloyds pharmacy at 550m. There are also frequent buses along 
Barnwood Road, while Insley Garden bus stops are approximately 200m away to enable 
trips to/from the city centre. A travel plan has also been submitted with the application and 
compliance with the plan would form a condition on any approval.  
 

6.32 The applicant’s Transport assessment has recognised however that some junctions lack 
tactile paving provision and some are misaligned. A situation that would be very unhelpful 

Page 25



for the inhabitants of the proposal. At the junction of North Upton Lane with Barnwood Road 
there is a requirement for tactile paving to aid visually impaired pedestrians, while at the 
Chertson Court junction with Barnwood Road there is a requirement for a pedestrian 
dropped kerb crossing, including dropped kerbs and tactile paving to assist in pedestrian 
movements to and from the Church Lane bus stops and Post Office. There is also the issue 
of the bollards on the pavement along North Upton Lane, which could impede pedestrians 
with mobility or visual impairments. Any approval of planning permission would be subject 
to conditions to address these matters.

6.33 Within the site itself significant provision would be made for cycle parking with the provision of 
40 spaces, while revised plans have now shown the car parking provision increased by 14, to 
72 spaces overall. Both the Highway Authority and local residents had expressed concern 
with the original level of parking provision and the potential for the proposed development to 
be occupied by non-disabled people who would be likely to own and seek to park more 
vehicles. Local residents felt that this would lead to overspill parking into the neighbouring 
streets. The Highway Authority (HA) have undertaken a high level assessment of levels of car 
ownership within the local area. They have also undertaken a bespoke parking assessment 
based on the proposals. The assessment has demonstrated that the number and size of 
dwellings proposed would not result in car ownership that would be typically associated with 
residential development. As such they have determined that the proposed levels of car 
parking, for the proposals subject of this application and the remaining existing uses on the 
site, are acceptable subject to a condition requiring a car park management plan to be 
secured and operated, and the other highways conditions set out in the report and below.

6.34 Overall therefore, the Highway Authority have concluded that they are satisfied with the 
access arrangements, subject to conditions for the submission of details for improvements  
of the surrounding road network, the closure of the North Upton Lane access to vehicular 
traffic before occupation, further details of the travel plan, layout of cycle and car parking 
before occupation. As set out above discussions are still ongoing in respect of the adequacy 
of parking provision. In relation to the resident’s concerns over the impact of construction 
traffic, it should be noted that any approval would be subject to a condition for a construction 
management plan that would include routing of vehicles and parking. In conclusion the 
proposal can be seen to accord with Policy INF1 of the JCS.                   

Residential amenity
6.35 Paragraph 17 of the NPPF provides that planning should always seek to secure high quality 

design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and 
buildings. This is reflected in Policy SD14 of the JCS which requires that new development 
must cause no harm to local amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants.

6.36 Residents in North Upton Lane have raised concerns with the respect to the proximity of 
the apartment blocks to their properties. It should be noted however that under the nearest 
relationships Block 1 of the apartments would be over 26 metres from the front elevation of 
no.7 North Upton Lane, while Block 4 would be over 30 metres from the front elevation of 
no.11 North Upton Lane. At these distances there would be no material overlooking of the 
dwelling houses. Whilst the front gardens of the North Upton Lane would not normally be 
considered private amenity space, there would still be around 20 metres from the nearest 
elevations of the proposed apartments to the front edges of the North Upton Lane 
properties, which would also form a satisfactory distance relationship. The occupier of no.1 
North Upton Lane has raised concern in relation to potential loss of light, however the 
nearest property in the proposed development would be one of the smaller 2 storey 
dwellings, which would be over 30 metres away. 
 

6.37 Within the development itself there is a close relationship between the western elevation 
of Block 3 and the existing neighbouring bungalows numbered 17 and 18, which have 

Page 26



facing flank elevation windows. There would still be circa 20 metres between these 
buildings and the windows to the bungalows are secondary bedroom windows, so this 
relationship is considered acceptable in relation to overlooking. There would also be the 
potential for overlooking of the proposed apartments at first floor level via the side 
element to the first floor balconies on the eastern end of block 1, western end of block 3 
and western end of block 5. It is therefore recommended that there is a condition on any 
approval for these balconies to be designed with a privacy screen so as to avoid any 
undue overlooking.    
    

6.38 In terms of amenity for the potential residents, the bungalows and houses are shown with 
rear gardens, while the occupiers of the apartments would have balconies and small 
external amenity areas. This provides an element of private amenity, while all occupiers 
would have access to the variety of gardens around the site. Overall a good standard of 
amenity would be provided to accord with policy SD14.           

Drainage and flood risk
6.39 The NPPF requires that development is directed to the areas at lowest risk of flooding, that 

new development should take the opportunities to reduce the causes or impacts of flooding, 
should not increase flood risk elsewhere and take account of climate change. Policy INF2 
of the JCS reflects the NPPF, applying a risk based sequential approach, requiring new 
development to contribute to a reduction in flood risk and requiring the use of sustainable 
drainage systems. 

6.40 The majority of the site is in Flood Zone 1 and is at low risk of surface water flooding. There 
is a very small strip of land bordering the banks of Wotton Brook that falls within Flood 
zones 2/3, however all built forms would be out of this area. The Lead Local Flood Authority 
state that the proposed Drainage Strategy to discharge surface water in to the Wotton Brook 
would be acceptable. No objection is raised to the development subject to conditions for 
details of a Sustainable Drainage System and then for details of its management and 
maintenance.      

Ecology
6.41 Policy SD9 of the JCS provides that the biodiversity and geological resource of the JCS will 

be protected and enhanced

6.42 The Natura 2000 sites identified by Natural England with the potential to be affected by 
visitor pressure from the proposed new development are Cotswold Beechwoods SAC 
(3.9km from development) and the Severn Estuary SPA and Ramsar site (circa 15km from 
development A Habitat Regulations Assessment was undertaken that concluded no 
significant impacts on these sites are predicted as a result of the proposed development, 
subject to the mitigation measure of providing a home pack for all new residents with details 
of other places to visit and if visiting the above sites, how to minimise harmful impact.  
Natural England concur with this view and have no objection               

6.43 The Council’s ecology advisor also has no objection to the proposal subject to a condition 
on any approval to secure biodiversity enhancements. Policy SD9 of the JCS is 
considered to be met.  

Economic Considerations 
6.44 The construction phase would support employment opportunities and therefore the 

proposal would have some economic benefit. Further, paragraph 3.1.9 of the JCS identifies 
that it is important to ensure that sufficient housing is made available to support the delivery 
of employment and job growth. In the context of the NPPF advice that ‘significant weight 
should be placed on the need to support economic growth through the planning system’, 
this adds some weight to the case for granting permission. 

Page 27



Overall Balancing and Conclusions
6.45 The proposals to demolish the existing buildings within the curtilage of the Manor House 

are uncontentious.

6.46 It is recognised that the proposal would cause less than substantial harm, albeit at the 
higher end to the setting of the Grade 11 Listed Manor House. The less than substantial 
harm to the setting of the Grade 11 Listed Manor House can however be balanced against 
the importance of providing a high quality inclusive development for persons with mental 
and physical needs. This proposal would be an enlightened approach to move away from 
a more traditional institutionalised scheme towards an inclusive mixed and balanced 
community development, seeking to provide well-designed, adaptable, spacious and ‘light’ 
buildings with an outdoor environment for the maximum benefit of the occupiers. The 
development would also add a further 23 much needed residential units towards the 
Council’s housing supply. Overall the balance is considered to be in favour of the 
development. These social benefits are supplemented by the economic benefits referred to 
above. Whilst considerable importance and weight is given to the fact that the proposal 
would result in less than substantial harm to the Grade II listed Manor House, on balance, 
it is considered that the public benefits arising from the proposals would outweigh that less 
than substantial harm.

6.47 The application has been considered in the context of the policies and guidance referred to 
above. The proposal is consistent with those policies and guidance in terms of design, 
materials, highway safety implications, impact upon the amenity of any neighbours and the 
local area; the proposal is acceptable and accordingly it is recommended that planning 
permission be granted, subject to conditions.  

7.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY GROWTH AND DELIVERY MANAGER

7.1 That planning permission for application reference: 19/00672/FUL is GRANTED subject to 
the following conditions:

Time limit 
Condition 1
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason
Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Plans
Condition 2 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved drawings:- 
Site Plan - Drawing no. AA6514 -2001 Rev F
Ground and First Floor Plan – Drawing no. AA6514 -2002 Rev D
Second Floor and Roof Plan – Drawing no. AA6514 -2003 Rev C 
Long Elevations – Drawing no. AA6514 -2004 Rev B 

Short Elevations Drawing no. AA6514 -2005 Rev B
Long Elevations with materials – Drawing no AA6514 -2006 Rev B
Long Section - Drawing no. AA6514 -2007 Rev B 
External Bin store -  Drawing no. AA6514 - 2008 Rev B   

Page 28



Site Location Plan – Drawing no. AA6514 -2013 Rev A 
Proposed Site Block Plan  - Drawing no. AA6514 -2014 Rev A 
Tree Report – Bartlett Consulting Development Site Impact Assessment ref: JH/170053/Rv 
1/sh  
Tree Constraint Plan with existing site layout JH.170053.TCP.Rev A 
Demolition Plan  - Drawing no. AA6514 -2012 Rev B   
Cotswold Ecology  Preliminary Ecological appraisal dated April 2019
North Upton Lane Access Visibility and Swept Path Analysis – Drawing no. 23444-08-020-
01 Rev A   
North Upton Lane Access Visibility and Swept Path Analysis – Drawing no. 23444-08-020-
02 Rev A   
Bungalow Plans and Elevations – Drawing no. AA6514-2024  

Reason 
To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans and 
documents and in accordance with policies contained within the Joint Core Strategy.

Principle 
Condition 3 

No more than 12 of the 46 new units within the residential development shall be occupied 
by households which do not include individuals with a disability (being a physical ,mental or 
sensory impairment or condition  , which has a substantial and long term adverse effect on 
an individual’s ability to carry out normal day to day activities ). 

Reason
To define the planning permission

Archaeology 
Condition 4 

No development or groundworks other than demolition to slab shall commence within the 
site until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority in writing. No development or demolition shall take place within the 
site other than in accordance with the agreed WSI, which shall include a statement of 
significance and research objectives, and;

 An archaeological impact assessment;
 The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the 

nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works;
 A programme of community and public engagement and outreach; and
 The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, 

publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the 
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in 
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and 
advance understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with 
paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Page 29



Highways

Condition 5
The development shall not be occupied until details of the following schedule of 
improvements have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority :- 

1) Tactile paving at the junction of North Upton Lane with Barnwood Road;
2) A pedestrian dropped kerb crossing, including dropped kerbs and tactile paving at 

Chertson Court junction with Barnwood Road;
3)  Removal of  the bollards on the pavement along North Upton Lane.

The works shall then be carried out in accordance with the details so approved before 
occupation of the dwellings. 

Reason: 
To  ensure that the appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can 
be taken up in accordance with paragraph 108 of the NPPF to give priority first to pedestrian 
and cycle movements and facilitate the access to high quality public transport facilities that 
encourage public transport use in accordance with paragraph 110 of the NPPF.     

Condition 6  
The vehicular access to North Upton Lane hereby permitted shall not be brought in to use 
until the existing vehicular access to North Upton Lane has been permanently closed to 
vehicular traffic and the footway has been re-instated in accordance with details which shall 
first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason  
To   minimise hazards and inconvenience for users of the development by ensuring that 
there is a safe, suitable and secure means of access for all people that minimises the scope 
for conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians in accordance with paragraphs 108 
and 110 of the NPPF. 

Condition 7     
Notwithstanding the submitted Travel Plan, no dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied 
until a Travel Plan have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The Travel Plan shall be implemented in accordance with the details and timetable 
therein.

Reason 
The development would generate a significant amount of movement and to ensure that the 
appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport are taken up in accordance with 
paragraphs 108 and 110 of the NPPF. 

Condition 8
No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Demolition and 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction 
period. The Statement shall:

1. specify the type and number of vehicles; 
2. provide for the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 

Page 30



3. provide for the loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
4. provide for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
5. provide for wheel washing facilities; 
6. specify the intended hours of construction operations; 
7. specify measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 

 
Reason
To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and accommodate the efficient delivery 
of goods and supplies in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Condition 9 
No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the 40 proposed cycle parking spaces 
have been provided in accordance with details which have first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking spaces shall be 
retained for the lifetime of the development in accordance with the approved details.

Reason  
In the interest of sustainable development and to accord with the NPPF. 

Condition 10
The car parking/dropping off and turning areas shown on drawing no. AA6514-2001 Rev F 
shall be constructed and marked out ready for use before occupation of any of the dwellings 
hereby permitted and shall thereafter be retained as such for the lifetime of the development. 

Reason 
To ensure adequate parking provision on site and to accord with the NPPF. 

Condition 11 
Prior to first occupation of any of the approved residential units, a car parking management 
plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which 
shall include measures to limit the number of car parking spaces on site to no more than 72 
unallocated spaces. The plans shall include :-

An annual review for the monthly monitoring of the spaces within the site to show the number 
of vacant (if applicable) spaces;

A survey of car parking availability on the following lengths of roads in accordance with the 
Lambeth Transport Parking Survey Methodology:

Weir Bridge Close
Newstead Road from its junction with Woodland Close 
North Upton Lane between Barnwood Road and Lilliesfield Avenue.

The development shall then be carried out and maintained thereafter in accordance with the 
approved plan. 

Reason
To ensure that car parking would not overspill in to neighbouring roads to the detriment of 
the amenities of residential occupiers, and to accord with paragraphs 108 and 110 of the 
NPPF 2019.  

Page 31



Design 
Condition 12
Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no work shall commence on the construction of the 
external facades/elevations of the buildings until details of the following have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details:-

 Scaled drawings at 1:10 for doors, windows and their recesses, brick and panel 
details

 Scaled drawings 1:5 or 1:10 for landscaping details – walls, ramps, boundary 
treatment to include works to North Upton Lane boundary, bin and bike storage   

 Scaled drawings for roof details
 Scaled drawings and details for the installation of rainwater goods
 Details of ventilation flues and grills.
 Details of safety measures for roof if access is required.
 Details of lighting 
 Details for meter boxes
 Details for security measures – external CCTV 
 Details of seagull mitigation
 Details of any cable TV installation and the location of any associated equipment. 

Reason
To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development in accordance with policy SD4 of 
the Joint Core Strategy.

Condition 13 
Details showing how overlooking is to be mitigated from the side elements of the first floor 
balconies on the eastern end of Block 1, western end of Block 3 and western end of Block 5 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 
occupation of any of the  residential units within the Block fitted with that specific balcony. 
The development shall be carried out and retained in accordance with these approved 
details.    

Reason     
To prevent overlooking in accordance with policy SD14 of the JCS.    

Landscaping

Condition 14
Before occupation of the proposed development details of hard and soft landscaping shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The soft 
landscaping shall include proposed trees that would grow to substantial size and shall   be 
carried in accordance with the approved details before occupation of the development. Any 
trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, 
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of similar size and species, unless the local planning authority gives 
written consent to any variation. If any plants fail more than once they shall continue to be 
replaced on an annual basis until the end of the 5 year defects period.

 
Reason 
In the interest of the visual amenity of the area and to accord with policy SD 4 of the Joint 
Core Strategy  Page 32



Condition 15 
No demolition, site clearance or building operations of any type shall commence nor 
equipment, machinery or materials be brought on site until tree protection measures have 
been installed in accordance with the  tree retention and protection plan (ref JH/170053/TCP 
Rev A), and the tree protection measures outlined in the Bartlett Consulting Tree Report  
dated 17th July 2018. The tree measures shall remain in place until all construction and 
associated ground works have been completed.      
 
Reason:
To protect the trees and character of the area, and to accord with policy SD4 of the Joint 
Core Strategy  

 
Drainage   
Condition 16
No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until a SuDS maintenance plan for all 
SuDS/attenuation features and associated pipework has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The maintenance plan shall fully detail the access 
that is required to meet surface water management components for maintenance purposes 
as well as showing safe and sustainable removal and disposal of waste from the drainage 
system, detailing the materials to be used and standard of work required including a method 
statement. The approved SuDS maintenance plan shall be implemented in full for the lifetime 
of the development.
 
Reason
To ensure the continued operation and maintenance of drainage features serving the site 
and avoid flooding, and to accord with policy INF2 of the Joint Core Strategy. 

Condition 17 
Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed foul water drainage 
arrangements shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved scheme shall be implemented before the first occupation of the development 
hereby permitted.

Reason
In order to ensure that satisfactory foul drainage arrangements are provided in accordance 
with policy INF2 of the Joint Core Strategy

Levels 
Condition 18
Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed plan, showing the levels of the 
existing site, the proposed levels of the site, the proposed slab levels of the buildings 
approved and a datum point outside of the site, shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.

Reason
In order to define the permission and ensure that the development is of a scale and height 
appropriate to the site in accordance with policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy.

Page 33



Environmental Protection 
Condition 19
No demolition or construction works shall be carried out outside the following hours:

Monday to Friday – 0800 to 1800 hours
Saturday – 0800 to 1300 hours

No such works shall be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

Reason
To safeguard the amenities of the area, having regard to Policy SD14 of the Joint Core 
Strategy  

Condition 20
No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until five Electric Vehicle (EV) ‘rapid 
charge’ points have been provided on the site in accordance with details which shall first 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The EV rapid 
charge points shall be retained on site for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: 

To ensure a sustainable development and to accord with policy SD3 and INF1 of the Joint 
Core Strategy  

Condition 21 

Biodiversity enhancements 

Prior to the occupation of any of the dwellings herby permitted the 
recommendations in Chapter 4 of the Cotswold Ecology  Preliminary Ecological 
appraisal dated April 2019 shall be carried out in full.  

Reason

To enhance the biodiversity of the site in accordance with Policies CSP1 and SD9 of the 
adopted Joint Core Strategy  

Condition 22 

Cotswold Beechwoods SAC and the Severn Estuary SAC and Ramsar   

On each occupation of each dwelling hereby permitted, homeowner packs shall be 
distributed to the occupier making them aware of the numerous areas of public open space 
within Gloucester city and existing foot/cycle path networks and public transport links to 
reach these city parks. In addition, the homeowner packs shall include best practice 
guidelines to avoid damaging habitats and/or disturbing wildlife in the protected sites.

 Reason: 

Page 34



To ensure no adverse effects on the integrity of the Cotswolds Commons and 
Beechwoods SAC as a result of the development. Beechwoods SAC as a result 
of the development. 

Waste Management 

Condition 23 

Prior to the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby permitted the refuse 
recycling and storage provision as shown on the approved plan shall be 
implemented and thereafter retained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason 

In the interest of amenity in accordance with policy SD14 of the JCS .

 Informatives.
1. The proposed development would involve works to be carried out on the public highway 
and the applicant/developer is required to enter in to a legally binding Highway Works 
agreement including an appropriate bond with the County Council before commencing these 
works.      

Person to Contact: Ron Moss (396835)

Page 35



Planning Application: 19/00672/FUL

Address: Manor Gardens  Barnwood 
Road  Gloucester 

Committee Date:

© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 10019169
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Page 36



Barnwood Road 

Weir Bridge Road 

C
he

rs
to

n 
C

ou
rt

N
or

th
 U

pt
on

 L
an

e

Newstead Road

Public Footpath

Lilliesfield Ave

Pedestrian 
Entrance 

New Vehicular 
Entrance 

Main 
Entrance 

Entrance to 
car park

3 New 
Parking 
Spaces 

Garages 
removed
8 Parking 
Spaces 

13  Parking 
Spaces incl. 
Minibus drop-off 
space 

11 Parking 
Spaces 

11 Parking 
Spaces 

22 Parking 
Spaces 

4 Parking 
Spaces 

Minibus Drop-off

Manor House 
Entrance

Central 
Garden

Raised Beds
Gardening 

Club

Orchard

Orchard 
Picnic Spot

New Wotton 
Brook Bridge. 

26.94 to 
underside 

New 
Terrace

20 covered cycle 
spaces

20 cycle 
spaces

14 covered cycle 
spaces/Buggy 
Store(2) Bin 
Store - see 
drawing no 
AA6514 - 2008

Electrical Sub-
station

Bin Store - see 
drawing no. 
AA6514 - 2008

Refuge and 
Buggy 
Store 

The Manor 
House

Work to Manor House 
under separate 

application.

Two New 
Bungalows  

5 existing 
Bungalows 

retained 

18 Bungalows 
Retained 

4 New 
Houses 

40 New 
Apartments 

Play Area 

Cherry Walk 

Quiet 
Garden 

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

prp-co.uk

020 8339 3600
Surrey

Rev Date Description Dwn CkdThe contractor is responsible for checking dimensions, tolerances 
and references. Any discrepancy to be verified with the Architect 
before proceeding with the works. Where  an item is covered by 
drawings to different scales the larger scale drawing is to be 
worked to.    
Do not scale drawing. Figured dimensions to be worked to in all 
cases.  

CDM REGULATIONS 2015. All current drawings 
and specifications for the project must be read in 
conjunction with the Designer's Hazard and 
Environment Assessment Record  

All intellectual property rights reserved. Scale @ A1  

Date  

Checked  

Drawn  

 1 : 500

REV  F
CH

CC

04/04/19

AA6514-2001

Site Plan

Manor Gardens

Planning

B 29/05/2019 Amendments prior to Planning
C 12/06/2019 Boundary Line
D 17/12/2019 Parking Added
E 18/12/19 Extra Parking Highlighted
F 09/01/2020 Additional parking added

0m 20m 40m10m 30m

Schedule Of Accommodation 

1B Apart.        2B Apart.       2 Bed Apart WC.       3 Bed House     3 Bed Bungalow 

GF

FF

SF 

Total

5

5

6 

16

7

8

6 

21

1

1

1 

3

4

0

0 

4

2

0

0 

2

Total Units - 46

Red parking spaces are those added during planning consultation 
72 Parking Spaces in total; 68 north of the Brook and 4 spaces for the two new cottages south of the 
Brook. 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL - DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning

Date:

Address/Location: Waterwells Sports Centre   Stephenson Drive  Quedgeley Gloucester

Application No: 19/00402/FUL

Ward: Quedgeley Fieldcourt

Expiry Date: 05.09.2019

Applicant: QUEDGELEY PARISH COUNCIL

Proposal: Proposed floodlights to pitch one at Waterwells Sports Centre

Report by: Paul Instone

Appendices:

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 Waterwells Sports Centre is located to the South of Naas Lane and to the West of Stephensons 
Drive in Quedgeley. The Sports Centre includes a full size football pitch surrounded by 
advertisement fencing, two mini football pitches and a synthetic turf pitch.  The synthetic turf 
pitch is enclosed by metal fencing and served by floodlights. There is also a building containing 
changing rooms and a car park with approximately 40 spaces, both of which are accessed off 
Stephensons Drive.

1.2 The application site itself relates to the existing full size football pitch which is located to the 
west of the changing rooms building and the application proposes the installation of 4 no. 18 
metre high floodlights.  The applicant has advised that they would accept a planning condition 
restricting the use of the floodlights until 2200 each evening.

1.3 Waterwells Sports Centre is surrounded by commercial units to the south and east.  To the 
north of the site is Naas Lane, which is a residential street.  The residential properties on Naas 
Lane are principally located to the north of Naas Lane although there are three residential 
properties to the south of Naas Lane, the closest of which is located approximately 35 metres 
from the football pitch which is subject to this application.

1.4 The site is owned by the City Council and Quedgeley Parish Council have a licence to occupy. 
It is a well-established and well used sports area and is “home” to Quedgeley Wanderers 
Football Club.

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application 
Number

Proposal Decision Decision 
Date   

09/00277/FUL Construction of 60m x 40m synthetic sports 
pitch, 4m high perimeter fencing, 6 
floodlights and path to existing changing 
rooms.

G3Y 13.05.2009

11/01088/FUL Extension to Sports Centre with hall, 
kitchen, changing and meeting rooms 
together with revised vehicular access from 

G3Y 09.03.2012 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



Stephensons Drive.
12/00732/ADV Display of non illuminated signage on wall 

fronting Stephenson Drive.
GFY 04.10.2012 

19/00402/FUL Proposed floodlights to pitch one at 
Waterwells Sports Centre

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this 
application:

3.2 National guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance

Development Plan

3.3 Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted 11 December 
2017)

SD6 – Landscape
SD14 – Health and environmental quality
INF1 –Transport network
INF3 – Green Infrastructure
INF4 – Social and community Infrastructure

3.4 City of Gloucester Local Plan (Adopted 14 September 1983)
The statutory Development Plan for Gloucester includes the partially saved 1983 City of 
Gloucester Local Plan. Paragraph 215 of the NPPF states that ‘…due weight should be given 
to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with this 
framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the 
weight that may be given.’ The majority of the policies in the 1983 Local Plan are out-of-date 
and superseded by later planning policy including the NPPF and the Joint Core Strategy. 
None of the saved policies are relevant to the consideration of this application.

Emerging Development Plan
3.5 Gloucester City Plan

The Gloucester City Plan (“City Plan”) will deliver the JCS at the local level and provide 
policies addressing local issues and opportunities in the City. The Pre-Submission version of 
the Gloucester City Plan (City Plan) was approved for publication and submission at the 
Council meeting held on 26 September 2019. On the basis of the stage of preparation that the 
plan has reached, and the consistency of its policies with the NPPF, the emerging policies of 
the plan can be afforded limited- moderate weight in accordance with paragraph 48 of the 
NPPF, subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections to each individual policy 
(the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given).

Other Planning Policy Documents

3.6 Gloucester Local Plan, Second Stage Deposit 2002 
Regard is also had to the 2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan. This has been subjected to 
two comprehensive periods of public and stakeholder consultation and adopted by the Council 
for development control purposes. The “day-to-day” development management policies, 
which are not of a strategic nature and broadly accord with the policies contained in the NPPF, 
should be given some weight.  There are no policies relevant to the consideration of this 
application.

Page 40



3.7 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address:- national policies: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2  
Gloucester City policies:
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-
policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx 

4.0 CONSULTATIONS

4.1 Quedgeley Town Council – No objection.  The Parish have also provided a statement in 
response to objections summarised as follows:

 The existing all weather pitch was given planning permission in 2009, it has a planning 
restriction attached to it allowing use until 10pm on any day.  This is strictly adhered to 
and at no time has the use of the pitch exceeded 10pm.  The floodlights are fitted with 
an electronic timer which is set to turn off at the end of each session so it not left to 
manual handling.

 The design of the current application has no upward light pollution and keeps the sky 
dark even when the floodlights are on, therefore further reducing any disturbance that 
may have been created by schemes such as this of the past.  

 The issue of parking is an ongoing problem in the whole of Quedgeley and one which 
Quedgeley Town Council often raise when responding to planning applications, but it 
must be made clear the problem is not restricted to when the field is in use by the 
football club but more often by the local community using the field for dog walking, 
using the play equipment and generally enjoying the facilities and therefore will not 
increase as a result of this application.   When formal matches are scheduled, visiting 
teams are directed to the parking facilities available on site and will have little 
knowledge of the turning area at the end of a cul-de-sac.  

4.2 Highways Authority – No objection

4.3 Environmental Health – No objection

4.4 Initial Consultation Response
Light: The lighting scheme and modelling suggests that the scheme will comply with relevant 
guidance as such we have no adverse comments to make in relation to the lighting scheme.

4.5 Noise: The installation of floodlighting is likely to lead to an intensification of use, sporting 
activities will be able to continue later into the evening. The needs of the applicant should be 
balanced carefully against the amenity of nearby residents. With careful management there is 
no reason why noise issues should limit the development.

4.6 Subsequent Consultation Response

Further to the initial consultation response officers requested that the applicant provide a 
Management Plan to demonstrate how potential noise issues would be managed.  
Environmental Health have reviewed the Management Plan and advised that procedures 
appear robust and go some way to controlling the potential impacts of light and noise. 
However, Environmental Health advised that ultimately the Planning Officer will have to 
balance the needs of the Football Club against the potential impact upon existing residents’ 
amenity.

Page 41

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx


4.7 It is also advised that should the planning application for lights be approved, any disturbance 
caused by the intensification of use would be subject to Nuisance provisions within the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990.

5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 Neighbouring properties were notified and press and site notices were published.

5.2 13 letters of objection raising the following issues:
 Residents already suffer noise & light pollution from the artificial football pitch on the 

site late evening/night matches and this application will exacerbate this issue
 Complaints have been made to the council about the length of time the existing lights 

are on which has been longer than 10pm on occasions.
 The privacy and quality of life of residents of the nearby dwellings will be hugely 

affected by the erection of floodlights that will shine directly on to the dwelling.
 The ability to use the pitch through the winter months when the boundary hedge to 

residential dwellings is at its least covered with leaves will increase light pollution and 
detrimental impact on amenity of residents

 The application site is supposed to be a public space and not entirely for use by 
Quedgeley Wanderers.  The application will only encourage more training/evening 
matches and further discourage other members of the Quedgeley community from 
using the field.

 The football club should use purpose built facilities, with floodlights already installed, 
which are available elsewhere in the Quedgeley community, for their requirements.

 The proposal will result in increased litter and more anti social behaviour and bad 
language 

 The proposal will devalue our properties and cause difficulties when selling homes 
 The floodlights will increase traffic along Naas lane traffic along with inconsiderate 

parking causing issues for residents access properties and potentially restricted access 
for emergency vehicles

 Parking issues are not only due to players, but due to spectators and the average 
attendance is over 75 fans per match 

3 letters of support have been received raising the following issues:

 All evening matches would start at 6 30pm and finish at 9 30pm
 The floodlights are of high quality and there would definitely no upward lighting or light 

pollution. Floodlighting technology has changed considerably over the years and is 
designed to concentrate light on the pitch, eliminating light pollution on the surrounding 
area. 

 It is recognised that parking is a problem at Waterwells particularly on a Saturday 
morning when QWFC are using the grass pitches, Hardwicke Rangers on the artificial 
pitch and SupaStrikers in the sports hall. However, the QWFC manage this and all 
visiting teams and supporters are directed to the entrance in Stephenson Drive

 Parking issues for occur as people park in Naas Lane and Waterwells car park to walk 
their dogs.

 QWFC volunteers work hard in conjunction with QTC to maintain the facilities and 
grounds at Waterwells and they have received numerous positive and complimentary 
comments regarding the facilities which Quedgeley should be proud of. 

 Adding floodlights to pitch one would enhance the facilities further.
 Making more use of the facilities will reduce some of the anti-social behaviour and 

senseless vandalism that takes place.
 Having floodlights on pitch 1 does not mean there will be more parking issues, it gives 

Page 42



opportunities to spread the load of Fixtures, matches, throughout other days of the year 
making it less traffic on Match days.

5.3 The full content of all correspondence on this application can be viewed on: 
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-
access.aspx 

6.0 OFFICER OPINION

Legislative background
6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Local Planning 

Authority to determine planning applications in accordance with the Development Plan, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 

6.2 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) states that in dealing 
with a planning application, the Local Planning Authority should have regard to the following:
a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application;
b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application; and
c) any other material considerations.

6.3 The development plan consists of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 
Strategy (JCS) and the partially saved 1983 City of Gloucester Local Plan. However, as 
outlined earlier, the 1983 Local Plan is considered to be out-of-date.

6.4 It is considered that the main issues with regards to this application are as follows:

Principle
6.5 Section 8 of the NPPF recognises that the planning system can play an important role in 

facilitating social interaction and creating healthy, inclusive communities. To deliver the social, 
recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, planning policies and 
decisions should plan positively for the provision of community facilities to enhance the 
sustainability of communities and residential environments and enable and support healthy 
lifestyles.

6.6 Policy INF3 of the JCS states that existing green infrastructure will be protected in a manner 
that reflects its contribution to ecosystem services, including landscape quality, recreation and 
play.

6.7 The proposed development would contribute to providing community facilities, enabling and 
supporting healthy lifestyles and planning decisions should plan positively for community 
facilities to support healthy lifestyles in accordance with the NPPF. On this basis, the principle 
of the proposal is considered acceptable providing there are no material considerations which 
indicate otherwise.

Residential amenity
6.8 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that new 

development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including 
cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as 
well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the 
development. In doing so planning decisions should mitigate and reduce to a minimum 
potential adverse impacts from noise and limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on 
local amenity. Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to 
local amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants.

Page 43

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx


6.9 Waterwells Sports Centre is surrounded by commercial units to the south and east.  The 
residential properties on Naas Lane are principally to the north of Naas Lane although there 
are three residential properties to the south.  The closest of these three dwellings is located 
approximately 35 metres from the football pitch. The three dwellings are arranged in a ‘L’ 
shape.  

6.10 The nearest dwelling to the application site ‘Reevers’ is situated such that the 2 storey gable 
end of the property faces towards the football pitch.  There and no windows in this north facing 
2 storey elevation. However, the ‘Reevers’ also has a single storey rear extension which 
contains a number of windows which face north towards the football pitch.  The back garden of 
the ‘Reevers’ in enclosed by a circa 1 metre high hedge and the private amenity area of the 
dwelling is visible from the football pitch, as is the rear garden of the adjacent dwelling.

6.11 The other dwelling within the cluster of 3 dwellings potentially most affected by the proposals 
is the dwelling known as ‘Thoresby’ to the south.  The property is a one and a half storey 
chalet bungalow and the front elevation of the dwelling, which contains habitable room 
windows, is located approximately 60 metres from the football pitch.  This elevation faces 
north towards the application site, albeit views are partially screened by the intervening 
dwellings.

6.12 In addition there are a number of dwellings located to the north of Naas Lane which are 
located approximately 20 metres from the football pitch, albeit there is a substantial hedgerow 
between the football pitch and the dwellings.

6.13 In terms of potential light pollution the proposed 18 metre high flood lights are LED luminaries 
which are angled to concentrate light upon the football pitch. The flood lights themselves 
would be set off the football pitch by circa 3.5 metres such that the floodlights are closer to the 
dwellings to the south than the football pitch. 

6.14 The application is supported by a lighting scheme and light spill modelling.  Environment 
Health have been consulted on the application and confirm that the modelling suggests that 
the scheme will comply with relevant guidance and as such Environmental Health have no 
adverse comments to make in relation to the lighting scheme.  It is therefore considered that 
the proposed lighting would not give rise to an unacceptable impact on the residential amenity 
of nearby residents.

6.15 However, it is also the case that the installation of floodlighting is likely to lead to an 
intensification of use as sporting activities will be able to continue later into the evening, which 
could give rise to a detrimental impact on residential amenity, particularly by reason of noise.  
In light of this officers requested that the application submit a Noise Management Plan (NMP) 
for the application proposals.

Page 44



6.16 The NMP advises that:

- Floodlights are only used during winter months and therefore windows and doors of 
neighbouring properties will be closed and enjoyment of gardens etc. will not be 
impinged.

- Additional matches will not be played as a result of the provision of floodlights, the aim 
is to spread the matches throughout the playing season to protect the playing surface, 
but will be limited to approximately 8-10 games per season.

- The hours of operation will be limited from 6.45pm-10.00pm, this can easily be 
achieved by a time control device, so not left to manually handling and is currently the 
adopted management of the adjacent synthetic pitch and would be happy to see a 
planning condition attached to reflect this.

- Quedgeley Wanderers FC is a grass roots football club; and support is limited, the 
highest attendance this season was 172 but this was a local derby and most were 
spectating from the club house, the lowest attendance is 24 and therefore noise will be 
minimal. However, it is accepted any noise must be controlled and therefore all 
spectators will be directed to the side of the pitch nearest the sports building and not at 
the end of the pitch nearest the properties. At the end of the game all players, 
managers, coaches, supporters and officials etc. will be directed inside the building with 
windows and doors closed.

- All activities on the pitch will be in a controlled environment with officials, managers and 
coaches present, at no time will floodlights be permitted to be in use by unsupervised 
groups of youths or teams.

- Only one game will be played at any time and therefore it is envisaged all drop off and 
pick up can easily be accommodated within the onsite car parking provision.

- Quedgeley Wanderers FC is a Charter Standard Community Club, the highest award 
possible and have signed up to the Respect Campaign adopted by the Football 
Association and all bad behaviour is dealt with within the club. Any serious breaches 
will see the individual removed from the site and if necessary, membership of the club 
revoked. Reports of anti-social behaviour will be forwarded to the Football Association 
for further action by them if required.

- All officials follow FA guidelines in respect of noise and are aware of the need to ensure 
discipline is upheld by players and spectators’.

- Contact telephone numbers for officers of Quedgeley Wanderers FC are available on 
their website and any serious incidences can be reported to the Club or Quedgeley 
Town Council.

6.17 Environmental Health have reviewed the NMP and advise that procedures appear robust and 
go some way to controlling the potential impacts of light and noise. However, Environmental 
Health advised that ultimately the Planning Officer will have to balance the needs of the 
Football Club against the potential impact upon existing residents’ amenity. It is also advised 
that should the planning application for lights be approved, any disturbance caused by the 
intensification of use would be subject to Nuisance provisions within the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990.

6.18 It is considered by officers that there is some potential for loss of amenity at residential 
receptors as a result of application, particularly in relation to noise arising from matches in the 
evening.  This is a matter which weighs against the proposal.  However, it is considered that 
the impact on amenity would be mitigated to an acceptable level by virtue of the provisions of 
the NMP including the restricted hours of use and restricting the use to supervised games and 
these mitigation measures can be secured by planning condition.

6.19 As such, subject to the imposition of conditions, on balance it is considered that the impact on 
amenity would be acceptable and that the proposed development does not conflict with the 
NPPF and policy SD14 of the JCS. 

Page 45



Traffic and transport
6.20 The NPPF requires that development proposals provide for safe and suitable access for all 

and that development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the 
residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Policy INF1 of the JCS requires safe 
and accessible connections to the transport network and Policy INF4 of the JCS states that’s 
that social infrastructure should be centrally located to the population it serves and be easily 
accessible on foot and bicycle.

6.21 Waterwells Sports Centre is served by a car park with approximately 40 spaces which are 
accessed off Stephensons Drive. There are also regular bus services in the vicinity of the site 
and the Centre is accessible via cycle lanes.

6.22 There have been a number of objections to this application from local residents relating to 
parking problems particularly on match days.  Whist the concerns of objectors are noted, 
given the parameters of use of the facility set out in the Noise Management Plan it is not 
considered that the proposals would give rise to an intensification of use during the evening 
hours which would cause a severe cumulative impact on the highway network, taking account 
that there are approximately 40 on site car parking spaces.

6.23 In this regard, the County Highways Authority have been consulted on the application and 
offer no objection.

6.24 As such, whilst the concerns of objectors are noted, it is considered that the proposal would 
not have a ‘severe’ impact on the safety or satisfactory operation of the highways network and 
would be in accordance with Policy INF1 of the JCS and the NPPF.

Landscape and visual Impact
6.25 Policy SD6 of the JCS states that development will seek to protect landscape character for its 

own intrinsic beauty and for its benefit to economic, environmental and social well being.  This 
reflects the wording of the NPPF in relation to the recognition of protecting the intrinsic beauty 
of the countryside.

6.26 The proposed development would introduce new floodlighting and columns onto the 
application site, however these would not be uncharacteristic of the wider facilities at 
Waterwells Sports Centre and given the context of this site would not be harmful to the 
character and appearance of the landscape.

Conclusion
6.27 It is concluded that the proposed development is acceptable in principle and that the proposed 

development would contribute to providing community facilities, enabling and supporting 
healthy lifestyles. These social benefits weigh in favour of the proposal.

6.28 It is concluded that there is some potential for loss of amenity at residential receptors as a 
result of the application, particularly in relation to noise arising from matches in the evening.  
This is a matter which weighs against the proposal.  However, it is considered that the impact 
on amenity would be mitigated to an acceptable level by virtue of the provisions of the NMP 
and these mitigation measures can be secured by planning condition.

6.29 There would be no undue impact in terms of local highway network and landscape impact.

6.30 Whilst there would be some impacts on the area as identified above, on balance, it is 
considered that the social benefits of the proposal outweigh the harm in this case and the 
proposal is recommended for permission.

Page 46



7.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY GROWTH AND DELIVERY MANAGER

7.1 That planning permission is GRANTED subject to the following conditions;

7.2 Condition 1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Condition 2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans

- 197017C Equipment Layout Plan received 22nd July 2019
- Pole Configuration Drawing 197017PL 1of4 received 4th July 2019
- Pole Configuration Drawing 197017PL 2of4 received 4th July 2019
- Pole Configuration Drawing 197017PL 3of4 received 4th July 2019
- Pole Configuration Drawing 197017PL 3of4 received 4th July 2019

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning

Condition 3

The floodlights hereby permitted shall only be in use between the hours of 0800 hours and 2200 
hours on any day.

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity

Condition 4

The use of the football pitch when the floodlights hereby permitted are in use shall be fully in 
accordance with the provisions set out in the Noise Management Plan received on 5th December 
2019.

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity

Note 1
Statement of Positive and Proactive Engagement

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has worked with 
the applicant in a positive and proactive manner in order to secure sustainable development 
which will improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area by securing a 
Noise Management Plan for the application site.

Person to Contact: Paul Instone (396396)

Page 47



Planning Application: 19/00402/FUL

Address: Waterwells Sports Centre   
Stephenson Drive  Quedgeley 
Gloucester

Committee Date:

© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 10019169
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Page 48



EQUIPMENT LAYOUT

Not to be reproduced in whole or part without the written consent of Musco
Sports Lighting, LLC. ©1981, 2019 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC.ENGINEERED DESIGN By: W.Svarverud • File #197017C • 10-Jul-19

Soccer

101.0m x 66.0m

S3S4

S1 S2

37
.3

m

35.0m

37
.3

m

35.0m

36
.0

m

35.0m

36
.0

m

35.0m

SCALE 1 : 500

0 20m 40m

Pole loca on(s) dimensions are rela ve
to 0,0 reference point(s)

Quedgeley Wanderers FC
Quedgeley,West Midlands

EQUIPMENT LAYOUT
INCLUDES:
· Soccer

Electrical System Requirements: Refer to Amperage
Draw Chart and/or the "Musco Control System Summary"
for electrical sizing.

Installa on Requirements: Results assume ± 3%
nominal voltage at line side of the driver and structures
located within 3 feet (1m) of design loca ons.

EQUIPMENT LIST FOR AREAS SHOWN
Pole Luminaires

QTY LOCATION SIZE GRADE
ELEVATION

MOUNTING
HEIGHT

LUMINAIRE
TYPE

QTY /
POLE

2 S1-S2 18.29m - 18.29m TLC-LED-1200 4/1*
2 S3-S4 18.29m - 18.29m TLC-LED-1200 4
4 TOTALS 18

 * This structure u lizes a back-to-back moun ng con gura on

SINGLE LUMINAIRE AMPERAGE DRAW CHART
Ballast Speci ca ons

(.90 min power factor)
Line Amperage Per Luminaire

(max draw)

Single Phase Voltage 208
(60)

220
(60)

240
(60)

277
(60)

347
(60)

380
(60)

480
(60)

TLC-LED-1200 7.0 6.6 6.1 5.2 4.2 3.8 3.0

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



10 ft

(3 m)

2 ft

(600 mm)

Galvanized steel pole

Precast concrete base

  Musco            Light-Structure System™ pole

TLC for LED™ luminaires

18m

POLE(S):  S1

Ground level

Poletop luminaire

assembly

Electrical components

enclosure

Galvanized steel pole

Precast concrete base

Poletop luminaire

assembly

Page 51

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
R.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
PROJECT NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
DRAWING NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
OF      SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
100 1st Avenue West

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
P.O. Box 808

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
CORPORATE OFFICE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
+1-800-825-6020

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Oskaloosa, Iowa 52577

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
+1-641-673-0411

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Information contained herein is the confidential property of Musco Sports Lighting, LLC and/or its parent companies, affiliates, successors and assigns.  Reproduction, distribution, or use of the information other than its limited, intended purpose without express written permission is prohibited.

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Quedgeley Wanderers FC

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Quedgeley,West Midlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Pole Configuration Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
197017

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
W.Svarverud

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
1:125

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
06/21/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
197017P1

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
4



10 ft

(3 m)

2 ft

(600 mm)

Galvanized steel pole

Precast concrete base

  Musco            Light-Structure System™ pole

TLC for LED™ luminaires

18m

POLE(S):  S2

Ground level

Poletop luminaire

assembly

Electrical components

enclosure

Galvanized steel pole

Precast concrete base

Poletop luminaire

assembly

Page 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
R.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
PROJECT NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
DRAWING NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
OF      SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
100 1st Avenue West

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
P.O. Box 808

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
CORPORATE OFFICE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
+1-800-825-6020

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Oskaloosa, Iowa 52577

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
+1-641-673-0411

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Information contained herein is the confidential property of Musco Sports Lighting, LLC and/or its parent companies, affiliates, successors and assigns.  Reproduction, distribution, or use of the information other than its limited, intended purpose without express written permission is prohibited.

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Quedgeley Wanderers FC

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Quedgeley,West Midlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Pole Configuration Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
197017

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
W.Svarverud

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
1:125

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
06/21/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
197017P1

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
4



10 ft

(3 m)

2 ft

(600 mm)

Galvanized steel pole

Precast concrete base

  Musco            Light-Structure System™ pole

TLC for LED™ luminaires

18m

POLE(S):  S3

Ground level

Poletop luminaire

assembly

Electrical components

enclosure

Page 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
R.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
PROJECT NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
DRAWING NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
OF      SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
100 1st Avenue West

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
P.O. Box 808

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
CORPORATE OFFICE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
+1-800-825-6020

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Oskaloosa, Iowa 52577

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
+1-641-673-0411

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Information contained herein is the confidential property of Musco Sports Lighting, LLC and/or its parent companies, affiliates, successors and assigns.  Reproduction, distribution, or use of the information other than its limited, intended purpose without express written permission is prohibited.

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Quedgeley Wanderers FC

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
Quedgeley,West Midlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Pole Configuration Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
197017

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
W.Svarverud

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
1:125

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
06/21/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
197017P1

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
4



10 ft

(3 m)

2 ft

(600 mm)

Galvanized steel pole

Precast concrete base

  Musco            Light-Structure System™ pole

TLC for LED™ luminaires

18m

POLE(S):  S4

Ground level

Poletop luminaire

assembly

Electrical components

enclosure

Page 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
R.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
PROJECT NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
DRAWING NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
OF      SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
100 1st Avenue West

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
P.O. Box 808

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
CORPORATE OFFICE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
+1-800-825-6020

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Oskaloosa, Iowa 52577

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
+1-641-673-0411

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
Information contained herein is the confidential property of Musco Sports Lighting, LLC and/or its parent companies, affiliates, successors and assigns.  Reproduction, distribution, or use of the information other than its limited, intended purpose without express written permission is prohibited.

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Quedgeley Wanderers FC

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Quedgeley,West Midlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
Pole Configuration Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
197017

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
W.Svarverud

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
1:125

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
06/21/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
197017P1

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
4



GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL - DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning

Date: 3rd March 2020

Address/Location: Land at Spinnaker Road, Gloucester 

Application No: 19/01096/FUL

Ward: Westgate

Expiry Date: 14.02.2020 (Time Extension agreed to 6th March 2020)

Applicant: Dr Martijn Vos

Proposal:
Extensions to Class B2 Factory Building and Development of Adjacent Land 
to Covered Storage Area and Car parking to include raising the existing land 
level.

Report by: Caroline Townley

Appendices: Site location and proposed site layout plan

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The application site comprises the existing factory occupied by Hydro Components UK Ltd, 
(previously named Sapa Pressweld Ltd), together with an adjacent area of land directly 
opposite the factory. 

1.2 The site is bounded by a public landfill site to the north, the Gloucester City Football Club 
land and the River Severn flood plain. There is currently undeveloped land to the west and 
industrial buildings and commercial uses to the south and east.

1.3 The site is accessed from the Spinnaker Park private industrial estate road which connects 
onto Hempsted Lane located to the south of the site. The existing building on the site 
comprises a large, production and storage building along with a two storey office area 
occupied by Hydro. The company produces premium, high surface quality, decorative 
automotive exterior parts for distribution in the UK and export to Europe.

1.4 The application seeks full planning permission for two extensions to the existing building 
comprising:

 An extension to the north east elevation to match the existing building in terms of its 
length, height and materials. This extension would house a new automotive 
standard powder coating line, fabrication and assembly cells. This extension will 
replace an existing temporary building on the site.

 A second extension on the north western corner of the existing building with a lean-
to roof at a lower height to the existing building and constructed from matching 
materials. This would be used as a storage area to aid managing the increased 
productivity.

1.5 It is also proposed to expand onto the adjacent vacant land to the south east of the existing 
facility. Part of this land was previously used as an inert waste transfer site with large piles 
of building waste stored on it. It has been stated that when the site was cleared that ground 
levels across the site were reduced to remove layers of wet/contaminated material. 
Planning permission was granted in 1991 (21634/01/APP), for the construction of the 
estate roads and raising of the land levels. The current application proposes to raise the 
levels back to those previously approved and to erect three new steel ‘tents’ on this land, Page 55

Agenda Item 7



two of which would be used for storage and one for vehicle circulation. It is also proposed 
to site a storage tank for a new sprinkler system and associated pump house on this land, 
together with dedicated lorry parking, additional employee car parking and cycle storage.

1.6 Both parts of the development will continue to be accessed directly from Spinnaker Road.

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application 
Number

Proposal Decision Decision 
Date   

21634/01/OUT (Outline) Erection of warehouse/industrial 
units.

Granted outline 
permission

15.12.1987

21634/01/APP Construction of an estate road with 
associated raising of land levels.

Approved 19.03.1991

21634/03A/OUT (Outline) Erection of 
industrial/warehousing units.

Granted outline 
permission

05.07.1993

21634/03/APP Construction of factory, extension to 
service road and ancillary works. 
(Reserved matters).

Granted 29.12.1993

09/00261/DCC County Council Application – Screening 
of planning application for EIA

No objection 13.03.2009

09/00948/CPA Use of land as a waste transfer station for 
a temporary period of 2 years (County 
Ref. 09/0044/GLMAJW

No objection subject 
to conditions

17.09.2009

08/00715/FUL Extension to factory production area to 
provide new press shop and re-
arrangement of site car parking. Use 
Class B2.

Granted 05.08.2008

08/00988/FUL Installation of 4 no. L.P.G storage tanks. 
Each tank 2 tonne. (Retrospective 
application.

Granted 19.09.2008

14/00663/FUL Extension. Returned 22.10.2014
16/00335/FUL Extension to factory (B2 use) to provide 

additional storage and ancillary offices.
Withdrawn 07.08.2017

18/00884/FUL Extension of factory building (B2 use) Granted 05.12.2018
19/00143/FUL Revision of Planning Application 

reference 18/00884/FUL. Extension of 
factory building (B2 use) to provide 
additional workshop area.

Granted 09.04.2019

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this 
application:

3.2 National guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance

3.3 Development Plan
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted 11 December 
2017)
Relevant policies from the JCS (Main Modifications) include:  
SD3 – Sustainable design and construction
SD4 – Design requirements Page 56



SD6 – Landscape
SD8 – Historic Environment
SD9 – Biodiversity and geodiversity
SD10 – Residential development
SD11 – Housing mix and standards
SD14 – Health and environmental quality
INF1 –Transport network
INF2 – Flood risk management
INF3 – Green Infrastructure
INF4 – Social and community Infrastructure
INF6–Infrastructure delivery
INF7 – Developer contributions

3.4 City of Gloucester Local Plan (Adopted 14 September 1983)
The statutory Development Plan for Gloucester includes the partially saved 1983 City of 
Gloucester Local Plan. Paragraph 215 of the NPPF states that ‘…due weight should be 
given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with this 
framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater 
the weight that may be given.’ The majority of the policies in the 1983 Local Plan are out-
of-date and superseded by later planning policy including the NPPF and the Joint Core 
Strategy. None of the saved policies are relevant to the consideration of this application.

3.5 Emerging Development Plan
Gloucester City Plan
The Gloucester City Plan (“City Plan”) will deliver the JCS at the local level and provide 
policies addressing local issues and opportunities in the City. The Pre-Submission version 
of the Gloucester City Plan (City Plan) was approved for publication and submission at the 
Council meeting held on 26 September 2019. On the basis of the stage of preparation that 
the plan has reached, and the consistency of its policies with the NPPF, the emerging 
policies of the plan can be afforded limited- moderate weight in accordance with paragraph 
48 of the NPPF, subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections to each 
individual policy (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that 
may be given).
Relevant policies include:  
A1 – Effective and efficient use of land and buildings
B1 – Employment and Skills Plan
B3 – New employment development and intensification and improvements to existing 
employment land
C1 – Active design and accessibility
C5 – Air quality
E2 – Biodiversity and geodiversity
E5 – Green infrastructure: Building with nature
E6 – Flooding, sustainable drainage, and wastewater
F1 – Materials and finishes
F2 – Landscape and planting
F3 – Community safety 
F4 – Gulls
G1 – Sustainable transport
G2 – Charging infrastructure for electric vehicles
G3 – Cycling
G4 – Walking

3.6 Other Planning Policy Documents
Page 57



Gloucester Local Plan, Second Stage Deposit 2002 
Regard is also had to the 2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan. This has been subjected 
to two comprehensive periods of public and stakeholder consultation and adopted by the 
Council for development control purposes. The following “day-to-day” development 
management policies, which are not of a strategic nature and broadly accord with the 
policies contained in the NPPF, should be given some weight: 

E.4 – Protecting Employment Land

3.7 All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address:- national policies: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2  
Gloucester City policies:
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-
policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx 

4.0 CONSULTATIONS

4.1 Highway Authority – No highway objection is raised subject to a number of conditions.

4.2 Environment Agency – The revised Flood Risk Assessment confirms that appropriate 
floodplain compensation will be provided within the site. The mitigation is based upon the 
design flood level (1% Annual Exceedance Probability plus an allowance for climate 
change). This information satisfies the Agency that the development will meet the principles 
of the exception test that aims to mitigate against any potential impacts. No objection is 
raised subject to the inclusion of a condition requiring the implementation of the 
compensatory flood storage works.

4.3 Drainage Adviser – The revised drainage / SUDs proposals are broadly satisfactory, 
although the water quality arrangements for the HGV parking area may need tweaking at 
the detailed design stage. No objection is raised subject the inclusion of conditions 
requiring the submission, approval and implementation of the detailed design and 
maintenance of the surface water drainage and a Flood Evacuation Management Plan.

4.4 Lead Local Flood Authority – No objections.

4.5 Contaminated Land Advisor (WRS) – The application is supported by a report entitled 
‘Phase II Geo-Environmental Report - Spinnaker Road, Gloucester - Hydro Components 
UK Ltd’ produced by Enzygo Geo Environmental, dated September 2019 (ref 
CRM.548.001.GE.R.001.A). Although this report provides a basic overview of site 
conditions in respect of contamination the report mainly relates to geotechnical aspects.

A previous report submitted at the pre-application stage identified widespread asbestos 
fibres in shallow soils. One round of gas monitoring was also undertaken which identified 
elevated methane. Although there was limited gas flow it can’t be relied upon as only one 
round of monitoring would not be sufficient to classify the site. An initial risk assessment 
was also carried out with the proposed end use as car parking only which concluded that 
additional gas monitoring and assessment would be required to confirm whether gas 
protection measures would be required if structures were to be erected on the site.

Page 58

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx


On the basis that the current application includes buildings and other structures, and that 
elevated methane was recorded on single monitoring visit, WRS recommend that a suitable 
gas risk assessment should be undertaken. This should include additional gas monitoring 
to fully inform the risk assessment and requirement for any necessary gas protection 
measures. It is also noted that an area of soft landscaping is proposed as part of the 
development. Consideration will also need to be given as to the risks posed by asbestos 
fibres and how these risks will be mitigated in order to protect future users of the site and 
other relevant receptors.

It is recommended that a condition is attached to any planning permission.

4.6 Landscape Adviser – The revised drawing has widened the planting border on the 
southern corner and some trees have been added. The proposal is now acceptable with 
regards to its impact on the landscape. No objection subject to the inclusion of landscaping 
conditions.

4.7  Environmental Protection Advisor – No objections.

4.8 Severn Trent Water - No objection to the proposal subject to the inclusion of a condition 
requiring the submission, approval and implementation of drainage plans for the disposal of 
foul and surface water flows.

4.9 Growth and Delivery Officer – Policy B1 of the Emerging City Plan requires the developer 
of any major development to submit and Employment and Skills Plan (ESP). This is a 
series of objectives to be delivered through the construction lifecycle of the project, 
covering a variety of interventions including work experience, construction careers events 
and promotion around community engagement. A condition is recommended to secure an 
ESP.

4.10 Minerals and Waste - The application is supported by a Waste Minimisation Statement, 
which does cover most aspects of the requirements of the WMS SPD. No objection subject 
to the inclusion of a condition to address waste during the occupation period.

5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 Neighbouring properties were notified and press and site notices were published.

5.2 No letters of representation have been received.

5.3 The full content of all correspondence on this application can be viewed on: 
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-
access.aspx 

6.0 OFFICER OPINION

6.1 Legislative background
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Local 
Planning Authority to determine planning applications in accordance with the Development 
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

Page 59

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx


6.2 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) states that in 
dealing with a planning application, the Local Planning Authority should have regard to the 
following:
a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application;
b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application; and
c) any other material considerations.

6.3 The development plan consists of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 
Strategy (JCS) and the partially saved 1983 City of Gloucester Local Plan. However, as 
outlined earlier, the 1983 Local Plan is considered to be out-of-date.

6.4 It is considered that the main issues with regards to this application are as follows:

Principle
6.5 The site is located within an existing industrial area and the proposal seeks to extend the 

existing building and develop an area of adjacent vacant brownfield land. The principle of 
the proposal is therefore considered acceptable in this location.

Design, Layout and Landscaping
6.6 The NPPF states that new residential developments should be of high quality design, 

create attractive places to live, and respond to local character integrating into the local 
environment. Policy SD3 requires all developments to demonstrate how they contribute to 
the principles of sustainability, Policy SD4 sets out requirements for high quality design, 
Policy SD6 requires development to protect or enhance landscape character while Policy 
SD10 requires housing of an appropriate density, compatible with good design, the 
protection of heritage assets, local character and compatible with the road network.

6.7 The surrounding area is an established industrial / commercial area. The design of the 
proposed extensions would match the existing building in terms of the overall height, scale 
and materials. The materials for the extensions comprise a facing brick plinth with vertical 
profiled metal cladding to match the existing building.

6.8 The proposed temporary buildings comprise of a series of three tent like structures with 
single sheet steel walls with pitched rooves. 

6.9 This area is predominantly industrial in nature and it is not considered that the proposed 
development would be out of keeping with the street scene or the existing buildings and 
would not result in unacceptable harm to the character of the area. It is for this reason that 
the proposal can be considered acceptable.

6.10 It is proposed to introduce an area of soft landscaping border to the southern corner of the 
site with planting to including a number of native trees.

Traffic and Transport
6.11 The NPPF requires that development proposals provide for safe and suitable access for all 

and that development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the 
residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Policy INF1 of the JCS requires 
safe and accessible connections to the transport network.

6.12 It is proposed to amend the existing access arrangements and provide an additional 46 car 
parking and 13 cycle parking spaces for employees. It is intended that Hydro will operate a 
co-ordinated site management plan and employ a team of banksmen to ensure all traffic 
movements during site operation times are effectively controlled. 

Page 60



6.13 The Local Highway Authority has raised no objection to the application subject to the 
inclusion of a number of conditions.

Travel Plan
6.14 The NPPF Paragraph 36 states that all significant generators of traffic movements should 

be required to provide a Travel Plan. JCS Policy INF1 provides that applications may be 
required to be accompanied by a Travel Plan. The Travel Plan should be formulated in 
accordance with the GCC Travel Plan Guidance for developers.

6.15 The Department for Transport (DfT) defines a travel plan as “a long term management 
strategy that seeks to deliver sustainable transport objectives through positive action”. 
Such plans could include; car sharing schemes, commitment to improving cycle facilities, 
dedicated bus services or restricted parking allocations. A successful Travel Plan should 
offer users whether they are employees, residents or visitors a choice of travel modes from 
sites or premises.

6.16 A Traffic Plan has been submitted in support of the current application, however this does 
not accord with Gloucestershire County Council’s Travel Plan Guidance for Developers and 
a condition is recommended requiring the submission, approval and implementation of an 
appropriate Travel Plan.

Residential Amenity
6.17 Paragraph 17 of the NPPF provides that planning should always seek to secure high 

quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land 
and buildings. This is reflected in Policy SD14 of the JCS which requires that new 
development must cause no harm to local amenity including the amenity of neighbouring 
occupants.

6.18 The site is well separated from the new residential properties on Hempsted Lane 
(approximately 18 metres) and Sudmeadow Road (approximately 26 metres). The 
immediately surrounding area has a range of industrial/commercial uses, and the Recycling 
Centre. Given the nature of the surrounding uses and separation it is not considered that 
the proposals would result in any unacceptable harm to local residents in terms of amenity.

Drainage and Flood Risk
6.19 The NPPF requires that development is directed to the areas at lowest risk of flooding, that 

new development should take the opportunities to reduce the causes or impacts of 
flooding, should not increase flood risk elsewhere and take account of climate change. 
Policy INF2 of the JCS reflects the NPPF, applying a risk based sequential approach, 
requiring new development to contribute to a reduction in flood risk and requiring the use of 
sustainable drainage systems. 

Flood Risk at the Site
6.20 A Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy has been submitted in support of the 

application. According to the Environment Agency’s ‘Flood Map for Planning’ the site is in 
Flood Zones 2 and 3. The FRA confirms that based on Table 2 of the Technical Guide to 
the NPPF the vulnerability classification of the proposed development would fall within the 
‘less vulnerable’ classification.

Sequential and Exception Test
6.21 The NPPF states that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be 

avoided by directing development away from areas at the highest risk, but where 
development is necessary, making it safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere.

Page 61



6.22 The aim of the sequential test is to steer new development to areas with the lowest risk of 
flooding. Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are reasonably 
available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower risk of 
flooding. The NPPF clarifies that if it is not possible for development to be located in zones 
with a lower risk of flooding (taking into account the wider sustainable development 
objectives), the exception test may have to be applied. The need for the exception test 
depends on the potential vulnerability of the site and of the development proposed.

6.23 Nevertheless, the PPG advises that a pragmatic approach should be taken to the 
application of the sequential test, for example, where an extension is proposed to an 
existing business premises, it might be impractical to suggest that there might be more 
suitable alternative locations for the development. The submitted FRA identifies that by 
definition the proposed extension to the existing building cannot be located on an 
alternative site of a lower flood risk. The provision of the additional storage and parking 
facility is directly associated with the existing operation and also needs to be located within 
a reasonable distance from the existing building. There is no other adjacent land in a lower 
flood risk that could fulfil these requirements and it is considered that the aims of the 
sequential test have been met.

6.24 The NPPF states that the application of the exception test should be informed by a flood 
risk assessment, depending on whether it is being applied during plan production or at the 
application stage and for the exception test to be passed it should be demonstrated that:

(a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that 
outweigh the flood risk; and

(b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its 
users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood 
risk overall.

Both elements of the exception test should be satisfied for development to be allocated or 
permitted.

6.25 The proposed use is classified as ‘Less Vulnerable’ and as such does not explicitly have to 
pass the exception test although the guiding principles of the test should still be adhered to. 
The proposal is to allow the expansion of an existing business on an existing sustainable 
brownfield employment site which would bring about economic benefits

6.26 The submitted Flood Risk Assessment confirms that appropriate floodplain compensation 
will be provided within the site. The mitigation is based upon the design flood level (1% 
Annual Exceedance Probability plus an allowance for climate change).  On this basis the 
Environment Agency is satisfied that the development would meet the principles of the 
exception test that aims to mitigate against any potential impacts. 

6.27 The development will be safe for its lifetime taking into account the vulnerability of its users, 
without increasing flood risk elsewhere and will reduce flood risk overall and as such it is 
considered that the principles of the exception test have been met.

6.28 No objection is raised by the Environment Agency subject to the inclusion of a condition 
requiring the implementation of the compensatory flood storage works

Surface Water Management
6.29 The Drainage Advisor has confirmed that the revised drainage and SUDs proposals are 

broadly satisfactory in principle although the proposed water quality arrangements for the 
HGV parking area may need revising at the detailed design stage. No objection is raised 
subject to the inclusion of conditions.

Page 62



Land Contamination
6.30 Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that development proposals incorporate the investigation 

and remediation of any land contamination. 

6.31 Investigations of the site have identified widespread asbestos fibres in shallow soils and 
elevated levels of methane. The City Council’s Contaminated Land Advisor (WRS) 
considers that a suitable gas risk assessment should be undertaken to include additional 
gas monitoring to fully inform the risk assessment and the requirement for gas protection 
measures if necessary. Further consideration is also required as to the risks posed by 
asbestos fibres and how these risks will be mitigated in order to protect future site users 
and other relevant receptors. It is recommended that a condition is attached to any 
planning permission to address these matters.

6.32 A Remedial Methodology, including results of additional rounds of gas monitoring has now 
been submitted. Any updated recommendation from WRS will be reported as late material.

Economic Considerations
6.33 The construction phase would support employment opportunities and therefore the 

proposal would have some economic benefit. In the context of the NPPF advice that 
‘significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth through the 
planning system’, this adds some weight to the case for granting permission. 

6.34 The proposed development will facilitate the expansion of an established business with the 
creation of additional 60 jobs.

6.35 Policy B1 of the Emerging City Plan requires the developer of any major development to 
submit and Employment and Skills Plan (ESP). This is a series of objectives to be delivered 
through the construction lifecycle of the project, covering a variety of interventions including 
work experience, construction careers events and promotion around community 
engagement. The Growth and Delivery Officer has recommended that a condition to secure 
the submission, approval and implementation of an ESP.

6.36 Conclusion
This application has been considered in the context of the policies and guidance referred to 
above. The proposal is consistent with those policies and guidance in terms of design, 
materials, highway safety implications, impact upon the amenity of any neighbours and the 
local area; the proposal is acceptable and accordingly it is recommended that planning 
permission be granted.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY GROWTH AND DELIVERY MANAGER

7.1 That planning permission is GRANTED subject to the following conditions;

Condition 1
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason
Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Condition 2
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the application 

Page 63



form, and drawings:
 9503/PL001   - Site Location Plan
 9503/PL020C - Proposed Site Layout Plan
 9503/PL030B - Proposed Ground Floor
 9503/PL031A - Proposed First Floor
 9503/PL035B - Proposed Elevations
 9503/PL050   - Sprinkler Tank and Pump House
 Proposed Storage Tents - Roder HTS Hocker GmbH drawings Version 1 dated 

04/09/2019

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason
To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

Condition 3
Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that 
required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not 
commence until Parts A to D below have been complied with. If unexpected contamination 
is found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site 
affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing until Part D has been complied with in relation to that contamination. 

A. Site Characterisation 
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the 
planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature 
and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The 
contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent 
persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject 
to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must 
include: 

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

• human health, 
• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, 
• adjoining land, 
• groundwaters and surface waters, 
• ecological systems, 
• archeological sites and ancient monuments; 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 

B. Submission of Remediation Scheme 
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use 
by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the 
natural and historical environment must be prepared and is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works 
and site management procedures. The scheme must accord with the provisions of the EPA 
1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. 

Page 64



C. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to 
the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, 
unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority 
must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme 
works. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a 
verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

D. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to 
the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with the requirements of Part A, and where remediation is necessary a 
remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of Part B, 
which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a 
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority in accordance with Part C. 

E. Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance 
A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term effectiveness of 
the proposed remediation over an appropriate time period, and the provision of reports on 
the same must be prepared, both of which are subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the remediation 
objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
monitoring and maintenance carried out must be produced and submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority. 

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 

Reason 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy FRP.15 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002). 

Pre-commencement conditions for contaminated land risk assessment are considered 
necessary for the following reasons: 

 There is potential for contamination to exist on the site. The degree and extent of 
contamination is currently unknown. More information relating to ground conditions 
is required to determine whether or not remediation will be required (prior to any 
construction work commencing). 

 Where remediation is necessary, this remediation may involve work/techniques that 
need to be completed before any development is commenced, for example and 
removal from site of contaminated soils/underground structures, the design and 
incorporation of gas protection measures in any buildings etc. To carry out such 

Page 65



work after construction has started/ben completed, may require potentially 
expensive retro-fitting and in some cases the demolition of construction work already 
completed.

Condition 4
The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a detailed Sustainable 
Drainage System (SuDS) Strategy, based on the proposal set out in the submitted FRA & 
Drainage Strategy (Infrastructure Design Studio, Project no. 1502 Revision C 20-01-
20), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
SuDS Strategy must include a detailed design, maintenance schedule, confirmation of the 
management arrangements and a timetable for implementation. The SuDS Strategy must 
demonstrate the technical feasibility/viability of the drainage system through the use of 
SuDS to manage the flood risk to the site and elsewhere and the measures taken to 
manage the water quality for the lifetime of the development. The scheme for the surface 
water drainage shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before the 
development is first put in to use/occupied.

Reason
To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and thereby 
preventing the risk of flooding. It is important that these details are agreed prior to the 
commencement of development as any works on site could have implications for drainage, 
flood risk and water quality in the locality.

Condition 5
The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a Flood Warning & Evacuation 
Plan (FWEP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved FWEP shall be implemented in full prior to the development is first 
brought into use and maintained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason
To ensure that the development remains safe for its users over the lifetime of the 
development. It is important that these details are agreed prior to the commencement of 
development as any works on site could have implications for flood risk in the locality.

Condition 6
No development approved by this permission shall be occupied until a scheme for the 
provision of compensatory flood storage works has been implemented in accordance with 
Figure 6 of the Flood Risk Assessment Revision C (dated 20/01/2020) based on layout 
drawing 9503/PL020B.

Reason
To alleviate the increased risk of flooding.

Condition 7
The development hereby permitted shall not commence until drainage plans for the 
disposal of foul water flows have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and the scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is first brought into use. 

Reason
This is to ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage as 
well as to prevent or to avoid exacerbating any flooding issues and to minimise the risk of 
pollution. 

Condition 8
Page 66



No development works above DPC level shall take place until details or samples of 
materials to be used externally on walls, roofs, windows and external doors, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development.

Condition 9
Notwithstanding the details submitted no development works above DPC level shall take 
place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submitted design shall include scaled drawings and a written 
specification clearly describing the species, sizes, densities, planting numbers and a 
specification of the details for the tree planting pits.  Drawings must include accurate details 
of all existing trees and hedgerows with their location, species, size, condition, any 
proposed tree surgery and an indication of which are to be retained and which are to be 
removed.

Reason
To ensure that appropriate measures are in place to ensure a satisfactory and well-planned 
development and to preserve and enhance the quality of the environment.

Condition 10
The landscaping scheme approved under condition 9 above shall be carried out 
concurrently with the development hereby permitted and shall be completed no later than 
the first planting season following the completion of the development.  The planting shall be 
maintained for a period of 5 years.  During this time any trees, shrubs or other plants which 
are removed, die, or are seriously retarded shall be replaced during the next planting 
season with others of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
written consent to any variation.  If any plants fail more than once they shall continue to be 
replaced on an annual basis until the end of the 5-year maintenance period.

Reason
To ensure a satisfactory and well-planned development and to preserve and enhance the 
quality of the environment.

Condition 11
Notwithstanding the submitted drawings, no development works above DPC level shall 
take place until there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type of all boundary 
treatments. The boundary treatment shall be completed in accordance with a timetable to 
be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out 
and thereafter maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason
In the interests of visual amenity. 

Condition 12
Notwithstanding the requirements of condition 13 below, prior to the occupation of the 
development hereby permitted the vehicular access shall be laid out and constructed 
broadly in accordance with the submitted plan 9503 / PL020 C.

Reason
To reduce potential highway impact by ensuring that there is a safe, suitable and secure 
means of access for all people that minimises the scope for conflict between traffic and 

Page 67



cyclists and pedestrians in accordance with paragraph 108 and 110 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

Condition 13
Notwithstanding condition 12 above, the vehicular access above shall have a minimum 
entrance width of 6.0m, kerbed entry radii of 10.0m with any gates situated at least 10.0m 
back from the carriageway edge of the public road and hung so as not to open outwards 
towards the public highway and with the area of access road within at least 10.0m of the 
carriageway edge of the public road surfaced in bound material. The vehicular access shall 
thereafter be similarly maintained.

Reason
To reduce potential highway impact by ensuring that there is a safe, suitable and secure 
means of access for all people that minimises the scope for conflict between traffic and 
cyclists and pedestrians in accordance with paragraph 108 and 110 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

Condition 14
The buildings hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the vehicular parking, turning 
and loading/unloading facilities have been provided in accordance with the submitted plan 
9503 / PL020 C, and those facilities shall be maintained available for those purposes 
thereafter.

Reason
To ensure that a safe, suitable and secure means of access for all people that minimises 
the scope for conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians is provided in accordance 
with the paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition 15
Notwithstanding the submitted details, the car parking hereby permitted shall be designed 
to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe, accessible and 
convenient locations.

Reason
To ensure that the development incorporates facilitates for charging plug-in and other ultra-
low emission vehicles in accordance with paragraph 110 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

Condition 16
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a minimum of 13 no. cycle 
storage facilities has been provided and those facilities shall be maintained for the lifetime 
of the development.

Reason
To give priority to cycle movements by ensuring that adequate cycle parking is provided, to 
promote cycle use and to ensure that the appropriate opportunities for sustainable 
transport modes have been taken up in accordance with paragraph 108 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. Condition

Condition 17
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until pedestrian improvements 
consisting of dropped kerb tactile paving crossing points between Hempsted Lane and the 
site have been provided and made available for use in accordance with details, including a 
phased programme for their implementation, which shall first be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 68



Reason
To ensure that safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users and that 
the priority is first given to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme and 
with neighbouring areas; and second – so far as possible – to facilitating access to high 
quality public transport, in accordance with paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

Condition 18
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until signage demonstrating 
‘entrance’ and ‘exit’ only (or similar) at the site access junctions, lining rationalising the 
Spinnaker Road hierarchy to the south of the ‘Existing Entrance (goods out)’ junction and 
demonstrating clear junction stop lines on the ‘Existing Entrance’ and reception/visitor 
parking bays have been provided and made available for use in accordance with details, 
including a phased programme for their implementation, which shall first be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason
To minimise hazards and inconvenience for users of the development by ensuring that 
there is a safe, suitable and secure means of access for all people that minimises the 
scope for conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians in accordance with 
paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition 19
The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until fire hydrants have 
been provided in accordance with a scheme which has first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The fire hydrants so provided shall 
thereafter be maintained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason 
To ensure adequate water infrastructure provision is made on site for the local fire service 
to tackle any property fire.

Condition 20
The buildings hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the informal access(es) fronting 
the site along Spinnaker Road has/have been constructed to an adoptable standard.

Reason
To ensure that a safe, suitable and secure means of access for all people that minimises 
the conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians is provided in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition 21
Throughout the construction and demolition period of the development hereby permitted 
provision shall be within the site that is sufficient to accommodate the likely demand 
generated for the following:

i. parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials;
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
iv. wheel washing facilities.

Reason
To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and accommodate the efficient 
delivery of goods in accordance with paragraph 110 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

Page 69



Condition 22
Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development hereby permitted shall not be 
occupied until a Travel Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, setting out;

i. objectives and targets for promoting sustainable travel, 
ii. appointment and funding of a travel plan coordinator, 
iii. details of an annual monitoring and review process,
iv. means of funding of the travel plan, and; 
v. an implementation timetable including the responsible body for each action.

The approved Travel Plan shall be implemented and thereafter operated in accordance 
with the details and timetable therein.

Reason
The development will generate a significant amount of movement and to ensure that the 
appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes are taken up in 
accordance with paragraphs 108 and 111 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition 23
Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 and Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking 
and/or re-enacting those orders with or without modification), the premises shall solely be 
used as described in the details submitted within the planning application and shall only 
operate ancillary to Hydro Components UK Ltd and shall not be used for any other purpose 
falling within Use Classes B2; without express planning permission.

Reason
Alternative use would require further consideration by the Local Planning Authority because 
of traffic/parking implications.

Condition 24
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until an Employment and Skills 
Training Plan, tailored to the development, has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development should be subsequently carried out in 
accordance with this approved plan. 

Reason
In the interests of delivering local employment and skills training opportunities in 
accordance with Policy B1 of the Emerging Gloucester City Plan 2011-2031. 

Condition 25
No development shall be occupied until details of the provision made for maximising the re-
use, recycling and recovery of waste generated during the occupation phase in line with the 
waste hierarchy have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. All details of the management of waste generated during the occupation phase 
shall be fully implemented as approved. 

Reason
To ensure the effective implementation of waste minimisation in accordance with 
Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy: Core Policy WCS2 – Waste Reduction.

Notes:

Page 70



Note I: The alterations to the access must be undertaken by the Highway Authority or its 
appointed agents. An Agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 will be 
required.

Note 2: The applicant/developer is advised to contact Gloucestershire Highways 08000 
514 514 to discuss whether your development will require traffic management measures on 
the public highway.

Note 3: The applicant/developer is advised that it is an offence under section 161 of the 
Highway Act 1980 to deposit anything on a highway the consequence of which a user of 
the highway is injured or endangered. It is strongly recommended that during any forms of 
earthworks and/or excavations that are carried out as part of the development, suitable 
vehicle wheel washing equipment should be provided and used within the site, to prevent 
contamination and damage to the adjacent roads.

Note 4: The developer will be expected to meet the full costs of supplying and installing the 
associated infrastructure.

Note 5: The Employment and Skills Plan required by the condition above should be agreed 
as soon as possible before any development contracts are prepared and should be in 
accordance with the guidance in the Gloucester City Council document Informal Guidance 
Note on Employment and Skills Plans in the City of Gloucester (2019), in cooperation with 
the Economic Development & Regeneration Team.

Person to Contact: Caroline Townley (396780)

Page 71



Planning Application: 19/01096/FUL

Address: Land at Spinnaker Road 
Gloucester 

Committee Date: 3rd March 2020

© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 10019169
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Page 72



When printed correctly, at A3, this line will measure 75mm at full size
W

h
e
n
 p
ri
n
te

d
 c

o
rr
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
t 

A
3
, 
th
is
 l
in
e
 w
il
l 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 7

5
m

m
 a
t 
fu
ll
 s
iz
e

CHECK PRINTED SIZE

Date: Scale: Drawing No:

 

  
 
This drawing is the copyright of Roberts Limbrick Ltd and should not be reproduced in whole or in part or used in any manner whatsoever without their written permission.

Subject to correct printing. See top left.

The Carriage Building   Bruton Way   Gloucester   GL1 1DG                     T: 03333 405 500 

The Estates Office   25 - 26 Gold Tops   Newport   NP20 4PG                    E: mail@robertslimbrick.com

S
ta
n
d
s

C
lu
b

H
o
u
se

6

8

C
4

C
3 C

1

C
2

B

A
4

A
1

A
3

A
2

1
6

1
8

2
0

El Sub Sta

Spinnaker House

Tank

Football

Ground

L Twr S
M

S
M

10.2m

Sports Ground

L Twr

Chy

S
u
b
 S
ta

E
l

D
rain

S
P
IN

N
A
K
E
R
 R

O
A
D

S
P
IN

N
A
K
E
R
 R

O
A
D

H
E

M
P
S

T
E

A
D
 L

A
N

E

(EXISTING BUILDING)

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

9.49

9.56
9.54

9.75

9.63

9.73

9.51

9.39

9.41

9.49

9.50

10.03

9.98

10.02

9.54

9.53

9.58

9.58

9.59

9.72

9.75

10.16

10.15

10.19

10.06

10.03

9.07

9.39

9.33

9.18

9.30

9.28

9.08

8.98

8.93

8.94

a
s
s
u

m
e
d
 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 
o
f
 
d
it
c
h

9.23

9.27

9.46

9.45

9.98

9.94

9.91

10.05

9.80

9.94

9.88

9.91

9.77

9.90

9.74

9.82

9.85

9.78

9.86

9.99

9.90

9.90

9.93

9.56

9.42

9.44

9.54

9.51

9.49

9.53

9.62

9.41

9.43

9.61

9.81

9.72

9.79

9.82

9.87

9.88

9.90

9.76

9.68

9.70

10.03

10.12

10.06

10.03

10.02

10.04

10.06

10.09

10.01

10.12

10.07

10.05

10.02

9.48

9.48

9.42

9.36

9.68

9.56

9.40

9.48

9.62

9.51

9.60

9.49

9.45

9.22

9.11

9.14
9.39

9.09

9.12

9.28
9.10

9.28

9.27

9.30

9.40

9.37

7
.0
1

7
.0
1

7
.1
2

7
.1
4

s
w
a
le

7.62

7.62

8.71

8.59

7.46

7.38

7.30

7.27

7.31

7.32

7.36

7.36

7.25

7.21

7.32

7.50

7.48

7.53

7.54

7.56

7.64

7.63

8.68

7.74

7.47

7.45

8.16

7.75

7.79

8.01

9.21

9.23

7.35

9.21

7.38

9.28

9.29

7.58

7.42

9.17

9.97

9.06

10.04

7.45

7.52

10.06

9.17

7.34

7.35

7.56

7.54

10.06

10.05

7.52

10.04

7.52

7.55

7.57

7.83

7.79

7.88

7.89

8.51

8.00

7
.0
1

6
.9
2

6
.7
4

6
.7
0

6
.8
5

6
.9
3

7
.0
3

7
.2
0

7
.1
2

6
.8
9

7
.0
2

7
.0
3

7
.0
7

6
.9
6

6
.9
8

H
E

M
P
S

T
E

D
 

L
A

N
E

9.23

9.27

9.46

9.45

9.98

9.94

9.91

10.05

9.80

9.94

9.88

9.91

9.77

9.90

9.74

9.82

9.85

9.78

9.86

9.99

9.90

9.90

9.93

9.56

9.42

9.44

9.54

9.51

9.49

9.53

9.62

9.41

9.43

9.61

9.81

9.72

9.79

9.82

9.87

9.88

9.90

9.76

9.68

9.70

10.03

10.12

10.06

10.03

10.02

10.04

10.06

10.09

10.01

10.12

10.07

10.05

10.02

9.48

9.48

9.42

9.36

9.68

9.56

9.40

9.48

9.62

9.51

9.60

9.49

9.45

9.22

9.11

9.14
9.39

9.09

9.28
9.10

9.28

9.27

9.30

9.40

9.37

9.49

9.56
9.54

9.75

9.63

9.73

9.51

9.39

9.41

9.49

9.50

10.03

9.98

10.02

9.54

9.53

9.58

9.58

9.59

9.72

9.75

10.16

10.15

10.19

10.06

10.03

9.07

9.39

9.33

9.18

9.30

9.28

9.08

8.98

8.93

8.94

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

wst

7
.0
1

7
.0
1

7
.1
2

7
.1
4

7.90

7.71

7.75

7.74

7.81

8.27

9.13

9.05

9.10

9.21

9.32

9.38

7.83

7.79

7.88

7.89

8.51

8.00

7.62

7.62

8.71

8.59

7.46

7.38

7.30

7.27

7.31

7.32

7.36

7.36

7.25

7.21

7.32

7.50

7.48

7.53

7.54

7.56

7.64

7.63

8.68

7.74

7.47

7.45

8.16

7.75

7.79

8.01

9.23

7.35

9.28

9.29

7.58

7.42

9.17

9.97

9.06

10.04

7.45

7.52

10.06

7.56

7.54

10.06

10.05

7.52

10.04

7.52

7.55

7.57

9.55

9.27

9.64

9.63

9.33

9.38

9.34

9.36

9.52

9.45

9.43

9.62

9.66

9.47

9.69

9.67

9.64

9.71

9.66

9.56

9.61

9.50

9.52

lp

lp

lp

9.73

9.61

9.77

9.79

9.78

9.74

9.62

9.62

9.73

9.62

9.73

9.68

9.70

ST ANN W
AY

7.90

7.71

7.75

7.74

7.81

8.27

8.29

6
.9
0

9.13

9.05

9.10

9.21

9.32

9.38

Football Ground

S
U

D
M

E
A

D
O

W
 R

O
A

D

HYDRO

Site Ownership Boundary

9503 /

Hydro Components UK Ltd. Proposed Extension at Hempsted, Gloucester

Site Location Plan September 2019 1/1250 @ A3 PL001

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



When printed correctly, at A1, this line will measure 100mm at full size
W

h
e
n
 p
ri
n
te

d
 c

o
rr
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
t 

A
1
, 
th
is
 l
in
e
 w
il
l 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 1

0
0

m
m
 a
t 
fu
ll
 s
iz
e

CHECK PRINTED SIZE

Date: Scale: Drawing No:

 

  
 
This drawing is the copyright of Roberts Limbrick Ltd and should not be reproduced in whole or in part or used in any manner whatsoever without their written permission.

Subject to correct printing. See top left.

The Carriage Building   Bruton Way   Gloucester   GL1 1DG                     T: 03333 405 500 

The Estates Office   25 - 26 Gold Tops   Newport   NP20 4PG                    E: mail@robertslimbrick.com

S
ta
n
d
s

C
lu
b

H
o
u
se

1
6

1
8

2
0

El Sub Sta

Spinnaker House

Stands

Football

Ground

L Twr S
M

S
M

Sports Ground

Football Ground

L Twr

S
u
b
 S
ta

E
l

(EXISTING BUILDING)

9.39

9.41

9.49

9.23

9.27

7
.0
1

7
.0
1

7
.1
2

7
.1
4

s
w
a
le

7.62

7.62

8.71

8.59

7.46

7.38

7.30

7.27

7.31

7.32

7.36

7.36

7.25

7.21

7.32

7.50

7.48

7.53

7.54

7.56

7.64

7.63

8.68

7.74

7.47

7.45

8.16

7.75

7.79

8.01

9.21

9.23

7.35

9.21

7.38

9.28

9.29

7.58

7.42

9.17

9.97

9.06

10.04

7.45

7.52

10.06

9.17

7.34

7.35

7.56

7.54

10.06

10.05

7.52

10.04

7.52

7.55

7.57

7.83

7.79

7.88

8.51

7
.1
2

7
.0
2

7
.0
3

7
.0
7

6
.9
6

6
.9
8

9.23

9.27

9.39

9.41

9.49

7
.0
1

7
.0
1

7
.1
2

7
.1
4

9.13

9.05

9.10

9.21

9.32

9.38

7.83

7.79

7.88

8.51

7.62

7.62

8.71

8.59

7.46

7.38

7.30

7.27

7.31

7.32

7.36

7.36

7.25

7.21

7.32

7.50

7.48

7.53

7.54

7.56

7.64

7.63

8.68

7.74

7.47

7.45

8.16

7.75

7.79

8.01

9.23

7.35

9.28

9.29

7.58

7.42

9.17

9.97

9.06

10.04

7.45

7.52

10.06

7.56

7.54

10.06

10.05

7.52

10.04

7.52

7.55

7.57

9.13

9.05

9.10

9.21

9.32

9.38

Football Ground

HYDRO

10.34

10.28

1
0
.3

2

FL 11.07

1
0
.8

0

1
0
.8

5

1
0
.8

8

1
0
.8

4

1
0
.7

3

10.19

1
0
.9

2

1
0
.7

1

1
0
.6

8

9
.9

8

1
0
.6

9

1
0
.7

6

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

PT

PT

1
0
.7

5

R
is
e
r

G
A
S

SV

Sign

S
ig

n

GV

1
0
.4

2

1
0
.5

4

1
0
.6

1

10.71

1
0
.6

9

1
0
.7

1

1
0
.7

1

1
0
.6

9

BL

BL

BL

BH
10.46

7
.3

8

7
.4

3

7
.2

9

7
.4

1

7
.2

8

7
.2

5

7
.8

8

8
.0

0

7
.9

3

217900 N 217900 N

217950 N 217950 N

218000 N

3
8
1
8
5
0
 

E

3
8
1
9
0
0
 

E

3
8
1
9
5
0
 

E

218000 N

217850 N

3
8
1
8
5
0
 

E

217900 N

3
8
2
0
0
0
 

E

3
8
1
9
0
0
 

E

217950 N

3
8
1
9
5
0
 

E

3
8
2
0
0
0
 

E

3
8
1
9
5
0
 

E

3
8
1
9
0
0
 

E

3
8
2
0
0
0
 

E

ER EXTENSION
PROPOSED

S
1

N
E

W
 A

C
C
E
S
S
 R

O
A
D

Existing Building

Skips

Waste 

4
2
N
o
. 
P
a
rk
in
g
 S
p
a
ce
s

217900 N

C
ycles

E
E

A
cc
.

A
cc
.

A
cc
.

6

4

4

2

1
6

2

35

73N
o. P

arking S
paces

Storage Tent

Storage Tent

Tent

Circulation 

Vehicle 

4
5
0
0

extension
Proposed lean-to 

pump house.

New sprinkler tank & 

C
o
n
cr
e
te
 s
u
rf
a
ce
 f
in
is
h

T
a
rm

a
c 
su
rf
a
ce
 f
in
is
h

Entrance
Existing 

area

gate and access 

New pedestrian 

out)
(goods 
Entrance
Existing 

palisade fencing.

extent of new 2.4m 

Dashed blue line indicates 

4

ro
lle
r 
sh

u
tt
e
r

ro
lle
r 
sh

u
tt
e
r

x-w
ire bay

x-w
ire bay

18.00 x 40.00 x 5.20m

x-w
ire bay

x-w
ire bay

gutter link

x-w
ire bay

x-w
ire bay

18.00 x 40.00 x 5.20m

x-w
ire bay

roller shutter

gutter link

open side

roller shutter

x-w
ire bay

o
p
e
n
 g
a
b
le

o
p
e
n
 g
a
b
le

open side

x-w
ire bay

12.00 x 40.00 x 5.20m

steel w
alling

x-w
ire bay

distance)

(3m from kerb and 34m 

axis of highways visibility

Dashed orange line indicates 

greenify area

landscape planting to 

indicates extent of soft 

Green shaded area 

2.4m palisade fencing.

Dashed blue line indicates extent of new 

spaces

car parking 

7No. additional 

Sub-Station

Future 

represents knee rail

Purple dashed line 

trees

Small native 

cycle storage

A
dditional secure 

E
E

E
E

E

A
dditional E

V
 parking open during operating hours)

New sliding gate (always 

Water & power supplies

New pedestrian gate and stepped path

(goods in / ingress only)
Existing Entrance 

operating hours)

(always open during 

and new sliding gate fitted 

Existing gate demolished 

Tactile paving and drop kerbs

DRAWING REFERENCE 'G 9453 / 1 & G 9453 / 2'.
SURVEY INFORMATION FROM 'LASER SURVEYS'

Concrete yard 

Tarmac Road

Tarmac Footpath

Soft Landscaping

Gravel

Existing Building

Building Extensions / Tents

9503 /

Hydro Components UK Ltd. Proposed Extension at Hempsted, Gloucester

Proposed Site Layout July 2019 1/500 @ A1 PL020 C

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL - DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning

Date: 3rd March 2020

Address/Location: Kings Quarter & Kings Square, Gloucester 

Application No: 18/01454/FUL & 19/01212/LBC

Ward: Westgate

Expiry Date: 11th June 2019 & 21st January 2020

Applicant: Gloucester City Council

Proposal:

Hybrid Planning Application for the redevelopment of Kings Square and land 
known as Kings Quarter, Gloucester seeking: 
 
(i) Full planning permission for: 
 
public realm works, access and parking alterations, landscaping and 
associated infrastructure improvements and demolition of structures at Kings 
Square, The Oxebode and St Aldate Street; and the demolition of existing 
buildings and structures and the creation of a mixed use development 
comprising development blocks 1, 2, 3a and 3b to provide; a new multi-storey 
car park (sui generis); residential dwellings (C3) (101 units); commercial retail 
(A1,A2) / food and drink (A3,A4) / office space (B1); refurbishment of Kings 
House to provide a new creative hub (B1) with ancillary exhibition space (D1) 
and food-hall (A3); and associated access, utilities infrastructure, substation 
relocation, highway works, wider public realm and landscaping works on land 
at Northgate Street, Spread Eagle Road, Market Parade, Station Road and 
Bruton Way.  

(ii) Outline planning permission for 
 
the demolition of existing buildings, structures and multi storey car park and the 
development of proposed blocks 3c, 3d and 4 comprising residential 
development (C3) (up to 55 units), commercial/retail space (A1,A2,A3,A4, B1), 
hotel (C1)  and office space (B1) with all matters reserved except for access on 
the land at Spread Eagle Road, Market Parade and Bruton Way.

(iii) Listed Building Consent for

External works to Grade 2 listed building comprising; minor works to eastern 
elevation, chimney and building frontage resulting from construction of adjacent 
new building (referred to as 'plot 1') within wider Kings Quarter redevelopment 
proposals submitted under hybrid planning application 18/01454/FUL.

Report by: Adam Smith

Appendices: Site location plan 
Ground floor masterplan

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The site comprises a large expanse of land between Northgate Street and Bruton Way 
totalling approximately 3 hectares and including;

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



- Kings Square, The Oxbode and St Aldate’s Street
- Kings House (the building containing the Chambers public house) fronting the square 

and Market Parade
- Grosvenor House, the old bus station site and Market Parade up to the junction next to 

the Land Registry building
- The multi storey car park and Bentinck House office block (which now benefits from a 

prior approval for demolition)
- Market Parade up to Bruton Way and land to the north west of Market Parade backing 

onto Spread Eagle Way
- Land adjacent to Northgate Street and Spread Eagle Way (104 Northgate Street)

1.2 The surroundings include a variety of commercial and a limited amount of residential 
premises, including the new bus station immediately to the south, the railway station across 
Bruton Way, office buildings, and retail premises including Debenhams and Kings Walk 
fronting the Square. Existing residential premises and buildings with permission for 
residential use are set out in the Officer analysis below.

1.3 The planning application is submitted as a hybrid application whereby the development is 
proposed in outline form with several detailed phases for full permission. In summary the 
proposals include the following; 

Detailed phases:
- Demolition of all standing buildings with the exception of Kings House (Plot 3a);
- Public realm renewal and associated structures in Kings Square;
- Construction of a 4-5 storey building for residential and commercial use at Northgate 

Street (Plot 1);
- Construction of a 7 storey building for a multi storey car park, residential and 

commercial use broadly on the plot of Grosvenor House/old bus station (Plot 2);
- Conversion, extension and re-cladding of Kings House (Plot 3a);
- Construction of a 5 storey building for residential and commercial fronting Market 

Parade next to Kings House (Plot 3b);
- Public realm works within the new development along Market Parade and along a new 

street formed between plots 2 and 4;
- 101 residential units in total within the detailed phases.

Outline phases:
- Construction of building of up to 5 storeys for residential and commercial (comprised 

of Class A1 (shops), A2 (financial and professional services), A3 (restaurants and 
cafes), A4 (drinking establishments) and B1 (business) fronting Market Parade (Plot 
3c);

- Construction of a building of up to 4 storeys for residential and commercial (comprised 
of Class A1, A2, A3, A4 and B1) fronting Market Parade (Plot 3d);

- Construction of a building of up to 6 storeys for hotel, office and commercial 
(comprised of Class A1, A2, A3, A4 and B1) broadly on the plot of the existing multi 
storey car park (Plot 4);

- Up to 55 residential units in total within the outline phases.

The Listed Building Consent application has been submitted because the proposed building 
at Plot 1 would physically attach to the grade 2 listed 102 Northgate Street and constitute a 
work of alteration. 

1.4 In further detail the proposals comprise:

Kings Square – detailed phase
Page 78



Renewal of the existing public realm including:

Demolition of the standing structures; 
Removal of 8 trees (3 retained);
Laying of new public realm hard surfacing;
Installation of bespoke ‘structural edging’ to the square providing stepped seating and 
retaining walls, in pre-cast concrete. These are curved and not to a consistent size but are 
around 0.5 to 1.5m high, and 1 to 3.5m deep;
Installation of fountains and associated infrastructure. Water jets would be individually 
programmed to alter flow, colour and height to produce different patterns;
Installation of below ground surface water attenuation infrastructure;
Planting of 9 new trees around the edge of the square;
Installation of bespoke lighting scheme.

1.5 Plot 1 – detailed phase
A 4-5 storey building (comprising 3 storeys with roof accommodation at the Northgate Street 
frontage), faced in brick and metal cladding. A retail/commercial unit (use classes A1, A2, A3, 
A4, B1) is proposed onto Northgate Street at ground floor, and 25 residential units in the 
remainder of the building (9x1 beds, 16x2 beds).

1.6 The building would physically attach to the adjacent listed building no. 102 Northgate Street 
using a system with sleeved sliding ties that will not load the existing wall either horizontally 
or vertically, with a gap of 15mm between the existing and new walls sealed with mastic.

1.7 Plot 2 – detailed phase
A 7 storey multi storey car park accessed off Station Road/Market Parade (by the existing 
taxi rank). Commercial uses (A1, A2, A3, A4, B1) at ground and part first floors, and public 
toilets off the south west elevation, accessed off Station Road by the taxi rank. 60 residential 
units are proposed in the remainder of the building (16x1 beds, 40x2 beds, 4x3 beds) 
wrapping around the car park to overlook Market Parade and the new street (‘Cathedral 
View’) to the north east, on the upper floors. The building would be faced in brick, sandstone 
and metal cladding.

1.8 Plot 3a (Kings House) – detailed phase
The replacement of the existing elevations with a curtain wall glazing and perforated metal 
cladding over at the upper floors. The cladding incorporates an opening to allow for a TV 
screen, but the screen is not part of this application having been approved under a separate 
application already. Extensions are proposed at roof level to add a single storey of 
accommodation with a terrace around. These extensions would be faced in a metal cladding, 
and the ground floor would have a stone cladding. 

1.9 Plot 3b – detailed phase
A 5 storey building comprising of a commercial unit (A1, A2, A3, A4, B1) at ground floor 
fronting Market Parade, and 16 residential flats in the upper floors (8x1 beds, 8x2 beds). The 
building would be faced in two brick types and a metal cladding.  

1.10 Plot 3c – outline phase
A building of up to 5 storeys (with a 3 storey section to allow views of the Cathedral at the 
end of the new street), with commercial units (A1, A2, A3, A4, B1) at ground floor and up to 
32 residential units over (proposed as 10x1 beds, 18x2 beds, 4x3 beds). As it is an outline 
phase the detailed design is not submitted.

1.11 Plot 3d – outline phase
A building of up to 4 storeys (with a 1 storey section to protect the amenities of adjacent 
occupiers), with commercial units (A1, A2, A3, A4, B1) at ground floor and up to 23 

Page 79



residential units over (proposed as 10x1 beds, 12x2 beds and 1x3 bed).  

1.12 Plot 4 – outline phase
A building of up to 6 storeys, for use as hotel and office, with part ground floor for commercial 
(A1, A2, A3, A4, B1). Beneath Plot 4 there is a proposal to construct a new chamber to 
contain the culverted River Twyver, to allow for maintenance access. 

1.13 Public realm
New surfacing and planting to Market Parade/Station Road and around the proposed new 
buildings, including to the new street formed between plots 2 and 4 (‘Cathedral View’). 

Re-arrangement of the taxi rank provision, retaining certain bays in the existing locations, and 
a new bay off Bruton Way (north of the new bus station). Re-organisation of those at The 
Oxbode and Station Road. 

Removal of 18 trees, retention of 8 existing (notably at the bottom of Clarence Street/taxi 
rank area, by the old bus station entrance, and along Bruton Way).

1.14 The site is partially within the City Centre and London Road Conservation Areas, and fronts 
onto the Eastgate and St Michael’s Conservation Area. The site contains a Scheduled 
Monument at Kings Square (Glevum Roman colonia). The site (Plot 1) is adjacent to a Grade 
2 listed building at Northgate Street. The site includes areas of Flood zone 1, 2 and 3 on the 
Environment Agency’s flood map (these zonings are considered in more detail later in the 
report).

1.15 The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement, which considers traffic and 
transport, air quality, noise and vibration, archaeology and cultural heritage, townscape and 
visual impact, and flood risk and water resources. An Environment Statement addendum was 
submitted alongside the amended scheme in November 2019, reporting on the additional 
archaeological, flood modelling work and design changes, and covering heritage and 
archaeology, flood risk and water resources, townscape and visual, traffic and transport, air 
quality, and noise and vibration,  and updating the conclusions. 

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application 
Number

Proposal Decision Decision 
Date   

Kings Square
11/00196/CON Demolition of building comprising former 

public convenience and a retail unit.
Granted 7.4.11

11/00197/DDD Infilling of sunken access area to below 
ground public conveniences and 
reinstatement of land to a grassed area 
with modified and new low level walling.

Granted 7.4.11

2014 Demolition of Golden Egg
18/00576/ADV Installation of rotating digital screen  

(3840mm x 7680 mm) mounted on 
galvanised mast.

Withdrawn

Plot 1 / 104 
Northgate Street
06/01074/FUL Erection of 4 and 5 storey residential 

building consisting of 34 apartments with 
single shop/office unit on Northgate Street

Granted subject to 
conditions

19.12.2006

Page 80



Plot 2 / 
Grosvenor 
House
18/01433/DEM Demolition of 12-16 Grosvenor House and 

the former bus station canopy, barriers and 
street furniture.

Prior approval 
granted

31.01.2019

Plot 3a
19/00740/ADV Display of LED screen (8000mm x 

4480mm) at first floor level
Granted subject to 
conditions

15.08.2019

Plots 3b, c & d
10/00832/FUL Use of land for car parking and vehicular 

access from service yard off Spread Eagle 
Road

Granted temporary 
permission to 
January 2012

27.01.2011

10/00833/COU Use of land as a car park including 3 no. 
spaces for use in association with taxi 
business, and vehicular access from 
service yard off Spread Eagle Road.

Granted temporary 
permission to 
January 2012

27.01.2011

14/00778/FUL Use of land for car parking and vehicular 
access from service yard off Spread Eagle 
Road

Granted temporary 
permission to 2017

09.10.2014

Plot 4 / Multi 
storey car park 
& Bentinck 
House
19/01119/DEM Demolition of a ten-level multi-storey car 

park with night club located under and 7-
storey office block

Prior approval 
granted 

31.01.2020

Land adjacent to 
site:
15/01142/FUL Demolition of buildings, tree removal and 

redevelopment of site to provide a new bus 
station, highways and access works, 
landscaping and associated infrastructure 
works including provision of emergency 
staircase on existing NCP car park

Granted subject to 
conditions

17.12.2015

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this 
application:

3.2 National guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance

3.3 Development Plan
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted 11 December 
2017)
Relevant policies from the JCS include:

SP1 - The need for new development Page 81



SP2 – Distribution of new development 
SD2 – Retail and City/Town centres
SD3 – Sustainable design and construction
SD4 – Design requirements
SD8 – Historic Environment
SD9 – Biodiversity and geodiversity
SD10 – Residential development
SD11 – Housing mix and standards
SD12 – Affordable housing 
SD14 – Health and environmental quality
INF1 –Transport network
INF2 – Flood risk management
INF3 – Green Infrastructure
INF4 – Social and community Infrastructure
INF6 – Infrastructure delivery
INF7 – Developer contributions

3.4 Emerging Development Plan
Gloucester City Plan
The Pre-Submission version of the Gloucester City Plan (City Plan) was approved for 
publication and submission at the Council meeting held on 26 September 2019. On the basis of 
the stage of preparation that the plan has reached, and the consistency of its policies with the 
NPPF, the emerging policies of the plan can be afforded limited to moderate weight in 
accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF, subject to the extent to which there are unresolved 
objections to each individual policy (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater 
the weight that may be given).

Policies:
A1 – Effective and efficient use of land and buildings
A2 – Affordable Housing
A6 – Accessible and adaptable homes
B1 – Employment and skills plan
B2 – Safeguarding employment sites and buildings
B3 – New employment development and intensification and improvements to existing 
employment land
B5 – Tourism and culture
B6 – Protection of public houses
C1 – Active design and accessibility
C3 – Public open space, playing fields and sports facilities
C5 – Air quality
C7 – Fall prevention from taller buildings
C8 – Changing places toilets
D1 – Historic environment
D2 – Non designated heritage assets
D3 – Recording and advancing understanding of heritage assets
D4 – Shopfronts, shutters and signs
D5 – Views of the Cathedral and historic places of worship
E2 – Biodiversity and geodiversity
E4 – Trees, woodlands and hedgerows
E5 – Green infrastructure: Building with Nature
E6 – Flooding, sustainable drainage, and wastewater
E8 – Development affecting Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area of Conservation
F1 – Materials and finishes
F2 – Landscape and planting
F3 – Community safety

Page 82



F4 – Gulls
F6 – Nationally described space standards
G1 – Sustainable transport
G2 – Charging infrastructure for electric vehicles
G3 - Cycling
G4 – Walking
G7 – Water efficiency
G8 – Review mechanism

Site allocation SA08 – Kings Quarter

3.5 Other Planning Policy Documents
Gloucester Local Plan, Second Stage Deposit 2002 
Regard is also had to the 2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan. This has been subjected to 
two comprehensive periods of public and stakeholder consultation and adopted by the Council 
for development control purposes. The following “day-to-day” development management 
policies, which are not of a strategic nature and broadly accord with the policies contained in 
the NPPF, should be given some weight:

BE.2 – Views and skyline
BE.16 – Provision of public art
BE.30a – Control of redevelopment in Conservation Areas
S.3 – Kings Square
E.4 – Protecting Employment Land
OS.2 – Public Open Space Standard for New Residential Development
OS.3 – New housing and open space
OS.7 – New areas of Public open space

3.6 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents:

Kings Quarter Planning Concept Statement Interim adoption 2013

Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems SPG 2004 and 2013 SuDS Design Guide

New housing and open space SPG 2004

Interim Adoption Public Realm Strategy SPD 2017

Heights of Buildings SPD 2008

Shopfronts Design Guide 2017

Waste Minimisation in Development Projects SPD 2006

Townscape Character Assessment: Gloucester June 2019

Conservation Area Appraisals:
City Centre 
London Road
Eastgate and St Michael’s

City Centre Parking Strategy
This is not a planning document and has not been subject to consultation. It does consider the 
parking demand for the next decade and is a useful background reference. 

Page 83



All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address:- national policies: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2  
Gloucester City policies:
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-
policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx 

4.0 CONSULTATIONS

4.1 The Highway Authority considers overall the site is in a highly sustainable location and there 
would be no severe impacts on the local highway network. Therefore no objection is raised 
subject to conditions to:

Outline phase:
- Limit construction and demolition hours; 
- Secure bin and cycle storage; 
- Implement the Travel Plan; 
- Make provision for site operatives, plant, etc; 
- Implement streets to access buildings before occupation; 

Detailed phase:
- Implement as per the phasing scheme; 
- Limit construction and demolition hours; 
- Secure a Construction Environmental Management Plan; 
- Secure bin and cycle storage; 
- Make provision for site operatives, plant, etc; 
- Implement the Travel Plan; 
- Provide the additional parking shown on plans prior to the removal of existing allocated 

spaces within St Aldate Street or The Oxbode; 
- Provide bus stops prior to the closure of the Spreadeagle Road/Market Parade link or 

the closure of Market Parade to southbound traffic; 
- Provide the replacement taxi rank provision prior to the removal of any taxi rank space 

off Station Road; 
- Provide a Car Park Management Plan prior to us of the new multi storey car park; 
- Provide electric vehicle charging spaces.  

4.2 Highways England originally imposed a holding direction preventing determination for a 3 
month period. A further technical note was provided by applicants looking at impact on the 
strategic road network (the A40), on the basis of which Highways England has confirmed that it 
raises no objection. 

4.3 The City Archaeologist makes the following comments:

Designated heritage assets with archaeological interest (or those of demonstrably equivalent 
significance to scheduled monuments) are known to survive beneath Kings Square, plot 3a and 
the public realm area along Market Parade. In each case the scheme design limits the level of 
harm, and the proposals would lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of those 
heritage assets, subject to mitigation, and are considered acceptable. 

In respect of non designated assets, the scheme would in certain locations lead to the 
destruction of remains, but mitigation is proposed to be secured, and the proposals are 
acceptable.   

4.4 Historic England
In terms of built heritage no objection is raised, and they defer to the Conservation Officer’s 
advice on details, materials and impact Grade 2 and undesignated heritage assets. They ask 

Page 84

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx


the LPA to consider the nature and detail of the landscaping of the new Cathedral View street 
so that in the long term the established planting does not impede the view of the Cathedral 
tower from the station approach.

In terms of archaeology they raise no objection, noting that they consider the application now 
meets the requirements of the NPPF. They note that there remains some uncertainty and 
areas where further archaeological investigations are needed to inform that final design and 
mitigation, and the possibility that the AIMS would need to respond to changes during 
construction. They note that Scheduled Monument Consent would be required for the works 
within the scheduled area in the Square. They consider that no harm would be caused to the 
significance of the designated Roman town as a heritage asset. Uncertain areas relating to 
deeper drainage provision and possible drilling through the defensive wall, would impact on 
Roman remains but would cause minimal harm to the significance of the overall heritage asset. 
With regard to undesignated archaeology outside the Roman town the recommendations of the 
City Archaeologist should be followed. 

4.5 The Conservation Officer makes the following comments:

Overall this is a high quality contemporary scheme. The character and appearance of the 
Conservation Areas would be preserved and enhanced. The setting of designated heritage 
assets would be preserved. The proposals would assist in boosting the number of visitors to 
the area and encouraging economic growth through heritage led regeneration which is a key 
objective of the Council’s adopted Heritage Strategy. Conditions are required to ensure the 
high quality proposed in the application is delivered. 

No objection is raised to the applications subject to conditions to secure;
- Details of materials, hard surfacing (including Via Sacra markers), street furniture and 

public art; 
- Details of buildings – rooflights, windows and reveals, doors, sections, glazing bars, 

colour finishes, dormers, roofs, eaves and parapets, balconies, shopfronts, shutters and 
signage, cladding, vents, flues, meter boxes, cable/satellite dish provision, and rainwater 
goods; 

- Heritage interpretation;
- Routing for M&E services;
- Signing of contract before demolition of 8 Market Parade; 
- Building recording of 8 Market Parade; 
- Protection and monitoring of development on Plot 1 in relation to the listed no. 102 

Northgate Street. 

In terms of the Listed Building Consent the proposal would not cause harm, subject to 
conditions to secure detail of the intersection of Plot 1 to the listed building. 

4.6 The Civic Trust’s original comments raised the following; 

- Query if there has been sufficient archaeological investigation of the Whitefriars 
monastery. 

- Welcome retention of Kings Square as an open space with new water feature.
- Welcome new ‘Cathedral View’ street and views of the Cathedral, but concerned about 

planting of trees that could block the view.
- Upgrade of the Plot 3a building and Plot 2 look promising. Plot 2 materials should match 

the bus station. 
- Buildings along the new street look to be too tall. 
- Concern if there are enough shops in the proposal to serve this new residential area of 

the City. 
- Wishes to see high quality local materials – Gloucester brick and Forest stone, and not 

Page 85



extensive use of grey and white bricks shown (*note – this was in relation to the original 
design)

The Trust’s final comments consider the LBC application is acceptable. Also note that the 
amended design enables a much better street frontage to Plot 1. The Trust welcomes the 
reduced height of the new building and the shop front treatment the glazed blue brickwork and 
the Pennant stone paving. 

4.7 The Urban Design Officer raises no objection subject to a condition to secure compliance with 
the submitted outline plots design principles. 

4.8 The Tree Officer raises no objection subject to a condition to secure the implementation of the 
submitted tree protection and removal measures. 

The Officer notes the large number and concentration of mature trees within the site, and that 
the City Centre is not abundant with tree cover generally, while acknowledging that not all 
existing trees can be retained. The increased planting over and above the number lost, is 
positive. Queries about the species selected and protection measures have been resolved. It is 
imperative that service runs are verified to avoid conflict with proposed trees. Most of the 
highest quality and largest trees would be retained. Acceptable tree pit details are needed. 

4.9 The Landscaping advisor raised the following issues:

- Sculptural seating requires measures to deal with skateboards (metal studs or similar); 
- A little concerned about lighting levels within the square – need to consider meeting the 

required levels and ensuring safety of users at night; 
- LED fittings to seating should be a necessity to provide interest and define the edges of 

the space; 
- Pleased to see the pedestrian route out of the Square to Market Parade has been 

widened and planters reduced in size;
- It is vital that people are encouraged to stay in the area – could more seating be 

provided;
- Agrees with the Conservation Officer regarding the Via Sacra; 
- Would have liked to have seen more playful/active elements within the Square but hope 

that the public art schemes will address this; 
- Still unconvinced that proposed planting would be robust enough to withstand activities 

in the Square, but presume that there would be a standard condition to require 
replacements if they die.  

4.10 The Council’s Ecology Advisers requested further information in respect of biodiversity 
enhancement, and a condition to set out times of work in respect of nesting birds. They note no 
bats were found roosting on site and identify nesting birds as a constraint. 

They also produced a HRA Appropriate Assessment which concludes that no impact would be 
caused to the European designated sites in the area subject to mitigation being secured by 
condition. 

4.11 Natural England was consulted on the application and the Council’s HRA Appropriate 
Assessment and raises no objection subject to securing the mitigation measures of habitat 
enhancement for Special Protection Area birds at Alney Island, and a residents information 
pack. 

4.12 The Council’s Contaminated Land Adviser raises no objection subject to conditions to secure 
appropriate investigation, remediation and reporting for the various phases, in relation to which 
the Kings Square requirements are slightly reduced given the addition investigation work 
undertaken here. Page 86



4.13 The Drainage Officer comments as follows; 

Flood risk
(The first comments were submitted prior to the revised modelling work and associated flood 
zoning conclusions).  

The regeneration aspiration is a key factor and provides grounds for passing the sequential 
test, and a sequential approach has been taken to the layout of the development, which is 
acceptable. Finished floor levels need to be set appropriately based on further modelling.

The exception test is only explicitly required for plot 4, although the principles of safe 
development still apply. The Officer defers to the Environment Agency in respect of the flood 
risk issues but noted that in principle the scheme appears to provide sustainability benefits that 
outweigh the flood risk (regeneration, reduction in surface water discharge rates), but this 
should be evaluated when the design flood levels are confirmed, and the further modelling 
work would inform consideration of the safety for future users (floor levels, safe access/egress, 
etc) and avoiding flood risk elsewhere (any loss of flood storage volume, flood flow routing, 
etc). 

The Officer is satisfied that the detailed parts of the application meet relevant requirements, but 
the outline parts will need further attention to water quality at the reserved matters stage. 

Drainage
The SuDS features proposed are welcomed. The revised detailed drainage plan for Kings 
Square is acceptable. There should be no reduction in the SuDS provision shown in the 
submitted drainage strategy plan for the rest of the development particularly given the loss of 
SuDS in the Square. 

Overall no objection subject to conditions to secure detailed drainage/SuDS design (other than 
Kings Square); SuDS/drainage maintenance proposals; and details of exceedance flow routes.  

4.14 The Environment Agency (EA) originally objected on the basis that it didn’t include sufficient 
information to assess the flood risk, the treatment of the culverted section of the River Twyver, 
and the relationship of the SuDS features to groundwater. Further modelling and explanatory 
information has been supplied to address this.  

The EA has now confirmed that it raises no objection on flood risk grounds subject to 
conditions to secure details and implementation of a reconstructed culvert arrangement 
beneath Plot 4; and secure a set back of plot 3d from the culvert in front (unless the culvert has 
already been replaced). 

4.15 The Lead Local Flood Authority raises no objection subject to conditions to secure detailed 
plans for the surface water drainage and a management and maintenance plan for the surface 
water drainage. The LLFA notes that the overall discharge rates from the development would 
offer significant improvement over the current situation. 

4.16 The Environmental Health Officer raises no objection subject to conditions to secure;
- Implementation of noise mitigation measures for the residential accommodation;
- A Construction Environmental Management Plan;
- Hours of work limitations (including specific arrangements for Kings Square).

4.17 The County Council planning policy department asked for a Waste Minimisation Statement to 
be provided. The County Council’s Economic Growth and Strategic Planning department seeks 
financial contributions to education (total £1,128,531.86) and libraries (£30,576). Full details 

Page 87



are set out in the Officer analysis below.

The County Council Minerals & Waste Policy department requests securing waste minimisation 
measures by condition.  

4.18 The Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer has the following comments:
Seeks provision of affordable housing at the policy level and notes that on site provision should 
be secured (not an off site contribution). 
Concerned that the issue of public subsidy is not addressed in line with Policy SD12.8.
Welcomes the provision of some larger apartments but the provision is still small overall; 
concerned about the community that forms as a result. 
Unclear whether design of units complies with Category 2 of the Building Regulations 
(adaptable homes) – the City Plan target of 50% of all homes should be addressed. 

4.19 The Economic Development Officer requested the implementation of an Employment and 
Skills Plan for each phase of the site in line with Policy B1 of the emerging City Plan. 

4.20 The Police note the following:
- Measures needed to top floor of car park to address anti social behaviour and provide 

suicide prevention. 
- Service entrance to roof should have same security measures as apartments given 

access from car park to apartments roof space. 
- Access ramps to level 1 could create conflict as vehicles cross paths – easy movement 

should be ensured without risk of collision. 
- Motorcycle parking should provide solid secure ground anchor. 
- Cycle racks/stores and refuse stores should be overlooked, lit and a suitable 

specification. 
- Communal entrance to apartments should provide secure route from street lobby to the 

apartment, and along with ground floor windows should be to appropriate security 
specification. 

- External stairs to plot 1 roof space should be secured. 
- Area around Bruton Way end of the new Cathedral View street should include design 

features to create a safe and secure pedestrian area that prevents vehicle entering the 
street.

- Hard landscaping and street furniture should prevent misuse or damage. 

4.21 Severn Trent Water raises no objection subject to a condition to secure drainage plans for foul 
and surface water for approval, and their implementation prior to use. 

5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 With respect to the hybrid application, neighbouring properties were notified and press and site 
notices were published, and a second round of this consultation was undertaken on the basis 
of the amended application. No representations have been received from the public.

5.2 With respect to the listed building consent, press and site notices were published. No 
representations have been received from the public. 

5.3 The full content of all correspondence on this application can be viewed on: 
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-
access.aspx 

6.0 OFFICER OPINION

6.1 Legislative background
Page 88

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx


Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Local Planning 
Authority to determine planning applications in accordance with the Development Plan, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 

6.2 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) states that in dealing 
with a planning application, the Local Planning Authority should have regard to the following:
a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application;
b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application; and
c) any other material considerations.

6.3 The development plan consists of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 
Strategy (JCS) and the partially saved 1983 City of Gloucester Local Plan. However, as 
outlined earlier, the 1983 Local Plan is considered to be out-of-date.

6.4 It is considered that the main issues with regards to this application are as follows:
 Principle
 Heritage
 Design, layout and landscaping
 Traffic and transport
 Residential amenity and environmental health
 Drainage and flood risk
 Contaminated land
 Sustainability
 Ecology
 Economic and regeneration considerations
 Planning obligations / Viability
 Environmental Statement conclusions

6.5 Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES) because the project is 
considered to be EIA development. The EIA process ensures that planning decisions are made 
with full knowledge of the likely significant environmental effects of a proposal. The assessment 
process considers the effects against the existing situation (‘the baseline’), in terms of their 
magnitude or severity of an effect. It categorises effects in terms of; no effect, adverse, 
negligible or beneficial. Where adverse or beneficial effects are identified a scale is generally 
used, of; minor, moderate or major. Any effects that remain once mitigation measures are 
considered, are reported as ‘residual effects’. The ES was revised on the basis of the amended 
proposals and additional analysis. It is considered that the submitted ES covers the likely 
significant environmental effects in a manner that is considered to be acceptable, and the ES 
analysis and conclusions on the various matters are commented on by reference to this ES 
terminology within the Officer assessment below. 

6.6 Principle – Residential use
Policy SD10 of the JCS allows for infilling within the existing built up areas of the City 
Gloucester. In terms of the broad principles of development, the site is within the built up area 
of the City, is a highly sustainable site within the city centre, next to both the bus station and 
railway station and with good access to local facilities. It is an acceptable location for residential 
development and gives opportunities to consider high density living to maximise the use of 
sustainable sites for residential use. It would boost the supply of homes in a sustainable 
location. 

6.7 The emerging City Plan includes allocation SA08 which is for a mixed use development 
including residential. The residential component is therefore compliant with the emerging 
allocation. 

Page 89



6.8 Principle - Main town centre uses
The proposed class A1, A2, A3 and A4 ‘commercial space’, the class B1 office space, and the 
class C1 hotel are all ‘main town centre uses’ in the NPPF terminology. The application site is 
within the City Centre boundary and within the Primary Shopping Area as set out in the JCS.

6.9 The JCS and NPPF apply the same ‘sequential’ and ‘impact’ tests for main town centre uses. 
In terms of the sequential approach main town centre uses should be located in town centres. 
Given the location of the site these proposed uses are acceptable as a matter of principle. 
Under the proposals the ground floor ‘commercial’ units could all be used for A1 retail use, 
although this is considered highly unlikely in practice. Notwithstanding this, the potential class 
A1 retail uses are also within the more constrained Primary Shopping Area and are similarly 
policy-compliant in terms of the sequential test. As the uses are within the centre boundary, the 
‘impact’ test is not applicable. 

6.10 Policy SD2 of the JCS notes that proposals including leisure, entertainment and recreation, 
office, tourism and residential development will be supported provided they would not have 
significant impacts on the amenity of adjacent residents or businesses. These amenity impacts 
are assessed later in the report but the principle of the location is satisfied. The Class A1 retail 
use proposals within the Primary Shopping Area are explicitly supported by Policy SD2, as are 
developments that contribute to the vitality and viability of designated centres and those that 
help to deliver the regeneration strategies for the City Centre.

6.11 As the proposal would take place within the City Centre which is at the top of the hierarchy of 
centres it is considered to be of a scale appropriate to its role and function and would not 
compromise sustainable development principles. In terms of the health of other centres the 
main consideration would be impact on Cheltenham town centre, which is performing well and 
given the nature and scale of the application, there are no concerns in this respect.

6.12 The Pre-Submission City Plan allocation does not include an amount of retail floorspace, but 
supports the delivery of a range of main town centre uses. Given that the City Plan is a 
development plan document, and has reached Regulation 19 stage, this now supersedes the 
indicative floorspace figures in the earlier Kings Quarter Concept Statement. 

6.13 The proposal would result in the loss of the existing public house at Kings House, to which JCS 
Policy INF4 and City Plan policy B6 are relevant. The current situation is that there are lots of 
other public houses within the area and the application proposals provide the opportunity for 
additional Class A4 floorspace within the scheme. In this respect no significant detriment would 
be caused to the needs of the local community facilities.  

6.14 The proposal incorporates a large part of the ground floor accommodation as ‘commercial’ use, 
which in the application includes Class A1 shops, A2 financial and professional services, A3 
restaurants and cafes, A4 drinking establishments and B1 business. It is considered 
undesirable to have a large predominance of drinking establishments and it is therefore 
recommended that these units be subject to restrictions on the amount of floorspace for A4 
units, by condition. Any future proposals that would breach this tolerance could then be 
determined on a case by case basis.

6.15 Principle - Employment uses
Policy SD1 of the JCS deals with employment and notes that such development will be 
supported for a range of circumstances including the redevelopment of land already in 
employment use and for the development of new employment land within Gloucester City. 
Policy B2 of the emerging City Plan seeks to safeguard employment sites and buildings. Policy 
B3 supports proposals for new B class employment development where criteria are met 
relating to traffic generation, access, parking and manoeuvring, impacts on amenity, scale and 
design, and environmental impacts.  

Page 90



6.16 The proposal would result in the loss of 4500sq m of office accommodation – this is 
commented on in the economic/regeneration section below. However the proposals include 
4600sq m comprising the offices proposed within Plot 1 and the Kings House expansion (which 
includes a D1 type exhibition use), plus the ‘commercial’ use that could comprise of an amount 
of A2 financial and professional service and/or B1 business floorspace, amounting to 2900sqm 
between Plots 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 3d and 4. Although it is unlikely that the whole 2,900sqm would be 
used for A2 or B1 use, this floorspace would in any respect provide some additional level of 
employment generation, as would the hotel. As such, it is considered that the employment 
provision associated with the proposed uses would mitigate the employment floorspace loss 
associated with the demolition of the existing accommodation and no objection is raised in this 
regard. The traffic and transport, amenity, design, and environmental impacts set out in Policy 
B3 are considered in the relevant sections below.

6.17 Benefits of the proposal
The proposals would lead to a number of benefits. The applicant sets out that the proposals 
are a unique opportunity to catalyse long awaited public realm improvements and regeneration 
in the City centre, and would provide a mix of uses that would assist in providing activity 
through the day and evening, and encourage City centre living. Overall, it is considered that the 
benefits include regenerating a highly sustainable, partly redundant site in a prominent position 
within the City centre, which would be likely to have economic benefits beyond the extent of the 
site, enhancing the public realm including the retention and enhancement of the main public 
square in the City centre, delivering housing in line with the government’s objectives of 
boosting housing delivery, improving the character and appearance of Conservation Areas, 
increasing activity and natural surveillance in the area, and improving the ability to maintain the 
River Twyver culvert compared to the existing situation. 

6.18 Heritage
In terms of heritage the NPPF requires Authorities to take account of the desirability of 
sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting them to viable uses 
consistent with their conservation, the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets 
can make to sustainable communities including their economic vitality, and the desirability of 
new development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness. Great 
weight should be given to the conservation of the designated heritage asset; the more 
important the asset the greater the weight should be. Any harm or loss should require clear and 
convincing justification; substantial harm to or loss of assets of the highest significance such as 
scheduled monuments should be wholly exceptional. Tests are set out if ‘substantial harm’ or 
‘less than substantial harm’ to a designated heritage asset are identified. The NPPF requires 
appropriate desk-based assessment and where necessary a field evaluation to assess possible 
impacts on archaeology. It also requires developers to record and advance understanding of 
the significance of any heritage assets to be lost in a manner proportionate to their importance 
and the impact, and to make this evidence publicly accessible.

6.19 Policy SD8 of the JCS sets out that heritage assets and their settings will be considered and 
enhanced as appropriate to their significance. Development should aim to sustain and enhance 
their significance and put them to viable uses consistent with their conservation whilst 
improving accessibility. Proposals that secure the future conservation and maintenance of 
heritage assets and their settings that are at risk through neglect, decay or other threats, also 
those that bring vacant or derelict heritage assets back into appropriate use, will be 
encouraged.

6.20 Policies D1 and D2 of the emerging City Plan reflect the guidance in the NPPF and JCS in 
respect of designated and non-designated heritage assets respectively. Policy D1 notes the 
extensive archaeological remains of the highest significance within the historic core of the city, 
and that great weight will be given to the preservation of any such remains whether designated 

Page 91



or undesignated. 

6.21 Policy D3 requires developers to record and advance the understanding of the significance of a 
heritage asset prior to or during development where development would reveal, alter or 
damage it. Policy D4 deals with shopfronts, shutters and signs and seeks to retain or reinstate 
traditional shopfronts, and supports new shopfronts that are of high quality and respond to the 
character of the area. Policy D5 requires that development does not harm any key views of the 
Cathedral and other historic places of worship.

6.22 The Kings Quarter site allocation Policy SA08 notes the high significance archaeological 
remains within the site and requires the provision of detailed historic environment 
assessments. It also requires maintaining/enhancing views to the Cathedral, development to 
positively respond to Conservation Areas, and provision of detailed historic environment 
assessments.

6.23 The Shopfronts Guidance seeks to ensure the retention of historic shopfronts and notable 
elements of historic shopfront design, with new proposals to be designed to take account of the 
design, style and proportions of the building and the character of the street, and sets out the 
elements of good shopfront design including for modern buildings where it is noted that there is 
more scope for innovation and creativity. The Conservation Area Appraisals encourage the 
redevelopment of sites that make a negative contribution to the Area.

6.24 Archaeology
The site includes a Scheduled Monument – within Kings Square (comprising part of the 
Glevum Roman Colonia which is designated at various points around the City Centre) and 
other undesignated remains of schedulable quality, while the remainder of the site outside the 
Roman walls is also likely to contain assets of national significance as well as important assets 
of lower significance. 

6.25 Archaeological trenching has been undertaken on Plot 1, in the former bus station area and 
multi storey car park. Excavations have previously been undertaken in Kings Square where 
there is a reasonable understanding of the archaeological levels, and previously in the 
surrounding area including at the new bus station site adjacent. An evaluation report has 
therefore now also been submitted setting out the results. Based on the research and intrusive 
works undertaken an Archaeological Impact and Mitigation Statement (AIMS) has 
subsequently been submitted. The likely remains that would be encountered and consultees’ 
conclusions on the likely impacts are set out in respect of the relevant phases below.

6.26 Archaeological remains surviving in Kings Square are of national importance and part of it is 
formally designated as a scheduled monument. All of Kings Square should be considered as a 
designated heritage asset and great weight should be given to the asset’s preservation. The 
scheme would have minimal impact on archaeological remains; the majority of groundworks 
would be well above the archaeological remains and the impacts as a result of the proposed 
drainage runs and hydrobrake are very localised and limited in the context of the whole 
Square. 

6.27 Plot 1 is situated within a Roman and medieval suburb along Northgate Street and 
investigations show that substantial Roman buildings survive and are significant, possibly of 
national significance. The proposal would have relatively low impact. There would be impacts 
but they would be limited in extent.

6.28 Plot 2 is within a more peripheral area outside the Roman city walls, but evidence suggests 
that the plot is likely to contain Roman remains, possibly remains of the City’s Civil War 
earthworks, as well as paleochannels (historic river routes). The remains are likely to be of 
regional and local importance. Impacts from piling, sewer connections and an interceptor tank 

Page 92



for the car park are likely. The proposed clustering of piles is likely to be more damaging and 
heightens the need for appropriate mitigation, which is likely to include excavation and a 
watching brief, although there is scope to redesign the foundations to reduce the mitigation 
requirements. 

6.29 Plot 3a is situated on the line of the northern Roman City wall and within a Roman and 
medieval suburb. It can be assumed that nationally important remains are present. The impacts 
are very limited; comprising some levels changes and a new lift pit. The city walls should not be 
affected at all. 

6.30 Plot 3b contains medieval premises over Roman structures although it is difficult to establish 
the significance of the remains. It is considered that that they are unlikely to be of national 
significance. The proposals would be of very low impact.

6.31 Plot 3c has not yet been subject to evaluation and the depth of archaeology is unconfirmed. It 
is likely that similar remains as plot 3b would be present. The impact of the proposals is fairly 
limited from piling but potentially higher from pile caps and lift pits, and sewer connections. The 
level of impact is acceptable with mitigation but again could be reduced by redesign of the 
below ground proposals. 

6.32 Plot 3d has also not yet been subject to archaeological evaluation but adjacent investigations 
have uncovered shallow Roman remains. It seems likely that Roman and medieval remains will 
be present and possibly Civil War earthworks. The proposals are likely to have a fairly high 
impact on remains and excavation in advance of development is likely to be required. Redesign 
of the below ground arrangements may allow a reduced mitigation proposal. 

6.33 Plot 4 has not been fully investigated due to the multi storey car park on site. The plot 
potentially contains very sensitive remains and may include part of the Whitefriars Carmelite 
friary, however none of the recent investigations have exposed nationally significant remains. 
The plot has also had significant historic disturbance from the buried River Twyver culvert and 
the piling for the car park. Overall the significance, character and condition of archaeological 
remains within the plot are not known, and this reflects its inaccessibility – although the 
applicant has undertaken pre-determination evaluation to the extent they reasonably can. 

6.34 Beneath Plot 4 there is a proposal to house the culverted river within a new chamber for 
approximately 75m across the plot to enable the maintenance access required by the 
Environment Agency. This would be likely to cause damage beyond that caused by the original 
installation. It is considered that these works are necessary for flood risk reasons and the 
applicant has justified the proposed design which has also been reduced in scale to limit the 
impact. It is recommended that a condition is imposed to require a detailed version of the 
culvert design within reserved matters applications for Plot 4. 

6.35 There would be an exceptionally high impact arising from the replacement of the river culvert 
and the building foundations. The ES commits to refinement of design detail and preservation 
in situ if required, as the project moves on.  Although there is currently no remains identified, it 
remains possible that archaeological remains of equivalent significance to a scheduled 
monument are present – possibly structural remains of the friary and/or a cemetery. Full site 
investigation should be required post-demolition and prior to a reserved matters application. In 
the context no objection is raised subject to mitigation.

6.36 The public realm area includes a variety of remains of different significance, including 
paleochannels, Roman and medieval remains, and at the northern end more complex remains 
can be expected including those associated with the Whitefriars complex and they may be of 
national importance. The largest impact is likely to be from drainage which would impact on 
remains, however given the level of disturbance and the localised impact, this is considered 

Page 93



acceptable subject to mitigation. 

6.37 There is the potential for the culvert in front of plot 3d to be replaced as part of the project and 
this has been assessed. Again replacement is likely to involve a wider impact than the original 
installation, and may encounter the medieval town boundary and Civil War earthworks. The 
remains are of local or regional importance. With mitigation, the impact is acceptable. 

6.38 Remediation works may also have impacts on archaeology depending on their extent. They are 
likely to be of limited scope but should be subject to archaeological mitigation. 

6.39 Given the above, there is no objection on archaeological grounds but mitigation measures 
need to be secured to address the impact on heritage assets, and specific conditions are 
proposed for each phase to make the development acceptable.

6.40 Archaeology – Environmental Statement conclusions
The further intrusive evaluations enable a more robust conclusion on environmental impacts 
than the original ES. The ES addendum reduced the level of impacts from the original ES due 
to the additional work undertaken, and the level of below ground impact being lesser than the 
‘worst case scenario’ assumed in the original. The overall ES conclusions are that prior to 
mitigation there would be minor adverse (not significant) effects, but following mitigation, no 
adverse effects of greater than ‘minor’ effect would remain, and no significant environmental 
effects would occur. 

Officers conclude on this slightly differently but are not in overall disagreement. While it is 
considered that some remains would be subject to greater than a ‘minor’ impact (they would be 
removed and this would be a significant impact), these remains are of less importance. The 
overall ES conclusion, in respect of nationally important remains, is agreed with.  

6.41 Archaeology conclusions
Designated heritage assets with archaeological interest (or those of demonstrably equivalent 
significance to scheduled monuments) are known to survive beneath Kings Square, plot 3a and 
the public realm area along Market Parade. In each case the scheme design limits the level of 
harm. The AIMS is sufficient to control works within Kings Square but details of below ground 
structures would be required under condition for the other phases. In respect of non designated 
assets, the scheme would in certain locations lead to the destruction of remains, but mitigation 
could be secured by condition. The proposals would lead to less than substantial harm to the 
significance of heritage assets, subject to mitigation, and are not objected to by the City 
Archaeologist and Historic England. Overall, whilst the proposed development would result in 
less than substantial harm to archaeological remains, it is considered that, subject to necessary 
mitigation, the wider social, economic and environmental public benefits of the proposals as set 
out above would outweigh the identified harm in this case. 

6.42 Built heritage
Built heritage assets
The proposals would affect several designated built heritage assets. These include the building 
proposed for Plot 1 physically attaching to, and affecting the setting of, the adjacent Grade 2 
listed 102 Northgate Street. It has architectural and historic interest and is part of a group of 
surviving 19th century buildings on Northgate Street. Its rear plot, which is part of its immediate 
setting, is within the application site. There is also a grade 2 listed terrace at Clarence Street, 
which is across Market Parade and further up the street from the proposed Plot 2 building, and 
other listed buildings in the wider area including the grade 2* St Peters Church at the near end 
of London Road.  

6.43 The proposals would also affect the character and appearance of the City Centre Conservation 
Area (at the Kings Square area), and the London Road Conservation Area (Plot 1), while the 

Page 94



Eastgate and St Michael’s Conservation Area is situated across Market Parade from the site. 
The remaining eastern section of the site is outside any Conservation Areas. The site also 
contains or is nearby to non designated heritage assets including some buildings noted in the 
Conservation Area Appraisals as ‘positive buildings’ in the Conservation Area, which are 
commented on below. 

6.44 The proposals would also affect views of heritage assets. Most notably the Heights of Buildings 
SPD identifies a view corridor to the Cathedral across the northern edge of Kings Square and 
St Aldate Street. There is also a view of the Grade 2* listed St Peters Church on London Road, 
from north end of Market Parade.

6.45 Analysis
The loss of several building associated with the scheme (the multi storey car park, Bentinck 
House, Grosvenor House) are not objectionable given their minimal historic significance and 
current condition, and their demolition provides opportunities for enhancement of the built 
environment. Other affected buildings are more noteworthy and are commented on in 
subsequent paragraphs. The main parts of the scheme affecting built heritage are considered 
as follows:

6.46 Kings Square has been subject to a number of minor re-works since the 1970s redevelopment, 
and is currently a mix of different levels and hard surfaces, with little cohesion to the layout and 
limits to the useability of the space. A number of trees are sited within it which make a positive 
contribution. There is a poor quality and incoherent mix of surfacing and the square generally 
has a dated appearance, and is recorded as a ‘negative open space’ in the Conservation Area 
Appraisal. The existing parking areas at the end of St Aldate Street and The Oxbode intrude 
into the Kings Square space. The 4 storey 1930s Debenhams building fronting one side of the 
square is recorded as a positive building in the Conservation Area Appraisal, while the Kings 
Walk buildings on the south west and south east of the square are recorded as negative 
buildings in the Appraisal.  

6.47 The surfacing materials are now proposed to be altered from those originally submitted and 
confirmation of the updated proposal is awaited. The original proposal was of high quality 
however and any revised proposals would need to be of similarly high quality. The proposals 
would create a comprehensive and high quality redevelopment of the public realm. It would 
retain the important public use and the routes through the area but encourage activity within 
the square by the provision of seating and lighting. The Via Sacra route would be denoted by 
markers in the ground. The route extends into the square from inside Kings Walk and Officers 
have long advised that the treatment should be considered comprehensively across both sites. 
The Interim Adoption Public Realm Strategy SPD 2017 recommendations for the Via Sacra 
include renewing existing poor quality areas of Via Sacra paving and adding metallic markers 
set into the paving to indicate the route, allowing it to overlap existing streets without the need 
for wholesale repaving and as such the proposals are considered to comply. Vehicular access 
is provided for by ramps, allowing for servicing events, with each entrance controlled by 
bollards and street furniture, in terms of designing out crime. In terms of concerns about 
skateboarding on the seating, the applicant is aware of this potential issue and is considering 
various measures to obstruct this from happening but has not chosen which option yet.

6.48 The proposals would significantly enhance the appearance of the square and improve the 
‘negative open space’ which the Conservation Area Appraisal recommends should be 
addressed. There would be an associated enhancement of the character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area and of the setting of the several positive but undesignated buildings in 
the vicinity.

6.49 As set out above, Plot 1 would affect the setting and physically attach to the Grade 2 listed no. 
102, and is also within the London Road Conservation Area. There was historically a building 

Page 95



on Plot 1 adjacent to no. 102, and an earlier permission for the redevelopment of this plot has 
expired without being commenced, of 4 and 5 storeys, for 34 residential units. The ES refers to 
the reinstatement of built form at plot 1 being desirable, and would represent reinstatement of 
an historic and long established use. The heritage analysis sets out that a new building should 
be in keeping with the adjacent and neighbouring historic buildings – i.e. not exceed 3 storeys 
and make use of appropriate building materials and fenestrations. The current application 
scheme follows on from this analysis, and is considered to be an improvement on the design of 
the expired scheme. Its design has evolved by breaking up the mass and respecting the 
Northgate Street frontage in the context of the adjacent listed building. In addition the changes 
to the materials to remove the grey brick and use two multi red brick types are considered to tie 
the proposal in more sympathetically to the character of the area. The applicant also made 
changes to the original design to introduce stone lintels and quoins, and sash windows. The 
use of the metal cladding is a bold and modern approach but provided a high quality material is 
used it is considered to be acceptable. The current proposal would reinstate street frontage 
and at the scale and design proposed would preserve the setting of the listed building. The 
works to attach to the listed building using the system described by the applicant would not 
have a structural impact on the listed building, and the physical works would be limited and 
include a seal at roof level, so do not appear to inherently create a maintenance issue from 
water ingress. It is considered that the physical works to the listed building would preserve its 
special character subject to a condition to secure details of the precise method of attachment.

6.50 In terms of Plot 3a within the City Centre Conservation Area, the existing ‘Chambers’ building 
was built in the mid 1980s. It is a neutral building in the Conservation Area Appraisal, however 
the applicant considers it to be a negative building as it has no architectural merit and its 
massing and materials are out of keeping with the nearby historic buildings. It is agreed that the 
building appears rather dated and contributes little to the character of the area, and the re-
cladding of the frontage elevations would refresh the appearance of this building and the 
proposed combination of stone cladding to ground floor and glazing/metal mesh cladding to the 
upper floors is again a bold modern approach that would add interest to the building and 
surroundings of the public square, letting light into the building in daytime and out at night and 
animate the building facade. The extension to the roof would add height to the enclosure of the 
square which can be accommodated satisfactorily in terms of the scale of built form. The 
proposed elevations include an opening in the cladding to allow for the TV screen granted 
permission in 2019. The proposal is to remove the screen while the works are undertaken to 
the frontage and re-install it afterwards. The ventilation duct indicated to the rear would 
generally not be visible from the public realm. It is considered that the proposed works would 
enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

6.51 Plot 3d would be situated adjacent to the Spreadeagle Court building, which is 4 storeys and a 
‘positive building’ in the Conservation Area Appraisal. The siting and scale of Plot 3d (up to 4 
storeys) would respect this building and the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area. The final design would be considered at reserved matters stage.

6.52 Non designated heritage assets within and adjacent to the site include:
- The Regal (former cinema, completed after the second world war to a modified design). 
- 100 Northgate Street (late 19th century building attached to the listed no. 102 and noted 

as a focal building and a positive building in the Conservation Area Appraisal).
- Spreadeagle Court at lower Northgate Street. 
- 8 Market Parade (late 1800s building, acknowledged by the applicant as a non-

designated heritage asset). 
- Row of 1930s buildings along The Oxbode (noted as positive buildings in the 

Conservation Area Appraisal).
- The current Debenhams building (noted as a positive building in the Conservation Area 

Appraisal).
- Wessex House/County Chambers, Lister House on Station Road (opposite Plot 2 and 

Page 96



noted as positive buildings in the Conservation Area Appraisal).

No harm would be caused to any of these non designated heritage assets or their setting, other 
than 8 Market Parade, which would be demolished. This is the only surviving remnant of the 
Market Parade terrace although the applicants consider that it has no special architectural or 
historic interest. The ES notes that this asset is of low heritage value and while demolition 
would be a permanent adverse effect this would not be significant. The applicant considers that 
removal is acceptable subject to building recording before demolition. No objection is raised to 
its demolition by the Conservation Officer subject to building recording and signing of a contract 
before demolition. While a recording exercise is considered reasonable the site is not within the 
Conservation Area and in the context it is not considered necessary to require the letting of a 
contract for redevelopment before demolition. 

6.53 Also in terms of built heritage considerations it is noteworthy that the view along King Square 
and St Aldate Street to the Grade 1 listed Cathedral is retained, and the view along Market 
Parade to the grade 2* listed St Peter’s Church is enhanced. Overall development would not 
interrupt or harm any of the ‘significant views’ identified in the Conservation Area Appraisal. A 
new view of the Cathedral along the new street (effectively across the former bus station 
parking) would be created and would enhance the appreciation of the building from this part of 
the City and would otherwise cause no harm to its setting. While Historic England has noted 
concern about the retained tree obscuring this view of the Cathedral, it is considered that 
‘glimpse’ views of the Cathedral are characteristic within Gloucester, it does not harm an 
existing view, and the retention of this tree is beneficial in design terms. There would be no 
adverse impact on the setting of the listed Clarence Street terrace opposite Plot 2.

6.54 Built heritage – Environment Statement conclusions
The ES concludes that the development would result in overall enhancement to the 
Conservation Areas (essentially as a result of removal of poor quality buildings that detract 
from adjacent Conservation Areas, and replacement with improved architectural form and use 
of space). Other than the effect of demolishing 8 Market Parade, all other effects on built 
heritage assets as a result of the operational scheme are predicted to be minor beneficial (not 
significant) or no effect.  

6.55 Built heritage conclusions
Subject to conditions the character and appearance of the Conservation Areas would be 
enhanced, and the setting of designated assets would be preserved. Non designated assets 
would largely be preserved and the loss of one asset is considered acceptable subject to 
condition. Subject to conditions the special character of the listed 102 Northgate Street would 
be preserved. As no harm would be caused to the significance of heritage assets the proposals 
comply with the policy context above. The requirements of Sections 16, 66 and 72 of the 1990 
Listed Building and Conservation Areas Act are satisfied. 

6.56 Design, layout and landscaping
The NPPF states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, and sets out 
criteria for decision making including ensuring that developments are visually attractive, 
sympathetic to local character and history while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change, establish/maintain a strong sense of place, optimise the potential of the 
site to accommodate an appropriate amount and mix of development, and create safe, 
inclusive accessible places.  

6.57 JCS Policy SD4 sets out requirements for high quality design, including responding positively 
to and respecting the character of the site and surroundings, and being of a scale and 
materials appropriate to the site and setting. Design should establish a strong sense of place 
and have appropriate regard to the historic environment. Policy SD10 seeks housing of the 
maximum appropriate density compatible with good design, the protection of heritage assets, 

Page 97



local character and compatible with the road network. Policy SD11 seeks an appropriate mix of 
dwelling sizes, types and tenures to contribute to mixed and balanced communities, and 
requires development to address the needs of the local area. It also requires housing to meet 
and where possible exceed appropriate minimum space standards, and be accessible and 
adaptable as far as compatible with local context and other policies. 

6.58 Policy A1 of the pre-submission City Plan requires overall improvements to the built and natural 
environment, preserve the character of the area and appearance of the streescene, and 
appropriate bin storage. Policy A6 requires 50% of units to be to Building Regulations 
requirement M4 (2) – accessible and adaptable dwellings (“Category 2”), and 4% of the 
affordable housing component to be to Building Regulations requirement M4 (3) - wheelchair 
user dwellings (“Category 3”).

6.59 Policy C1 requires development to meet the highest possible standards of accessible and 
inclusive design. Policy C7 seeks mitigation measures for suicides and accidental falls on 
buildings over 12m in height. Policy C8 requires, where appropriate, for major applications to 
provide toilets to the ‘Changing Places’ standard. 

6.60 Policy E4 requires biodiversity net gain on site (or a suitable alternative) if there is unavoidable 
significant adverse impact on trees, woodland or hedgerows, and tree protection measures 
during development.

6.61 Policy F1 requires high quality architectural detailing, external materials and finishes that are 
locally distinctive, and developments to make a positive contribution to the character and 
appearance of the locality. Innovative modern materials will be encouraged where they strongly 
compliment local distinctiveness. Policy F2 requires hard surfacing, boundary treatments and 
planting to be appropriate to the location, and incorporate existing natural features where 
possible, and ensure adequate space for trees to mature. Policy F3 requires development to be 
designed to ensure that community safety is a fundamental principle. Policy F4 requires well 
designed measures to prevent gull roosting, nesting and damage. Policy F6 requires residential 
development to meet Nationally Described Space Standards.

6.62 The City Plan site allocation SA08 refers to site specific requirements and opportunities in 
respect of design and layout being;

- Enhance and maintain views to the Cathedral;
- Maintain direct connectivity between the bus and rail station to Kings Walk, The Oxbode 

and St Aldates;
- Increase density particularly around the edges of open spaces;
- Retain and enhance Kings Square as a multi use events space and focus within the city 

centre.

6.63 Policy BE.2 of the 2002 Plan requires development to respect and protect the city skyline and 
important views and vistas within the city. Policy BE.11 sets out a presumption in favour of 
retaining good quality traditional shopfronts where they make a positive contribution, and that 
new or refurbished shopfronts should be designed to take account of the design, style and 
proportions of the building and character of the street, and accessible to wheelchair users 
where practical.

6.64 Townscape and views
The Environmental Statement includes analysis of the townscape and visual impact. The 
analysis includes consideration of view corridors set out in the Heights of Buildings SPD and 
the 2013 Concept Statement. 

6.65 The 2019 Townscape Character Assessment has the application site within 3 character areas. 
Kings Square and Plot 1 are within part of the historic and commercial core of the City, and 

Page 98



Plots 3a, b, c and d within the 19th and early 20th Century expansion; these areas have a strong 
character that is important locally, with dense coverage by terraced or semi detached buildings 
from the medieval to the present day of two and three storeys and higher sitting to the front of 
plots, with plots of varying sizes and shapes but greatly influenced in the core by the Roman 
and medieval layout of long and narrow plots, and with some infilling or extensions to the rear. 
It notes the good access and connectivity through the area. It notes that many buildings have 
architectural detailing to indicate their status, and wider use of brick as a facing material, with 
limestone also within the core. It also notes unsightly late 20th century buildings that clash with 
the historic character as potential sites for change. Plots 2 and 4 are within an area of modern 
development with little to distinguish it, having a variety of building forms and scales, although 
the common use of concrete and brick is noted. The report notes that matching architectural 
styles with local historic buildings could benefit the appearance of the area.

6.66 The scheme broadly retains the existing urban pattern in terms of the layout. The major change 
is the proposed creation of the new street between blocks 2 and 4. In terms of building heights, 
parameter plans have been submitted to show the proposed heights of buildings on the outline 
phase plots. The replacement of the car park (5 storeys/10 levels) and Bentinck House (8 
storeys) with Block 4 (outline plot up to 6 storeys – 21/26m) would retain the tall urban form in 
this part of the site. Plot 2 however (6 storeys with a top car park deck above) would represent 
a more striking change in massing compared to the existing Grosvenor House (4 storeys) at 
this position. Along the northern side of Market Parade there would be a change in massing, 
notably due to there being no buildings here currently for large stretches (although there were 
historically). The public realm works and the building design would result in an improved quality 
to the appearance of the urban form. 

6.67 The proposed buildings could appear in several of the protected view corridors in the Heights 
of Building SPD and the application models these. Where the development would be 
perceived, it would blend in with the existing built form and vegetation and no significant harm 
would be caused.

6.68 The demolition and construction phase over several years would result in townscape impacts 
through removal of buildings, construction equipment, public realm changes, and hoardings for 
a temporary period. Once complete, as mentioned earlier, important local views including of the 
Cathedral along the north eastern edge of Kings Square, and along Market Parade to St 
Peter’s church would be retained and the new street would increase the visibility of the 
Cathedral along this new view and reinforce the importance of the Cathedral within the City.

6.69 Although from large parts of the city the ground levels and the intervening buildings would be 
such that the proposals would not be perceived, they would be seen in long distance views 
from the wider area such as from Churchdown Hill and Robinswood Hill. However given the 
scale of the development and perception in the context of the City centre built form, there 
would be no significant effects. 

6.70 Environmental Statement townscape conclusions:
During the demolition and construction phase the proposals would result in a temporary major 
adverse effect and is an inevitable part of development. 

Once completed however, there would be overall a high magnitude of impact at the site level, it 
is considered a significant major beneficial effect. A moderate beneficial (significant) effect is 
predicted to the local townscape character area. No significant effects are predicted to any 
other townscape and landscape areas. Significant beneficial visual effects are predicted to a 
range of views within the locality. The ES concludes that scheme would not have an adverse 
effect on views identified in the Heights of Buildings SPD.

6.71 It is agreed that no significant adverse impacts would be caused in terms of townscape and 
Page 99



views. 

6.72 Public realm
Materials, surfacing and public art
The hard landscaping to the public realm area outside the square is proposed as a Forest of 
Dean pennant stone which would provide a high quality finish in line with the Public Realm 
Strategy. 

6.73 Street furniture in the wider site is proposed to match that at the new bus station. The eastern 
part of the site is arranged around the principle of a central new street, which is aligned on the 
retained tree and the view of the cathedral beyond. This would assist in wayfinding and 
orientation around the city and signifies the cathedral’s historic importance to the city. Public 
spaces would be subject to natural surveillance from surrounding buildings the majority of 
which are proposed for mixed use. It is considered that subject to approving the final detail 
under condition, the design of the new public realm would be of high design quality and 
enhance the appearance of the area. 

6.74 Access
Level access is proposed to all retained and new buildings. A strip of directional paving has 
been added to the main circulation areas to guide people with a visual impairment around 
Kings Square or from the entrances to the centre. A specialist accessibility consultant was 
employed to offer advice on the scheme. The pedestrian crossing point over Market Parade at 
the corner of Kings Square comprises of a raised table compliant to DDA requirements. A 
second pedestrian crossing point of the same type is also proposed to the north end of Market 
Parade. Pedestrian entrances would be protected from vehicle access by bollards/street 
furniture, including at the end of the new ‘Cathedral View’ street off Bruton Way.  

6.75 Public art
Policy BE.16 of the 2002 Second Deposit Plan seeks provision or a financial contribution to 
publicly accessible art in major development. A public art strategy has been submitted. This 
sets out the proposal to integrate the art works into the fabric of Kings Square, be robust and 
safe, and have a clear and pragmatic approach to delivery. The revised plans for the Square 
now include a detailed design of ‘sculptural edging’ to the central part of the square (shown on 
the plans to be pre-cast concrete but currently proposed to be in granite instead), and also 
provision for the lighting scheme, which comprise the public art proposals. The sculptural 
edges consist of stone waves inspired by the Severn bore, and fluting to reflect the detailing in 
the Cathedral cloisters, interactive areas for play and performance, and where needed, the 
functional requirement of seating and steps. The lighting comprises of façade lighting and LED 
lighting integrated into the sculptural edge, and to the trees and fountains. The lighting would 
be programmable to co-ordinate with events or performances, and could be responsive or 
visitor activated lighting. The applicant considers that illuminating vertical surfaces (trees, 
sculptural edge, steps, etc) would create a unique and safe environment for the Square, and 
proposes a well illuminated route around the perimeter of Kings Square.   

6.76 The public art elements of the scheme shown in Kings Square would be of high quality and 
enhance the appearance of the area. Where public art pieces are indicated on the plans for the 
rest of the application site but details are not provided, a condition is proposed to secure 
approval of their exact details.

6.77 Building design
Plots 1 and 3a have already been commented on in detail in the previous section in relation to 
built heritage and are considered acceptable in design terms. The remaining proposed 
buildings are considered as follows:

6.78 Plot 2 was designed to largely wrap around the proposed multi storey car park, which assists in 
Page 100



articulating the building and creating active elevations and natural surveillance to the new 
street adjacent to Plot 2. It addresses the street providing an attractive frontage and 
surveillance to the new street and to Market Parade. The applicant altered the design of the 
building elevations during the application process. The application explains the design rational 
of the building to reflect the urban grain of the Victorian buildings around the site by splitting the 
elevation vertically into different frontages with variations in facing material. The proposed 
scale of up to 7 storeys would be markedly different to the existing Grosvenor House that is 
broadly in the same position, and it would be a very large mass of building. However, this is an 
inevitable product of developing a multi storey car park and has been modelled in the 
application. The articulation of the building helps to break down that large mass and it is 
considered that it is acceptable in this context. It also maximises density and efficiency of the 
use of land for housing provision. The proposed facing materials are shown to be of high 
quality and overtly bold and modern in several instances, and are considered acceptable 
provided the precise product can be approved under condition to secure the high quality that is 
proposed in the application. Ventilation provision is proposed to be incorporated internally to 
avoid external ducts. With a high quality range of materials it is considered that the building 
would enhance the character of the area.  

6.79 In terms of Plot 3b the proposed 5 storey scale is considered appropriate to the context, and it 
addresses Market Parade which is positive in terms of reinstating street frontage. The elevation 
design has been altered during the course of the application in response to Officers’ concerns, 
and the new arrangement of the front elevation and change from a buff brick to multi red and 
brown bricks is a positive change and is supported. The side elevation is now enhanced as well 
given that this may be a prominent elevation for some time if the adjacent Plot 3c is not 
developed in the short term. Again, with a high quality range of materials it is considered that 
the building would enhance the character of the area.

6.80 Outline plots
In terms of Plot 3c the scale of 3 and 5 storeys is considered acceptable. Notably the 3 storey 
section allows the view of the Cathedral from the new street opposite this plot. The plot 
footprint provides for the reinstatement of street frontage which is beneficial, and with an 
appropriate detailed design to the plot at reserved matters stage it is considered that the 
proposed scope of this outline plot would be acceptable and would enhance the character of 
the area.

6.81 In terms of Plot 3d the scale of up to 4 storeys would respect the adjacent Spreadeagle Court 
building, which is 4 storeys and a ‘positive building’ in the Conservation Area Appraisal. Again 
the plot arrangement providing for street frontage reinstatement and natural surveillance of the 
surrounding streets is positive, and subject to securing appropriate detailed design, would 
provide for an enhancement of the character of the area. 

6.82 Plot 4 would be sited broadly on the plot of the existing multi storey car park and Bentinck 
House, which are the equivalent of 5 and 8 storeys, respectively. The scale of up to 6 storeys 
would be noticeably higher than the car park but in this context and next to Bruton Way at the 
one side is considered acceptable.  

6.83 The applicants have provided a strategy document to guide the design of development on 
these outline plots. This is important to secure a high standard of design and a level of 
continuity with the design of the remainder of the scheme, when reserved matters applications 
come forward. This strategy includes requirements to address key corners, reinstate street 
frontages, complement the remainder of the development and adjacent buildings and spaces, 
use similar materials, maximise active frontage, articulate large masses of building, 
fenestration requirements for appearance and natural surveillance, preserve views of the 
Cathedral, identify locations for vehicular access points, impose scale and design restrictions to 
protect the amenities of neighbouring occupants, and identify access points to the culvert in 

Page 101



Plot 4. The strategy is considered acceptable and should be secured by condition.

6.84 Soft landscaping/trees
The proposals would result in a loss of 26 trees (including one A-grade lime tree by Bruton 
Way). 14 existing trees are within the Conservation Area. New planting in Kings Square and 
the new public realm is proposed and would total 41 new trees (9 new semi mature trees in 
Kings Square and 32 within the rest of the site). 3 trees within Kings Square are proposed for 
retention. The large plane tree would be retained as the focal point. These trees would be 
crown lifted and pruned, with planting beneath. 8 other existing trees would be removed from 
square, this loss being mitigated by the 9 new trees to be planted in the square at semi-mature 
size. Two London Planes were proposed to be retained at the end of the new ‘Cathedral View’ 
street (although one was removed by the Highway Authority and is now proposed to be 
replaced). Two trees to the south west of plot 2 by the taxi rank would be retained, along with 
four on Bruton Way by Market Parade. The arboricultural impact report confirms that the 
locations for new underground services would be designed to avoid the root protection areas 
required by the retained trees.

6.85 An arboricultural method statement has been submitted to set out how works near trees would 
be carried out, and the Tree Officer is happy with the submitted tree protection measures which 
should be secured by condition. The landscape advisor has raised some concerns about the 
robustness of the plants proposed in Kings Square, however a standard condition would be 
imposed requiring implementation of the soft landscaping and a 5 year replacement 
requirement for any plants that die.

6.86 Refuse
The proposed provision of 1 x 1000L bin for every 8 dwellings for general waste and 5 x 240L 
recycling bins and 1 x 140L brown bin for food waste within each bin store is in accordance 
with the discussions with relevant officers at the pre-application stage. 

6.87 Housing mix
Policy SD11 of the JCS requires an appropriate mix of dwelling sizes, types and tenures. 
Development should address the needs of the local areas set out in the local housing evidence 
base including the most up to date Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA).   

6.88 The type of dwelling proposed is influenced by the fact that the development is solely for flatted 
accommodation. The application proposes;
156 units overall
53 1-beds
94 2-beds
9 3-beds
The 3-bed apartments comprise of; 4 in Plot 2 (detailed phase), and 5 in Plots 3c and 3d 
(outline phases).

6.89 The Housing Strategy Officer has raised concerns about the community that would be created 
with a larger proportion of 1 and 2 units, although has not objected outright to the proposals. 
The SHMA sets out that for market housing there is an annual requirement for 11% 1 beds, 
29% 2 beds, 37% 3 beds, 22% 4 beds. The proposal is for a higher proportion of smaller units 
than that sought in the local housing evidence base in respect of larger units, however it is 
considered that in the context of a city centre scheme of exclusively flat units, this diversion 
from the Policy SD11 aspiration is not decisive in the overall consideration.  

6.90 In addition, the emerging City Plan proposes a range of enhanced standards for residential 
accommodation. Policy A6 requires 50% of units to be to Building Regulations requirement M4 
(2) - accessible and adaptable dwellings (“Category 2”). The applicant has stated that all the 
flats proposed in Plot 2 are Category 2 compliant (meaning 60 units of the 101 detailed phase 

Page 102



units (59%) / or of the 156 overall (at least 38%)). The outline units are still to be designed in 
detail anyway and could be compliant, so it is recommended that a condition be imposed to 
require reserved matters applications to demonstrate that 50% of units are in line with the 
policy. 

6.91 Policy A6 also requires 4% of the affordable housing component to be to Building Regulations 
requirement M4 (3) - wheelchair user dwellings (“Category 3”). There is no affordable 
component offered through this planning application, although the applicant has stated that all 
flats proposed in plot 3b and ground floor flats in plot 1 are Category 3 compliant. This would 
mean 19 units of the 101 detailed phase units (19%) / or of the 156 overall (at least 12%)). As 
such the level would be met anyway. 

6.92 Policy F6 of the emerging City Plan relates to Nationally described space standards and the 
application shows that:
1 bed premises range from 39.31sq m to 62.95 sq m
2 bed premises range from 60.49 sq m to 76.55 sq m 
3 bed premises range from 92.74 sq m to 126.69 sq m 

The national standards are set out by reference to the number of persons accommodated. It is 
not possible to assess in detail the accommodation in the outline blocks 3c and 3d and it 
appears that a detailed scheme would be likely to be able to demonstrate compliance with the 
standards. In terms of the detailed phases, the accommodation has been refined so that only 3 
of the 101 units breach the standards and these are only by 0.11sq m. Given the context of the 
application and status of the emerging plan the proposals are considered to be acceptable in 
this regard.

6.93 In terms of suicide/fall prevention the applicant has increased the parapets at the Plot 2 roof to 
full height over 2.1m. In terms of changing places toilets in major development the applicant 
proposes the public toilets in Plot 2 ground floor as a changing places toilet. 

6.94 Overall, the external design of the proposal is acceptable and would enhance the character of 
the area and complies with the above policy context. The modest breaches of internal 
standards against the policies mentioned are not considered to be of significant weight against 
the proposal. 

6.95 Traffic and transport
The NPPF requires that development proposals provide for safe and suitable access for all and 
that development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the residual 
cumulative impacts of development are severe. Policy INF1 of the JCS requires safe and 
accessible connections to the transport network, and sets out that permission will be granted 
only where the impact of development is not considered to be severe. Policy G1 of the 
emerging City Plan notes that the Council will work closely with the County Council and other 
organisations on local transport matters, Policy G3 notes that development that promotes new 
cycle routes and improved cycle security will be encouraged, and will support development 
leading to the improvement of cycle routes to sustainable transport hubs. Policy G4 supports 
development that protects and enhances convenient, safe and pleasant walking environments, 
and improvement of walking routes to sustainable transport hubs. New public realm 
development should reflect pedestrians being at the top of the road user’s hierarchy. Proposals 
that disrupt walking desire lines, reduce the pedestrian legibility or reduce pedestrian 
connectivity will not generally be supported. Policy A1 requires adequate off-street parking, 
access, and covered and secure cycle storage. 

6.96 Accessibility
The site is in a highly sustainable location with a wide range of facilities, and walking, cycling 
and public transport routes, in the vicinity. Currently however the quality of the pedestrian 

Page 103



environment is not appealing and the links to the bus and train stations are rather convoluted 
and unattractive. Access to/from the railway station and Great Western Road (via the 
underpass beneath the rail line) would be via the existing Bruton Way pedestrian crossing. An 
enhancement to this crossing would be desirable but is not part of the current planning 
application. The submitted Transport Assessment comments on the potential for its 
enhancement and is considered below. 

6.97 Within the application site, by improving the pedestrian environment generally, and the 
connectivity to the bus and train stations via attractive pedestrian streets, the proposals would 
comply with policies of the emerging City Plan, and this lends support to the application. 

6.98 Access and network changes
Vehicular access to Kings Square would continue to be via The Oxbode or St Aldate Street and 
needs to be serviced by large vehicles to facilitate use of the Square for events. Tracking plans 
have been provided to show that an articulated vehicle can serve the Square via The Oxbode 
and St Aldate Street. The existing parking area inside the Square at the end of St Aldate Street 
would be removed with a turning head provided. Servicing to the units fronting the Square is 
currently from the rear and this would be maintained. No deliveries would be permitted to use 
the Square on a regular basis.

6.99 Vehicular access to Kings Quarter for general traffic would be via Station Road and Bruton 
Way. Bruton Way is a dual carriageway subject to a 30mph limit. Access from Bruton Way into 
Market Parade north of the existing car park would be closed off. Restricted use access 
(buses, cyclists and taxis) from Market Parade to Bruton Way would be retained but with 
Market Parade narrowed. This would result in closing off the road link between Spread Eagle 
Road and Market Parade. Spread Eagle Road would still be accessed from Northgate Street to 
the servicing areas behind St Aldate Street, Kings Square, etc. A raised pedestrian table 
crossing point would be provided between the corner of Kings Square and the remainder of the 
Kings Quarter area.

6.100 The new street could accommodated vehicles and servicing is likely to come from the front of 
units in Plots 2 and 4 fronting this street. There may be scope for improved servicing access 
provision to Plot 4 at the reserved matters stage (e.g. off Market Parade and not the new 
street). 

6.101 Effect on buses
The applicant notes that in discussions with Stagecoach prior to the application submission, 
they confirmed that the proposal to limit bus movement to northbound-only can be 
accommodated without unacceptable impact on bus services, subject to appropriate bus stop 
infrastructure (which would be increased). The existing southbound bus stops on Market 
Parade would need to be relocated to the northbound side with the shelters extended to 
accommodate them and this is proposed to be secured by condition. Stagecoach and the 
County Council’s public transport team have confirmed that the proposed changes can be 
accommodated by existing and proposed services. 

6.102 Trip generation
The total development peak hour predictions are:

Weekday AM peak hour
78 arrivals
64 departures

Weekday PM peak hour
83 arrivals 
113 departures

Page 104



Weekend peak hour *
134 arrivals
125 departures

(* the ES Addendum submitted with the revised proposals noted a minor increase in total traffic 
from the development (+7 2-way trips in the weekend peak hour from the commercial 
elements))

6.103 The Highway Authority is satisfied with the submitted development trip rates and consider it a 
robust assessment given the trips associated with buildings to be demolished or replaced have 
not been deducted. Route assignment was undertaken, including that of relocating the multi 
storey car park, and have also been accepted by the Highway Authority. The analysis includes 
the effect of committed development in the area. Local junction capacity modelling has been 
undertaken, including to a ‘future year’ situation 5 years after the application. Of these the most 
noteworthy are considered to be the following;

6.104 - The Bruton Way/Black Dog Way/London Road/Northgate Street junction, where with the 
introduction of development traffic and associated changes in the ‘2023 base + 
development’ scenario, a worsening in performance causes the junction to operate over 
practical capacity in the AM peak hour, although the TA considers the % increase in 
DoS (3.1% or 2.5% on respective arms) not to be a material increase.  

- The London Road/Great Western Road junction, where in the 2023 base scenario the 
junction would be operating at absolute capacity limits anyway during the weekday PM 
peak, and above practical capacity during the AM peak hour. 2023 scenario + 
development traffic results in a negligible worsening in performance during each 
assessment period – the impact on junction performance is considered immaterial. 

- For junctions 3 (Bruton Way/Station Approach/Bruton Way), 4 (Station Road/Bruton 
Way – where the roundabout has been replaced) and 5 (Station Road/Clarence Street) 
there would be a material impact, but as the junctions are anticipated to continue 
operating below practical capacity, the level of impact is not considered to be severe. 

6.105 A further Technical Note (TN) was produced to provide further information on the flow through 
junctions, in order to validate the findings, looking at surveyed and modelled queue lengths 
along the Bruton Way corridor. The TN considers that the capacity results compare well with 
on-site observations. A further sensitivity test was undertaken of the model to consider the 
potential for ‘exit blocking’ during busy periods given the potential perception of this problem by 
local users. This assesses worst case conditions and indicates that there would be no material 
change in the level of development impact, and the conclusions drawn by the Transport 
Assessment remain valid. This further analysis was also accepted by the Highway Authority 
and they note that while this demonstrated a slight reduction in junction performance the 
difference is not significant. 

6.106 Overall it is considered that the impact on junction performance is not of concern. Development 
traffic would have a minimal impact at some junctions whilst an immaterial impact at other 
junctions. This is not considered to be a severe overall impact on the network, complying with 
the test in the NPPF. Furthermore, as above, the fact that the latest traffic growth figures 
indicate a reduction in growth over the modelled timescales means that the queues and traffic 
issues identified would have a lesser impact than originally anticipated in the TA.

6.107 As mentioned above the TA considers the potential (although it is not part of the proposals or in 
the applicant’s control) of an enhanced crossing over Bruton Way towards the railway station to 
improve pedestrian flow and enhance the quality of the route. This would be desirable although 

Page 105



the HA is not of the view that improvements to the crossing are necessary for the development 
to proceed. Officers are advised that these improvements would form part of enhancement 
measures to the station forecourt although there is no planning application for this at the 
present time. The TA considers the potential for the Kings Quarter scheme to preclude such 
improvements. Two crossing options are considered and the TA sets out that the Kings Quarter 
application would not preclude the ability to provide an improved crossing and that such 
improvements are likely to be feasible. Given the potential enhancements to pedestrian/railway 
user connections this is welcome.  

6.108 A Framework Travel Plan has been developed for the site to identify sustainable travel in the 
area and facilitate modal shift. 

6.109 Strategic road network
Following the initial objection from Highways England (HE) a further note was produced in 
support of the application to extend the traffic distribution and assignment exercise to the 
strategic road network and demonstrate the impact on the A40. This concludes that there 
would be no severe impact on the strategic road network. The analysis shows no more than 23 
2-way movements on the routes out to the A40 at Elmbridge Court roundabout or the M5 
Junction 11a during any peak hour assessment period, and this is the maximum possible using 
the strategic road network as some dispersal to other highways en-route is likely. In terms of 
the route to the A40 at Over or Longford roundabouts a maximum of 49 additional 2 way 
movements are forecasted during any peak hour, equating to less than 1 additional movement 
per minute during the peak hour period. The main increase is from departures from the 
development which would be able to utilise the left turn bypass lane at the Over roundabout. 
The 6 additional vehicles arriving at the A40 western arm stop line during the pm and weekend 
peak hours is not considered to have a material effect on queue lengths or junction operation, 
equating to one additional vehicle every ten minutes. HE has confirmed that it is content that 
the proposal could not be considered to constitute a severe impact as defined by the NPPF, 
and now have no objection to the application. 

6.110 Overall the TA concludes that the proposal would not have a ‘severe’ impact on the local 
highway network, and would comply with the NPPF in this respect, and this is agreed with. 

6.111 Environmental Statement - traffic impact conclusions
The peak construction phase was assessed and the ES predicts, at worst, a minor, not 
significant adverse effect on vehicular traffic, and a negligible effect on pedestrians, cyclists 
and public transport users during construction. In terms of operational phase effects the ES 
sets out that there would be no significant adverse effects. The ES sets out that the complete 
development would have major beneficial (significant) impact on pedestrians and cyclists, and 
overall a negligible impact on public transport users.

6.112 Parking
The existing multi storey car park has 428 spaces, although it is noted to be underutilised and 
in poor structural condition. The Council’s 2018 City Centre Parking Strategy recommends a 
new multi storey car park for at least 350 vehicles at Kings Quarter to provide sufficient city 
centre parking supply up to 2027.

6.113 The proposal is for 406 spaces within the Plot 2 multi storey car park, operated by number 
plate recognition technology (so no barriers on entry). 21 disabled spaces including 2 spaces 
for larger vehicles are proposed at ground level (5% of the total). 15 family friendly parking 
spaces are proposed, with the remaining 370 as standard spaces. A 50 space cycle hub is also 
proposed. A minimum of 0.5 spaces per Plot 2 dwelling is proposed (58 units; 29 spaces 
proposed on an unallocated basis whereby residents would apply for an annual permit). No 
specific parking provision is made for other land uses within the scheme. The TA sets out that 
the level of supply proposed is suitable to meet demand. 

Page 106



6.114 As the HA notes, because the provision of spaces is close to the demand, cars entering and 
leaving the car park quickly due to a shortage of spaces could impact on the network and it is 
recommended that a system of advanced information signage is provided advising of the live 
car park capacity. This is proposed to be secured by condition and can be provided in a Car 
Park Management Plan. This should also consider the opportunities for using spaces for 
multiple uses. The demolition of the existing car park prior to the completion of the new car 
park would reduce availability in the intervening period. It is acknowledged that the existing car 
park was operating well below capacity. The HA is content that this would not have a significant 
impact on the highway; the Car Parking Strategy considered this, and while there would be a 
deficit in the north and east of the city centre, there would be spare capacity across the city, 
and the area is primarily within a restricted parking zone. 

6.115 On street disabled parking
The proposals retain the same numbers overall. Currently 10 disabled spaces are provided in 
Kings Square off St Aldate Street, and 4 in The Oxbode currently (14 total). In the application 
an additional 4 are proposed in The Oxbode within the amended parking space layout on the 
Debenhams side (8 total in The Oxbode), with 6 proposed within St Aldate Street either side of 
the Debenhams service access (the Kings Square parking area being removed); resulting in 14 
total again overall. A swept path analysis has been provided to show that a 7.5t box van can 
manoeuvre using the turning heads on St Aldate Street and The Oxbode under the new 
arrangements.

6.116 Taxis
In terms of the existing taxi provision within the site of 11 stands, the existing taxi rank loop off 
Station Road would be retained but with stands only provided to the nearside kerb, meaning a 
reduction to 6 stands in this location. An equivalent overall provision of 11 stands are provided 
in the scheme overall, with provision for 5 stands now shown off Bruton Way adjacent to Plot 4. 
10 stands are provided in The Oxbode and are proposed to be reprovided in a different 
arrangement (the removal of the 2 stands in the turning head are compensated for by 2 new 
ones in the new parking arrangement on the Debenhams side of The Oxbode). Following 
liaison with the HA, it was agreed to move the new taxi rank on Bruton Way northwards by one 
bay to move it further from the signalized pedestrian crossing and improve the public realm in 
the area. Subject to securing the new taxi provision before loss of the existing, there is no 
objection on highways grounds to the taxi provision. It is noted, for background, that in the 
meantime a Traffic Regulation Order has been approved by the HA and implemented, and this 
replaces two taxi stands at the end of The Oxbode (by the Post Office) with a loading bay.  

6.117 Cycle provision
In terms of cycle storage the application commits to a minimum of 2 cycle spaces per 
residential unit. The application also proposes an increased no. of cycle stands in Kings 
Square at the arrival points in the square. This provision is desirable and provision of the cycle 
storage within the residential blocks is proposed by condition. 

6.118 Environmental Statement – traffic and transport conclusions
The ES concludes that the increase in traffic would not result in significant effects that would 
require additional mitigation, and would result in major beneficial effects for pedestrians and 
cyclists upon completion, and there are not expected to be any cumulative effects with other 
schemes.  

6.119 Traffic and transport conclusion
Subject to conditions the proposals would comply with the above policy context in terms of 
traffic and transport. 

6.120 Residential amenity and environmental health
Page 107



The NPPF seeks to ensure that developments provide a high standard of amenity for existing 
and future users. This is reflected in Policy SD14 of the JCS which requires that new 
development must cause no harm to local amenity including the amenity of neighbouring 
occupants.

6.121 Chapter 15 of the NPPF sets out that decisions should ensure development is appropriate for 
its location taking into account effects of pollution on health and living conditions, and should 
mitigate and reduce to a minimum adverse impacts from noise, and avoid noise giving rise to 
significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life. It also requires planning decisions to 
sustain and contribute towards compliance with relevant limit values or national objectives for 
pollutants. Furthermore it seeks to ensure that new development integrates with existing 
businesses and facilities – which should not have unreasonable restrictions placed on them as 
a result of development permitted after they were established. Policy SD14 of the JCS also 
requires development to cause no unacceptable levels of pollution with respect to national and 
EU limit values. Policy C5 of the emerging City Plan requires major developments to 
demonstrate compliance with EU limit values and achieve national objectives for air pollutants. 
It also seeks to avoid building configurations that inhibit pollution dispersal, minimise public 
exposure to pollution sources, use green infrastructure to absorb pollutants, provide 
infrastructure that promotes transport modes with low air quality impacts, and control dust and 
emissions from construction operation and demolition.

6.122 Impact on neighbouring occupants
Existing residential properties or those with the benefit of a permission for residential use in the 
vicinity of the application site are:

6.123 St Aldate Street
There are some flats in the upper floors of the St Aldate Street terrace, and the upper floors of 
23a St Aldate Street benefits from planning permission for conversion to flats. The proposed 
use of the street and Square nearby to these properties would not change fundamentally and 
there are no physical structures proposed that would cause undue harm to the amenities of 
residents here. 

6.124 Station Road/Market Parade
There are some flats in the upper floors of nearby properties on the south side of Market 
Parade/Station Road and at the near end of Clarence Street. The Plot 2 building would be on 
the opposite side of Market Parade/Station Road broadly in the position of the existing 
Grosvenor House, at around 30m away from these properties. It would be around 21m in 
height and taller than the existing Grosvenor House but given the separation would not cause 
significant harm to the amenities of residents of these properties. There is no record of 
residential occupation at 8 Market Parade and no representations have been received from 
occupants. In any respect given the arrangement and outlook of the property, if it were retained 
and the development around constructed, there would be no significant impact anyway on the 
amenities of any occupants.  

6.125 Northgate Street . 
Former Kwik Save site
The former Kwik Save site has been developed for residential accommodation. Given the 
separation of these properties from the application site it is not considered that the proposals 
would be harmful to residents’ amenities here.

6.126 92-96 Northgate Street
The upper floors of 92-96 Northgate Street (Curzon House – the British Heart Foundation 
store) have been converted for 14 flats. The approved scheme includes lounge and bedroom 
windows facing east towards Plot 1, and bedroom windows facing south. This residential 
scheme was permitted while there was an extant permission on Plot 1 (which has now 

Page 108



expired). The distance from the side windows in this building to the Plot 1 building would be at 
least 17.7m. The facing wall of the Plot 1 building where it would be in line with the windows of 
the existing flats includes windows to; shared circulation space, the hallway within flats and the 
bathrooms of flats, with secondary lounge windows sited at a more obtuse angle to the existing 
flats’ windows. While the Plot 1 building would clearly appear in views from the existing flats, 
the separation distance, arrangement of the built form and the nature of the rooms that the 
windows serve in Plot 1 is such that significant harm to residential amenity would not arise as a 
result of any overbearing or overlooking effects. The Plot 1 building would project further 
rearward than these neighbouring upper floor properties such that it would also be apparent in 
the left side of views from the rear/south facing rooms of the existing flats as well as the east 
facing windows considered above. While the Plot 1 building is of a greater height, given the 
generally open aspect to the rear of the Curzon House flats and the angle at which the Plot 1 
building would appear, it would again not cause any significant harm to amenity. There could 
be some window to window distances at around 13.5 to 16m, but the angle of the relationship 
is such that it would not lead to a significant impact on privacy. In the context of the separation 
and orientation of the properties it is not considered that a significant impact would be caused 
in respect of loss of light either. 

6.127 110 Northgate Street
Spreadeagle Court, 110 Northgate Street has previous gained prior approval for a conversion 
to residential flats and a more recent permission has been granted for shared student 
accommodation. Plot 1 would be situated across Spread Eagle Road. It is not considered that it 
would cause any significant harm to the amenities of future residents given the scale and 
separation. Plot 3d however would be situated south of this building in close proximity, is within 
the outline phases of the proposal, and was originally shown to be up to 4 storeys/15m in 
height, for residential use. The permitted scheme for the Spread Eagle Court building includes 
habitable windows to bedrooms on the first, second and third floors of the rear/south facing 
elevation of the east side wing facing onto Plot 3d. A 4 storey building on plot 3d when 
designed at reserved matters stage could be acceptable in terms of amenity but it is likely that 
4 storeys immediately next to these windows would be harmful by virtue of being overbearing, 
or cause overlooking from new residential windows, or both. The applicant has therefore 
amended the parameter plans to include a single storey-only section at the near edge of Plot 
3d. This would enable, as per the indicative design, a 10.3m separation between the windows 
and the 4 storey part of Plot 3d. The other windows in the western wing of Spreadeagle Court 
that face south towards Plot 3d would be around 20m distant and this would not result in harm 
to the amenities of residents. It is considered that the application has demonstrated that a 
reserved matters scheme could be designed within the amended parameters that would 
preserve the amenities of residents of Spreadeagle Court. The outline phase parameter plan 
for heights of buildings would be secured by condition as a maximum parameter for the 
development and would ensure this acceptable relationship. The applicant has submitted an 
indicative design of Plot 3d with the upper floors set back, showing that a scheme of the 
proposed quantum on this plot could be accommodated in an acceptable manner in terms of 
this impact on neighbouring occupants.

6.128 The Oxbode
There does not appear to be any residential premises on this street.

6.129 No other residential properties would be adversely affected by the proposals. 

6.130 Construction works
Given the nature of the proposed works and their proximity, the residents of these premises 
could be affected by disturbance from construction, so a standard hours of work condition is 
recommended.

6.131 However, for the Kings Square phase the applicants now propose that construction activities 
Page 109



would need to take place outside the usual restricted times, up to 2300hours Monday to Friday 
(other than bank holidays), for a 3 month period. This is to carry out works around the 
entrances to business premises so as to minimize disruption during ‘normal’ working hours. 
This proposal is accompanied by a schedule setting out that the range of works at the later 
times are to be limited to quieter activities, and paving to the doorways (no noisy cutting or 
vibrating) after 2100hours. 
The schedule also sets out measures to limit disturbance including siting of cutting stations to 
limit impacts of residential premises in the vicinity, and solid site hoarding would assist in noise 
attenuation. The Environmental Health Officer (EHO) is happy that these limited additional 
hours works as proposed are acceptable and a condition is proposed as such, for the Kings 
Square phase only. 

Impact on future residents
6.132 Noise and vibration

The proposals would introduce residential uses into a busy part of the City centre where a 
degree of noise and disturbance is to be expected. However there are some significant noise 
sources that need further consideration:

- Plot 3b includes units with bedroom windows and lounge windows with balconies facing 
rearwards in the direction of the existing Regal public house beer garden (within 
approximately 15m).  

- Traffic from the nearby highway network, notably Bruton Way, has a significant effect on 
noise at the application site, with Plot 3d and part of Plot 2 facing directly across to this 
highway, and the remaining residential proposals nearby to it.

6.133 The submitted noise report unsurprisingly identifies that the noise climate is dominated by 
traffic, although the ES sets out that the change to traffic levels as result of proposed 
development itself would result in a negligible change in traffic noise levels. The noise report 
also notes that due to the weather the Regal beer garden was rarely in use at the time of the 
survey, and so modelled results were used instead, which the EHO is happy with. 

6.134 To achieve the desired internal noise levels in flats, the report sets out examples for different 
parts of the scheme (including enhanced double glazing; closed windows with alternative 
ventilation provision). With suitable measures in place, ambient noise affecting future 
occupants can be controlled to occupancy suitable level. In respect of the facades facing onto 
the Regal beer garden the report proposes that windows would need to be closed with 
alternative ventilation for the late evening period. The applicant has emphasized that these are 
example specifications and wishes to retain flexibility on exactly how the mitigation is achieved, 
which is considered reasonable. As such a condition is proposed to secure precise details of 
these measures, plot by plot.

6.135 It is also noted that proposed balconies may not achieve the external noise criteria where 
fronting onto roads. Relevant guidance suggests that where noise criteria in outdoor amenity 
areas are not achievable, impacts may be offset if residents have access to alternative quiet 
spaces nearby. While the applicant’s suggestions that the proximity of Gloucester park, Alney 
Island, etc, is sufficient to provide residents with quiet amenity space, these are actually rather 
distant from the site. The Cathedral ground are in close proximity, and within the City Centre 
context where a degree of disturbance is to be expected. Overall, the proposed arrangement 
with balconies is considered acceptable, although it is noted that there could be uncomfortable 
noise levels to some balconies at certain times of day.

6.136 In respect of proposed plant associated with the development, precise details of specifications 
and locations are not available. The applicant assumes that the building services and fixed 
plant would be designed to achieve the operations limits consistent with BS4142. There are 

Page 110



various measures such as screening and silencers that could be used if required. An overall 
noise limit condition is proposed to address this.

6.137 In accordance with the NPPF requirements the effect of introducing additional residential 
development on the existing businesses has been considered. With the implementation of the 
above reasonable measures then adequate living conditions should be created and there is as 
a result not a high likelihood of substantiated complaints about noise being directed at existing 
businesses. 

6.138 Noise and vibration - Environmental Statement conclusions
The ES notes that demolition and construction noise is predicted to cause significant but 
temporary ‘moderate adverse’ effects at the nearest existing sensitive receptors, and also for 
new residents of the proposed development where demolition/construction works take place on 
adjacent plots. Changes in road traffic noise levels due to demolition and construction traffic 
are predicted to result in negligible effects.  

6.139 The ES also notes that the majority of vibration impacts from demolition/construction are 
expected to be minor adverse effects (not significant), however significant moderate adverse 
effects were identified when piling works take place on Plots 3d and 3c. Effects on building 
structures causing damage are expected to be negligible. 

6.140 Specific mitigation measures are proposed prior to works commencing to reduce the residual 
effect. A Construction Environmental Management Plan would be prepared setting out 
mitigation measures to minimise noise and vibration impacts. It is recommended that this is 
secured by condition. Measures are likely to include screening around the works site providing 
noise attenuation, low impact piling techniques, and careful sequencing, maintenance and site 
management arrangements. The ES also sets out the mitigation measures for internal noise 
conditions as above. In terms of plant associated with the new development, the ES sets out 
that suitable noise criteria could be met through the use of appropriate noise control measures, 
and would be limited to a minor adverse effect (not significant).

6.141 Overall in respect of environmental health issues, no permanent residual significant effects are 
identified once the development is occupied.

6.142 Air quality
The ES sets out that air quality in the vicinity of the site is generally considered good, and 
within the statutory objectives for pollutants. The nearest Air Quality Management Areas are at 
Barton Street and Priory Road, within 0.5km of the site, and further away at Painswick Road. 
Traffic from the development is not expected to affect the AQMAs in any significant way during 
construction or operational phases. 

6.143 The development is a high risk for generating nuisance dust during demolition and 
construction, and mitigation measures have been proposed, and would be included within a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan that could be secured by condition. Following 
implementation of the measures, the submitted report sets out that no significant effects 
associated with dust emissions are expected during demolition or construction. In terms of 
construction phase traffic emissions, the impact on air quality in peak construction phase 
scenario is considered negligible. 

6.144 In terms of the operational phase, the ES sets out that dispersion modelling was undertaken 
and used to assess impact, alongside consideration of the transport impacts of the scheme to 
factor in the cumulative impacts of traffic volumes. Road traffic emissions have no greater than 
a negligible effect on any of the assessed pollutants, as such the impact on air quality is not 
considered to be significant. In respect of new receptors created by the proposals, no 
exceedances of any statutory objectives are predicted, and the effect is not considered 

Page 111



significant. No further mitigation measures are proposed in the ES beyond those identified for 
industry good practice and recommended construction dust mitigation measures.  

6.145 Cumulative effects on air quality could arise if construction phases overlap with other nearby 
schemes. However each development is expected to have suitable management and 
mitigation measures for dust which would control levels and no significant environmental 
effects are predicted as a result. 

6.146 Residential amenity and environmental health conclusion
Subject to conditions, the proposals would comply with the above policy context. 

6.147 Drainage and flood risk
The NPPF requires that development is directed to the areas at lowest risk of flooding, that 
new development should take the opportunities to reduce the causes or impacts of flooding, 
should not increase flood risk elsewhere and take account of climate change. Policy INF2 of 
the JCS reflects the NPPF, applying a risk based sequential approach, requiring new 
development to contribute to a reduction in flood risk and requiring the use of sustainable 
drainage systems. Policy E6 of the emerging City Plan sets out a similar approach to making 
development safe, avoiding an increase in flood risk, the sequential and exception tests, 
requiring Sustainable Drainage Systems, incorporating climate change considerations, 
facilitating benefits to watercourses and floodplains, maintaining a buffer strip for maintenance 
and ecology, The emerging City Plan allocation SA08 also sets out site specific requirements 
and opportunities; those being a Flood Risk Assessment, and assessment and implementation 
of Sustainable Drainage Systems.

6.148 According to the Environment Agency (EA) flood map the site is within Flood Zones 1, 2 and 3, 
with the flood zone 3 area being largely along Market Parade and Station Road, and along the 
edge of the multi storey car park. There appear to have been no recorded historic flood events 
within the site. The EA sets out that the floodwater categorised as fluvial flood zone 2 and 3 on 
the flood map related to overland flow routed to the application site from the direction of Asda, 
originating  from the River Twyver overspilling at the culvert entrance near Derby Road. Further 
modelling work was undertaken during the application processing at the request of the EA to 
provide a robust justification of the flood risk context of the site and factor in appropriate 
allowances for climate change, which in turn would allow reliable conclusions on finished floor 
levels, resilience measures, any need for flood plain compensation and/or flood flow routing, 
etc. This updated analysis, which has the support of the EA, sets out that the site is in fact 
within flood zone 1 (less than 0.1% chance of flooding in any year) in respect of fluvial flooding 
with no flood zone 2 or 3 areas within in the site. This additional modelling concludes that:

- The site is not at risk of fluvial flooding from the River Twyver for all modelled events up 
to the 1% AEP + climate change (2080s upper end) scenario. 

- The site is at risk of surface water flooding during the 1% AEP + climate event, which is 
predominantly caused by capacity exceedance of the sewer network.

- Modelled surface water flow routes are constrained to the roads within the application 
boundary.

- The proposed plot FFLs would not be exceeded by the maximum modelled surface 
water flood depths for all modelled storm events up to the 1% AEP + climate change 
scenario.

- For the climate change scenarios considered, the development would not be 
detrimentally affected by rising sea levels in the Severn tidal reaches.     

6.149 The difference in the flood zone conlusions appears to arise from the age and nature of the 
2006 project that informed the EA’s flood zone 2 and 3 outlines, with the new modelling 
providing a more up to date and detailed analysis, including an assessment of the highway 
effect on flood water, and leading to significantly different floodwater mechanisms and 
modelled outlines. It shows that floodwater from the surcharged River Twyver culvert entrance 

Page 112



upstream of the site does not flow into the application site. The ES has therefore used the 
updated 2019 model instead of the EA flood map, as the reference point for considering the 
baseline position and flood risk within the site. Surface water flood risk remains as a medium 
risk. 

6.150 The development proposal itself is categorised as ‘more vulnerable’ given the residential and 
hotel uses proposed. ‘More vulnerable’ development is appropriate in flood zone 1.

6.151 Sequential test
Notwithstanding the conclusions of the additional modelling that the site is entirely within flood 
zone 1 for fluvial flooding, as the site is shown to be partly within flood zones 2 and 3 on the EA 
maps, the sequential test has been considered for completeness. Prior to that additional 
modelling taking place, the applicant submitted a sequential test analysis alongside the 
application, and this has been considered in assessing the application. 

6.152 The applicant considered sites within the 2018 City Plan report. The area of search for 
alternative sites is agreed to be within the City centre boundary because the proposal involves 
main town centre uses that would not be policy compliant outside a designated centre. Of the 
City Plan sites, 7 have been identified by the applicant as large enough for the residential 
quantum proposed:

- Great Western Road sidings – the applicant considers this has the potential to cater for 
the residential capacity but the proximity to the railway track may be off-putting for 
residents.
It is not considered that this is sufficient grounds to dismiss the site of itself. However, it 
is outside the City Centre where main town centre uses are to be focused and it is 
accepted that the area of search can reasonably be constrained to the City centre area 
where main town centre uses would be considered acceptable.  

- Land east of Waterwells, Marconi Drive – it is agreed with the applicant that this is not 
within the City Centre.

- Greater Blackfriars (3 site entries) – the applicant dismisses the site as it is partially 
within flood Zone 2 and 3.
It is accepted that a significant part of the wider Blackfriars site is no more preferable to 
the application site being in flood zone 2/3. However the part of the Blackfriars site 
within flood zone 1 is 7.78ha and could accommodate the proposed development. 

- Land at St Oswalds, off Longhorn Avenue – it is agreed with the applicant that this is not 
within the City Centre and is also flood zone 2/3. 

- Kings Quarter itself.

6.153 In the context of considering potential alternative sites for the development it is material that 
this site is in need of regeneration (as set out in the emerging City Plan, and the historic 
allocation through the 2002 Second Deposit Local Plan), and development of an alternative site 
would not achieve this planning aspiration.

6.154 Overall it is considered that the residual flood zone 1 part of the Blackfriars site is an available 
site that could accommodate the development in a lower flood risk area (according to the EA 
flood maps). However, the site-specific material consideration of needing to regenerate this 
part of the City, and the emerging allocation and site regeneration policy position (referenced in 
the emerging City Plan, and historically through the 2002 Second Deposit Local Plan) is 
considered to outweigh this, if the exception test is passed and can be shown to be safe. 
Furthermore the additional modelling analysis shows that the site is in fact flood zone 1 which 
demonstrates that the Blackfriars site would not be sequentially preferable to this site from a 
flood risk perspective.

6.155 Overall the forgoing is considered to be a robust analysis in respect of the sequential test given 
Page 113



the circumstances, and no objection is raised in this respect.

6.156 Drainage strategy
Surface water from several plots is designed to outfall into the existing culverted River Twyver 
beneath Plot 4; discharge would be limited to greenfield run off rates, subject to capacity within 
the culvert (an outfall to the public sewer would be required if capacity is not available). SuDS 
features would provide a reduction of run off volumes and enhanced treatment of flows; 
including bio-retention tree pits, swales/urban creeks, permeable paving, attenuation tanks and 
blue roofs. The applicant has confirmed that the blue roof can be implemented alongside the 
plant requirements for the building, and the proposed installer has implemented this solution in 
similar projects.

6.157 Within Kings Square rainwater would be directed into bio retention tree pits and swales, for 
initial interception and treatment of run off, which would assist in reducing runoff during 
frequent rainfall events (the fountain would have a separate drainage system), plus an 
attenuation tank. In the fullness of time it is intended that the drainage from Kings Square 
would be directed to the River Twyver by an ‘urban creek’ in Market Parade, which would also 
assist in providing secondary treatment of water prior to discharge to the river. However given 
the proposed phasing of development, conveying the drainage from the Square through the 
rest of the development cannot take place immediately because it is intended that the Square 
would be built first. As such a ‘temporary’ connection to the existing sewer within the Square is 
proposed. In this respect it is not possible to achieve the complete and more sustainable 
drainage option for this first phase of the development. This connection would have to be 
considered permanent given that the wider scheme may never go ahead and this is likely to be 
how Severn Trent Water considers the sewer connection proposal. Nevertheless it is hoped 
that the onward connection through the swale is provided in due course, and the Square 
proposals include provision for this connection through the former subway beneath Market 
Parade to a point where it could connect into the wider development in course. The Drainage 
Officer and Severn Trent Water (STW) raise no objection to the revised arrangement.

6.158 Within the wider site the urban creek system would provide conveyance of surface water from 
plots 2, 3c, 3d and 4 to the Twyver. A bioretention urban creek is also proposed along the new 
Cathedral Walk street, and blue roofs are proposed to plots 3c, 3d and 4, and the residential 
units of plot 2, which would provide additional storage. The drainage to the car park would be a 
separate system with a conventional attenuation tank, and an oil separator, with discharge 
through the urban swale to achieve a further treatment stage prior to outfall to the river culvert. 
At Plot 1 the topography does not allow for run off to discharge to the Twyver so discharge to 
the sewer network is proposed. At Plot 3a the discharge would be unchanged and continue to 
the combined sewer adjacent. At Plot 3b drainage would also be to the adjacent combined 
sewer. All attenuation systems would be designed to accommodate return periods up to the 1 
in 100 year event plus 40% for climate change.

6.159 The Drainage Strategy sets out that the measures would provide such benefits as to exceed 
the 40% betterment requirement of the LLFA.

6.160 The Drainage Strategy states that to deal with exceedance flows potential flood paths will be 
identified within the masterplan and the Drainage Officer considers that details should be 
secured under conditions. The residual risk identified of blockages and malfunctions can be 
mitigated through monitoring and maintenance can also be secured by condition to make the 
proposal acceptable.

6.161 In terms of foul drainage the application sets out that STW has advised that there is adequate 
capacity within the network to accommodate discharges likely from the development, and STW 
has raised no objection subject to securing final details of the proposed system for approval.

Page 114



6.162 Final details of the foul and surface water drainage proposals (other than for Kings Square 
which has been provided in detail with the application) are requested by consultees and can be 
secured by condition.  

6.163 Exception test
As above, the application of the exception test (ET) is a theoretical exercise based on the EA 
flood zoning, where the site is in fact shown to be in flood zone 1 for fluvial flows. In any 
respect the principles of safe development should still apply.

6.164 The ET requires the development to provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that 
outweigh flood risk. The City Plan and SFRA work has already concluded in this respect in 
relation to the site allocation – with benefits to health, inequalities, the city centre, sustainable 
transport and traffic considered likely to take place as a result of development. These benefits 
are likely to flow from the application proposals notably in terms of benefitting the centre and 
connectivity for sustainable modes of transport. The potential disbenefits set out the City Plan 
sustainability appraisal for the site, of flood risk, historic environment and public open space, 
are all demonstrated to in fact be acceptable in the application proposal, subject to certain 
conditions as discussed elsewhere in this report. As such, and in the context of the flood risk 
identified in the additional modelling work, it is considered that the development would provide 
wider sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh flood risk.

6.165 The exception test also requires the development to be safe for its lifetime, without increasing 
flood risk elsewhere and where possible reducing flood risk overall. The FRA considered that 
with the proposed drainage strategy the risk to the site from surface water is considered 
‘medium’, and ‘low’ risk from fluvial, sewer, tidal, groundwater and artificial sources flooding. 
Safe access/egress is shown in the FRA (based on the Level 2 SFRA) to be via Clarence 
Street (which is not in flood zone 2 or 3 based on the EA’s flood maps, or in a surface water 
flood risk area). During the design flood event incorporating climate change all plots are 
predicted to remain dry, and safe access and egress to the site is achievable. 

6.166 In terms of finished floor levels of buildings, these were originally planned indicatively using the 
model available at that time. These have been reassessed using the new model and are 
considered acceptable. The application sets out that the landscape design will align external 
ground levels with the finished floor levels required. 

6.167 In light of the new modelling it is concluded that no flood plain storage compensation is needed 
as the site is in flood zone 1 for fluvial flooding. 

6.168 The construction phase could lead to quality impacts on watercourses and/or damage to 
infrastructure but the ES assumes the use of standard mitigation measures to limit this and the 
provision of a Construction Environmental Management Plan under conditions could secure 
measures. 

6.169 Overall, in light of the above, it is considered that the ET is passed. 

6.170 Works to existing culverted watercourse
The culverted section of the River Twyver runs beneath the current multi storey car park and 
would be situated beneath plot 4 and in front of plot 3d as proposed. The EA’s standard 
position is to seek the opening up of culverted watercourses for various flood risk, ecological 
and amenity benefits. 

6.171 It is considered that the opening up of the culvert is desirable for several reasons but not 
practical in this particular case given the urban context, proximity to the main road, desire to 
create an appropriate built form, and the adverse effect it would have on the viability of the 
scheme. The EA has accepted this but seeks improved access to the culvert from Plot 4, and 

Page 115



seeks to ensure that replacement of the culvert is not inhibited by development of Plot 3d. The 
EA advises that given its age and condition the culvert will need to be replaced within the 
lifetime of any building constructed on Plot 3d, which could prevent the ability to safely do so. 

6.172 In terms of access for maintenance and for recovery in the event of collapse of the culvert 
beneath Plot 4, a solution has been designed to enclose the culvert within an outer chamber 
that would enable access. As this relates to an outline phase it is recommended that reserved 
matters for the Plot 4 area be required to include a detailed design for the culvert solution along 
the lines of the draft scheme. 

6.173 In terms of replacing the culvert in front of Plot 3d, a condition is proposed to require a 
separation of 3m from the edge of the culvert to the ground floor of the Plot 3d building, if the 
culvert has not already been replaced, in order to allow sufficient ability to replace it. This may 
necessitate setting the building back into the plot slightly. If the culvert is replaced in advance, 
then a building could be designed to the full extent of Plot 3d. This is considered to address the 
constraint with the least impact on bringing forward Plot 3d.  

6.174 The EA has now removed its objection, subject to the conditions mentioned above. Provided 
the scheme follows the principles in the submitted drainage strategy the LLFA raises no 
objection subject to conditions. The Drainage Officer raises no objection subject to securing the 
details of the drainage systems and exceedance flow details by condition. Severn Trent Water 
raises no objection. 

6.175 Environmental Statement - flood risk and drainage conclusions
No significant effects are associated with the demolition and construction phase or the 
operational phase, in isolation, or with the inclusion of cumulative schemes. 

6.176 Overall, subject to conditions it is considered that the proposals are compliant with the above 
cited policy in respect of flood risk and drainage. 

6.177 Contaminated land
The NPPF requires decisions to enhance the environment by remediating and mitigating 
contaminated land where appropriate, and ensure that a site is suitable for the proposed use 
taking account of ground conditions and any risks, and that after remediation as a minimum the 
land should not be capable of being determined as contaminated land. Responsibility for 
securing a safe development rests with the developer/landowner. Policy SD14 of the JCS 
requires that development does not result in exposure to unacceptable risk from existing or 
potential sources of pollution, and incorporate as appropriate the investigation and remediation 
of any contamination.  

6.178 A Phase 1 Geo Environmental Desk Study Report was submitted, which identified a number of 
potential contaminating elements or current/historical activities that may present contamination 
risks. Further investigation was recommended and a limited Phase 2 intrusive site investigation 
has been undertaken in Kings Square. This indicated that it is not contaminated and no 
remediation is needed. However the Council’s contaminated land consultant considers that 
further work is still needed; to undertake work on the Kings Square phase as well, because the 
history of the site indicates potential for contaminants in the underlying soils which would need 
to be risk assessed and potentially remediated accordingly, and sufficient site investigation and 
interpretation is required.

6.179 Overall the Council’s contaminated land consultant advises that the standard contaminated 
land condition is required, and the same condition with slightly reduced requirements is needed 
for the Kings Square phase. To address the desire of the applicant to undertake the 
development in phases it is recommended that a specific provision be added to require the 
remediation strategies to include measures to protect plots under construction where situated 

Page 116



next to un-remediated plots. 

6.180 Therefore, subject to conditions, the proposal would comply with the above policy context. 

6.181 Environmental sustainability
The NPPF supports the transition to a low carbon future and contributing to reductions in 
greenhouse gas emissions. It expects developments to take account of landform, layout, 
building orientation, massing and landscaping to minimise energy consumption. Policy SD3 of 
the JCS requires all developments to demonstrate how they contribute to the principles of 
sustainability by increasing energy efficiency. Proposals will be expected to achieve national 
standards. Policy G2 of the emerging City Plan requires every new residential property with a 
garage or dedicated parking space within its curtilage to have an electric vehicle charging 
point. In all other residential properties charging points will be strongly encouraged where 
reasonable and technically feasible. For non-residential development providing 100 or more 
spaces, at least 2% should be utilised for charging. Policy G7 requires proposals to 
demonstrate that the estimated consumption of wholesome water per dwellings should not 
exceed 110 litres per person per day.

6.182 The applicant’s Energy Statement sets out that the proposed new dwellings would meet the 
latest standards of energy efficiency required in terms of high levels of insultation and air 
tightness, efficient lighting and high efficiency heating systems – this is in respect of the current 
Part L of the Building Regulations. It is proposed that the non-residential buildings would also 
meet these standards, but in addition would meet high standards of efficiency for pumps and 
fans, any cooling systems, and high levels of building control to minimise energy use. The 
report notes potential carbon benefits from a range of technologies such as combined heat and 
power unit for Plot 4, a wood chip boiler for Plot 4, PV panels, solar thermal hot water, air 
source heat pumps, but also the relatively long payback periods and no commitment is given 
to implementing any of these. The application does not set out the water consumption rate 
under emerging Policy G7. 

6.183 In terms of sustainability features that are included, as noted above, SuDS features are 
proposed within the scheme, including blue roofs. Electric vehicle charging would also be 
provided in certain parts of the site and the applicant has agreed to meet the 2% provision for 
non-residential spaces required in the emerging City Plan, with 50% of residential spaces 
provided. The applicant has also confirmed that because the dimensions of the multi storey car 
park spaces are wider than the minimum, all parking spaces here are potentially electric 
vehicle charging spaces. 

6.184 There are therefore some modest commitments to sustainability measures. The applicant also 
states that restrictions due to heritage assets above and below ground mean there is little 
opportunity to pursue other renewable energy options in the scheme. This is disappointing and 
it is not considered to be robustly demonstrated that there are no other options. Nevertheless 
Policy SD3 requires proposals to demonstrate how they contribute to the aims of sustainability 
by increasing energy efficiency, and will be expected to meet national standards. On that 
basis, there would be no conflict with Policy SD3. 

6.185 Waste management 
A Waste Minimisation Statement has now been submitted. It refers to the requirements in the 
Waste SPD and sets out;

- A commitment to ensure that future developers must examine the possibility of reusing 
spoil wherever possible on site, or use on nearby sites; 

- Sustainable building construction techniques in line with Building Regulations; 
- Typical measures are suggested including use of building materials capable of being 

recycled, an element of construction waste reduction or recycling;
- A Site Waste Management Plan to be developed as the project progresses and Waste 

Page 117



Management Plan Coordinator to be appointed to oversee all waste management 
processes during construction works; 

- Ensuring future developers would sign up to at least the minimum requirements for use 
of materials that have a recycled content and/or are sustainably sourced; 

- Local sourcing of materials and best practice as to ordering, standardising and returning 
surplus; 

- Reduce and return packaging; 
- Segregation of waste at source where practical; 

6.186 The details currently provided are not considered sufficient on their own and it is recommended 
that further details are secured by condition for the various elements of the development. 
Subject to this the proposals would comply with the policy requirements.

6.187 Ecology
The NPPF requires development to minimise impacts on and provide net gains for biodiversity. 
Policy SD9 of the JCS similarly requires the protection and enhancement of biodiversity in the 
area. The emerging City Plan Policy E2 requires the conservation of biodiversity and providing 
net gains, and also Policy E8 specifically restricting development that would be likely to lead 
directly or indirectly to an adverse effect on the integrity of the Cotswold Beechwoods Special 
Area of Conservation where these effects cannot be mitigated. Policy E4 requires biodiversity 
net gain on site (or a suitable alternative) if there is unavoidable significant adverse impact on 
trees, woodland or hedgerows. Policy E5 requires development to contribute to the provision, 
protection and enhancement of the Green Infrastructure Network. The emerging City Plan 
allocation sets out site specific requirements and opportunities for biodiversity; green 
roofs/walls should be utilised; and creation of bat habitat and roosts, swift blocks and provision 
for house martins. 

6.188 Two internationally designated nature conservation sites are within 10km of the site; Cotswold 
Beechwoods Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and Walmore Common Special Protection 
Area (SPA)/Ramsar site. Alney Island Local Nature Reserve (LNR) (also a Key Wildlife Site) is 
the closest designated site 0.8km away, and is considered by Natural England (NE) as likely to 
be functionally linked to the internationally designated Severn Estuary site - due to the birds 
who frequent the area. NE has raised concerns about the impact of residential development 
within the City on these protected sites, and provides comments where the City Council 
assesses the effect of projects on these sites under Habitats Regulations Assessments. 

6.189 A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal has been submitted which recommends retention of trees 
where possible, new planting to include native species, and a further bat survey. The report 
recommends works take place outside the nesting season as trees and buildings could support 
nesting birds. A condition is therefore proposed to prevent works in the nesting season unless 
a suitable survey and protection measures are undertaken. 

6.190 The further bat survey identified that all buildings in the site had low or negligible suitability for 
bat roosts. No bats were observed emerging or entering any of the four buildings that were 
assessed further. The site does not support any bat roosts. Only a small amount of 
foraging/commuting was observed within the site, which doesn’t offer any unique habitats in the 
local context. Overall the development would not have a significant impact on local bat species. 
Provision of bat boxes/bricks/tiles in the development is recommended in the report.

6.191 In terms of the site-specific proposals set out in the City Plan, green walls are not proposed. 
The Council’s ecology advisers have proposed securing biodiversity enhancements by 
condition and this could include the creation of bat habitat and roosts, swift blocks and 
provision for house martins mentioned in the City Plan. The ‘Building with Nature’ standards 
are not explicitly referenced. The proposals should not hamper ecological networks and would 
provide for a modest enhancement of green infrastructure. 

Page 118



6.192 Given the European protected sites mentioned above a Habitats Regulations Assessment 
screening has been undertaken for the Local Planning Authority. This is required to consider 
whether any significant impacts on those sites, and the process has concluded that the further 
stage of an ‘Appropriate Assessment’ is required to consider impacts. NE advises that the 
Cotswold Beechwoods is subject to recreational pressures, and Alney Island is potentially 
subject to similar effects from the increased visits by residents. As the Beechwoods and 
Estuary, and Walmore Common, are European sites the likelihood of significant impacts arising 
from the proposals, and any mitigation necessary to address such impacts, has been 
considered.  

6.193 Further information has been submitted by the applicant to support this process and an 
‘Appropriate Assessment’ produced by the LPA’s consultant on this basis. A wintering bird 
survey of Alney Island was submitted to seek to identify any association with birds using the 
Severn Estuary (although it was only for 1 month where ideally this would be for the entire 
winter period). This survey identified that only one instance of a Special Protection Area (SPA) 
species (redshank) was recorded, on 3 occasions. The Estuary SPA supports over 2000 
individuals over winter. The number recorded was not considered significant by the applicant. 
No SPA species from Walmore Common SPA were recorded. The applicant’s report proposes 
that the Severn Estuary SPA and Walmore Common SPA can be screened out of the HRA 
Appropriate Assessment. It also recommends that signage is proposed at Alney Island to 
advise of the species present and that dogs are kept on leads. 

6.194 An ‘alternative sites’ report has also been submitted setting out alternative recreational options 
for future residents, other than the Beechwoods. This report considers that the SAC has poor 
accessibility from the application site via walking and cyclist modes, and is accessible via car in 
15-30minutes (there being 78 cars calculated to be owned by residents in the development). 
The alternative sites (Cathedral grounds, Alney Island, Westgate Park (boating lake), Sebert 
Street open space, Hillfield Gardens, Gloucester Park, The Lannett play area, Monk meadow 
play area, Barnwood Park, Saintbridge balancing pond,  Robinswood Hill, Chosen Hill nature 
reserve, Highnam Woods nature reserve, Crickley Hill country park) are considered to have 
better accessibility compared to the Beechwoods SAC and several of the latter sites have 
common characteristics and are likely to accommodate the same purpose of visits. The report 
proposes that while visits to the SAC cannot be precluded, there are several alternatives that 
are more accessible.

6.195 The LPA’s consultant advises that as only one species from the Severn Estuary SPA was 
present at Alney Island, in small numbers, the functional link is weak, and there were no 
species from Walmore Common SPA recorded. However as it was only a one-month study 
instead of the entire winter period it is possible that more species and greater numbers of 
individuals may have been recorded over the winter and the survey results should be 
interpreted with caution. There is nevertheless a functional link present, albeit small (and 
suitable habitat is available for wetland birds at Alney Island), and with climate change it is 
important to maintain a stepping stone of wildlife sites in the vicinity, with Alney Island being 
useful for wetland birds and the option for further enhancement to improve its use. The new 
development would be expected to lead to a significant increase in visitor numbers to Alney 
Island and the risk is that this would have a detrimental effect on the wildlife and habitats of 
Alney Island LNR. Furthermore the natural behaviour of animals can be negatively affected by 
human disturbance (reduced foraging/feeding, reduced breeding success) and this is not 
reflected simply by looking at number of animals present and need to be considered. Therefore 
mitigation/compensation is considered to be required. 

6.196 A resident information pack would be useful as an education tool for new residents about the 
potential impacts on these sites, however practical mitigation is also necessary to minimise the 
negative effects in this case and proposals include:

Page 119



a. Clear the area at Castlemeads West of encroaching scrub to create an area more 
appropriate to over wintering wildfowl. Following clearance this would be kept free from 
invading scrub by the grazing cattle; 
b.  Clear the area to the south of Port Ham substation of encroaching scrub and where 
practical fell inappropriate Lombardy poplars, to allow a more open environment supporting 
wading birds. Again this would be grazed with cattle subsequently to ensure it is maintained in 
an open manner; 
c.  Remove scrub from the area north and east of the Gaelic football ground (between the 
railway and the A40 road). The brick pits, if cleared and managed have significant potential to 
further support wading birds. 

6.197 NE has been reconsulted on the Council’s Appropriate Assessment and raises no objection 
subject to the above mitigation being secured. As the land where the practical mitigation would 
take place is within the applicant’s control and there is a reasonable prospect of the works 
taking place before any residents move into the development, it is proposed that residential 
occupations are restricted by condition until those works have been implemented. The resident 
information pack should also be secured by condition.

6.198 Therefore in respect of the Cotswold Beechwoods and Walmore Common, there should be no 
significant effect given the distance, relative accessibility, level of car ownership likely at the 
development, alternative recreational green spaces available in the area, and the information 
pack for residents offered by the applicant as mitigation, which would be a requirement by 
condition. In respect of Alney Island/Severn Estuary, there should be no significant effect 
subject to the proposed mitigation taking place prior to residential occupations.  

6.199 Subject to conditions the proposal is considered to comply with the above policy context and 
legislation. 

6.200 Economic and regeneration considerations
The site comprises largely of dated, poor quality buildings and vacant land. The proposals 
would deliver a significant regeneration of this land that would be likely to have positive 
economic as well as visual benefits beyond the extent of the site itself. Policy SD2 of the JCS 
notes that support will be given to proposals that help to deliver the regeneration strategies for 
the City Centre and to new residential, retail, leisure, culture, tourism and office development 
that contribute to the vitality and viability of designated centres. This is considered to be 
applicable to this scheme. Therefore the positive regeneration and economic impacts of the 
scheme weigh in its favour. 

6.201 The construction phase would support employment opportunities. The ES estimates 300 full 
time equivalent staff being employed at the peak of the construction phase. The proposals 
would deliver opportunities for businesses to expand, in the provision of new-build, extended 
and converted commercial floorspace. Approximately 500 new FTE jobs are expected to be 
delivered on completion (although this should be considered against the loss of employment 
floorspace that would take place as a result of demolition). Therefore the proposal would have 
an economic benefit of itself, and likely within the wider area also. Further, paragraph 3.1.9 of 
the JCS identifies that it is important to ensure that sufficient housing is made available to 
support the delivery of employment and job growth, and the residential parts of the scheme 
would assist in this. In the context of the NPPF advice that ‘significant weight should be placed 
on the need to support economic growth through the planning system’, this adds some weight 
to the case for granting permission.

6.202 Policy B2 of the emerging City Plan safeguards sites and buildings currently in employment 
use for B class employment uses. The proposals would have an adverse impact in terms of 
removing floorspace for businesses currently in occupation, as well as some that is currently 

Page 120



vacant, however the significant positive economic effects in terms of new employment 
floorspace and job generation, shopper/visitor attraction, etc would outweigh this.  

6.203 Policy B5 supports proposals that deliver the Cultural Strategy and Vision including proposals 
for new creative workspaces and/or extension of arts and cultural workspaces and facilities. 
The proposals would contribute to this policy aspiration. 

6.204 Whilst the applicant has chosen not to provide an Employment and Skills Plan as requested by 
the City Growth and Delivery Officer in accordance with emerging policy B1, this can be 
secured by condition prior to occupation. Overall the economic impacts of the scheme weigh 
significantly in favour of the application.

6.205 Planning Obligations / Viability
Planning legislation and the NPPF provide that planning obligations should only be sought 
where they meet all of the following tests:
 Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
 Directly related to the development; and
 Fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the development. 

6.206 The NPPF provides that the planning system can play an important role in facilitating social 
interaction and creating healthy, inclusive communities. Policies INF3, INF4 and INF6 of the 
JCS require new residential developments to provide for any additional infrastructure and 
community facilities required to serve the proposed development. Policies OS.2, OS.3, and 
OS.7 of the 2002 Plan set out the Council’s requirements for open space. This is reflected in 
Policy INF6 of the JCS which provides that where the need for additional infrastructure and 
services is expected, the Local Planning Authority will seek to secure appropriate infrastructure 
which is necessary, directly related, and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind of 
the development proposal. Similarly, a Section 106 agreement is the mechanism for providing 
affordable housing in compliance with Policy SD12. The requirements for S106 contributions 
arising from the proposal are set out below. Policy G8 of the emerging City Plan sets out that 
where planning policies cannot immediately be met by a development due to exceptional 
circumstances, a review mechanism shall be imposed for phased developments to rigorously 
test the ability to be policy compliant over the lifetime of the project. 

6.207 Affordable housing 
The NPPF states that where local authorities have identified the need for affordable housing, 
policies should be set for meeting this need on site, unless off site provision or a financial 
contribution can be robustly justified. Policy SD12 of the JCS provides that a minimum of 20% 
affordable housing will be sought on sites of 11 or more dwellings in the Gloucester City 
administrative area (although the NPPF threshold of 10 dwellings is more recent and should be 
preferred). Bullet point 10 of Policy SD12 provides that the viability of the site may enable 
additional levels of affordable housing to be provided and the emerging City Plan is based on 
evidence demonstrating that the achievable policy target level should be 25%, as set out in 
Policy A2. Therefore the starting point in respect of affordable housing on all sites of 10 or 
more dwellings is a requirement for 25%.

6.208 In this case, the proposed development would therefore give rise to a need for 39 affordable 
units. However, the development involves vacant buildings and national policy sets out that 
where a vacant building is brought back into any lawful use or is demolished to be replaced by 
a new building, the developer should be offered a financial credit equivalent to the existing 
gross floorspace of relevant vacant buildings when the Authority calculates any affordable 
housing contribution. Contributions may be required for any increased in floorspace.

6.209 The existing floorspace to be demolished is 21,334 sq m. The total proposed floorspace is 
43,143sqm. Therefore this gives a vacant buildings credit to the proposal and the affordable 

Page 121



housing contribution should be 50.6 % of what would normally be sought. In this case, the 
affordable housing requirement would be reduced to 20 units.

6.210 However, the current application proposes 0% affordable housing, and is supported by a 
Viability Report that has been reviewed on behalf of the Local Planning Authority, which 
concludes that the development would not be viable even with 0% affordable housing. Whilst 
there are some relatively minor differences in calculations when compared to the applicant’s 
figures, the LPA’s consultant agrees there would be a significant negative residual land value 
(circa £16.8m, compared to the applicant’s £17.9m).

6.211 The NPPF advises that where up to date policies have set contribution levels from 
development, they should be assumed to be viable, and the weight given to any viability 
assessment is a matter for the decision makers having regard to the circumstances. The City 
Plan viability review indicated that the Kings Quarter allocation would be able to come forward 
with the full policy requirements of the JCS and City Plan. However, in this case, the applicant 
has provided a detailed viability analysis of this specific proposal and it is clear that the 
development would not be able to provide any affordable housing as a result and remain 
viable.

6.212 Open space, play and sport
The proposal involves an area of public open space at Kings Square which is proposed to be 
enhanced through new surfacing and street furniture. The emerging City plan allocation SA08 
refers to a site specific open space requirement of the retention and enhancement of Kings 
Square as a multi-use events space and focus within the city centre. This is achieved in the 
proposals. Furthermore the City Plan does not include Kings Quarter as an allocation able to 
provide on-site open space provision to address shortfalls, above and beyond the retention and 
enhancement of the Square, and this is reinforced in the draft Open Space Strategy 2020; 
rather the Open Space Site Allocations Note 2019 seeks an off-site contribution for formal play 
and sport. This is not offered within the application. While contributions in this respect from 
residential development are normally requested, they are subject to the same viability 
considerations as set out in the affordable housing section above and it is agreed that the 
proposals could not support contributions towards open space, play and sport.

6.213 Libraries and education
The County Council has sought contributions to education and libraries as follows;

Pre-school : £307,856.40 (for the full phases) + £158,455.50 (outline phases) for the 
Longlevens and/or Barton and Tredworth Primary Planning Area;

Primary Education : No contribution as forecasts show there is adequate spare capacity at the 
closest primary school (Kingsholm) to absorb the demand from the development; 

Secondary education (11-16) : £265,064.00 (full phases) + £136,430.00 (outline phases) for 
Barnwood Park School/Gloucester Secondary planning area;

Secondary education (16-18) : £172,129.76 (full phases) + £88,596.20 (outline phases) for 
Gloucester Secondary Planning area. 

Education total : £1,128,531.86

Library resources of £30,576.

6.214 No education or library contributions are offered in the application, again on the basis that the 
scheme’s viability does not allow for it. This is accepted however it is noted that in 
circumstances where the local education authority is unable to secure funding via s106 

Page 122



obligations, there is other funding available in the form of basic needs grant from central 
government.

6.215 Viability considerations
Where a scheme is unviable to support affordable housing, Policy SD12 of the JCS also 
requires applicants to look at i. varying the housing mix and design to reduce costs while 
having regard to the requirements of other plan policies and creating a balanced housing 
market; and ii. securing public subsidy or other commuted sums. The applicant considers the 
scale of the negative residual land value is such that these measures could not address it. 

6.216 The scheme is proposed to be developed in phases. The NPPG sets out that where 
contributions are reduced below policy requirements to provide flexibility there should be a 
clear agreement of how policy compliance can be achieved over time, and review mechanisms 
can be used to strengthen authorities’ ability to seek policy compliance over the lifetime of the 
project. The applicant has produced sensitivity testing information looking at potential changes 
in costs and values to consider if there is any practical purpose in seeking to secure a review of 
the viability later in the project, and the Council’s consultant has analysed this and undertaken 
their own verification. This applicant’s analysis models inflationary uplifts to residential sales 
values, commercial rents and build costs based on reviewing the position mid-scheme delivery, 
and concludes that the residual land value could improve but still be at – c.£14.5 million (to 
meet the benchmark land value the estimate is for residential values needing to increase by 
approximately 85-90%). The likelihood of such increases occurring is very limited and therefore 
there is no real value in a review mechanism. It is likely that the scheme would continue to be 
incapable of delivering sufficient value to enable s106 contributions to be viably secured. 

6.217 Planning obligations/viability conclusions
The applicant has not offered contributions to affordable housing, education or libraries, and 
has proposed the site-specific requirement to open space in Policy SA08 of the emerging City 
Plan but no other open space contributions. Whilst it is understood that the applicant is seeking 
to provide affordable housing within the development, this is a commercial decision, and the 
viability analysis clearly indicates that such provision could not be secured via the planning 
system.

6.218 The absence of affordable housing and social infrastructure in conflict with JCS policies SD12, 
INF6 and INF7 has been justified on viability grounds and this has been verified following 
robust assessment by and independent viability consultant. This diminishes the sustainability 
credentials of the proposal and this must be weighed in the overall planning balance.

6.219 Utilities
New connections would be required and the submitted report does not highlight any major 
problems with doing this. Two new substations are proposed (rear of plot 3a and within plot 2). 
There is an existing substation within the old bus station and the programme is to sequence the 
works to get the new plot 2 substation operational before decommissioning the existing. There 
are several instances where telecommunications infrastructure coincides with new building 
footprints – these would be dealt with either by removal and diversion or repositioning of 
jointboxes to new locations. 

6.220 Environmental Statement - Cumulative effects and effects interactions
In terms of combined effects of individual impacts the demolition and construction phase and 
the operation phase have been considered. During demolition and construction, combined 
effects of noise and vibration impacts, and townscape and views impacts, are possible. These 
could be significant but the effects are all temporary and reversible, and the combined effects 
would be reduced as far as reasonably practical through good environmental practices. During 
operation of the development the ES predicts the combined effects to be beneficial and no 
mitigation is required.

Page 123



6.221 In terms of combined effects of several development schemes, the ES has considered the 
proposal with schemes at the former Kwiksave site (now nearing completion), Allstones site, 
Great Western Road sidings, Spread Eagle Court and Kings Walk shopping centre. During 
demolition and construction, combined construction/demolition periods and their impact on 
noise and vibration and townscape effects are the most likely. It is expected that each scheme 
would be subject to controls to minimise adverse/significant effects as far as reasonably 
practical in terms of noise/vibration. Significant cumulative adverse visual effects would be 
apparent for a range of views in the area and on Conservation Areas; these are inevitable 
impacts of development in urban areas and would be temporary and relatively localised. During 
the operational phase no additional significant cumulative effects are identified. 

6.222 Environmental Statement – conclusions
The applicant is obliged to consider the ‘do nothing’ option under the EIA process, and it is 
agreed that this would result in negative effects, given the current site condition and the 
benefits of regenerating and efficiently using the land and the policy context of doing so. Similar 
conclusions apply in respect of considering alternative sites for the proposals.  

6.223 Demolition and construction phase; residual effects – the majority of effects are either 
negligible or minor adverse and not considered to be significant, other than;
Noise and vibration - at worst, moderate adverse effects are likely. These are more severe 
during demolition and initial construction activities in close proximity to works. 
Townscape and visual effects – at worst, major adverse effects are likely, due to intrusion of 
construction elements and disruption. These are temporary in nature. 
These effects are temporary and would be controlled by on-site good practice and mitigation 
measures. 

While Officers consider the archaeological impacts in a slightly different way to that in the ES 
(as set out in the archaeological considerations above), there is no overall objection to the 
assessment of significant environmental effects in this respect, or the overall conclusions of the 
acceptability.

6.224 Operational phase; residual effects – there would be a limited number of minor (not significant) 
adverse effects, in relation to traffic flows at certain links, and noise and vibration. Significant 
moderate beneficial effects are identified on traffic flows for Market Parade (reduced volume), 
and major beneficial effects are identified for effects on pedestrians and cyclists. The scheme 
is predicted to have minor beneficial (not significant) effects in relation to archaeology and 
cultural heritage. Significant beneficial effects are predicted for certain townscape and visual 
effects. The predicted air quality effects are considered to be negligible. The revised 
assessment of fluvial flood risk is of a neutral (not significant) effect during both phases. 

6.225 Overall, the ES conclusion is that the proposal would regenerate and enhance the site, as well 
as contribute to a need for new housing. Some adverse effects would be experienced during 
demolition and construction but they would be largely temporary in nature and mitigated to 
reduce the effect. Once complete, the development would deliver housing, visitor 
accommodation, office and commercial space, public realm and an improved pedestrian 
environment for the wider community. No likely significant adverse residual effects have been 
identified for the operational phase.

6.226 Conclusion
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides that where regard 
is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under 
the Planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The proposals have been assessed against development 
plan policies within this report.

Page 124



6.227 As identified the proposals would provide significant benefits including regenerating a highly 
sustainable, partly redundant site in a prominent position within the City centre, which would be 
likely to have economic benefits beyond the extent of the site, enhancing the public realm 
including the retention and enhancement of the main public square in the City centre, delivering 
housing in line with the government’s objectives of boosting housing delivery, improving the 
character and appearance of Conservation Areas, increasing activity and natural surveillance 
in the area, and improving the ability to maintain the River Twyver culvert compared to the 
existing situation.

6.228 The Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 imposes requirements as set 
out in this report. Great weight has been given to the impacts on designated (and undesignated 
but equivalent significance) heritage assets. In respect of built heritage the proposal would 
preserve or enhance heritage assets. In respect of buried heritage the proposal would have 
less than substantial harm (which is not objected to by Historic England or the City 
Archaeologist); this harm has been limited by the design approach taken, and is considered to 
be outweighed by the significant public benefits of the proposal. 

6.229 Weighing against the proposal is the fact that the proposal does not provide any affordable 
housing or s106 contributions to mitigate the impacts of the proposed development other than 
the retention and enhancement of the Kings Square open space, however this is justified in 
viability terms within the policy context for doing so. Furthermore, it provides a mix of 
accommodation that differs from the mix required in the SHMA (as required by Policy SD11 of 
the JCS), there are very modest breaches against the housing design standards in respect of 
Policy F6 of the Pre-Submission City Plan (which at this stage is afforded limited weight), no 
evidence as to the estimate water consumption in respect of Policy G7 of the Pre-Submission 
City Plan (again, limited weight is given to this policy), and no evidence of compliance with 
‘Building with Nature’ standards. However none of these matters are considered to be of 
significant weight within the context of the proposal given the status of the policies and/or the 
nature/extent of the harm.

6.230 The proposals mitigate their impact on heritage, highway safety, flood risk and drainage, 
residential amenity, land conditions and ecology, subject to certain conditions. The proposals 
would deliver some sustainability measures in accordance with Policy SD3 of the JCS however 
opportunities have not been taken to take up other energy efficiency measures.

6.231 It is considered that the Environmental Statement contains sufficient information and analysis 
to reach a reasoned conclusion on the significant effects of the development on the 
environment. The Environmental Statement has been taken into account in making this 
recommendation. Monitoring measures have been considered and are included in proposed 
conditions where considered necessary.

6.232 The requirements of Sections 16, 66 and 72 of the Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas 
Act are satisfied. 

6.233 There is broad compliance with the Joint Core Strategy as the development plan other than the 
modest conflicts noted that are of limited concern, and with the NPPF policies and 
supplementary planning documents. The limited conflicts with the emerging Gloucester City 
Plan given the weight to be afforded to it are not considered to be overriding. 

6.234 For the reasons explained in this report it is considered that the proposals are in general 
compliance with the development plan. When considering all of the relevant material 
considerations in the balance, it is considered that the significant public benefits of the scheme 
clearly outweigh the identified harms, including the less than substantial harm to buried 
archaeological heritage assets and the absence of planning obligations to secure affordable 

Page 125



housing and social infrastructure. It is therefore considered that planning permission and listed 
building consent should be granted subject to conditions.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY GROWTH AND DELIVERY MANAGER

7.1 18/01454/FUL
That outline planning permission (with four detailed phases) is granted subject to the conditions 
listed below. 

19/01212/LBC
That listed building consent be granted subject to the conditions listed below.  

7.3 Reason for Approval
The impacts of the proposal have been carefully assessed. The scheme would regenerate a 
highly sustainable, partly vacant, brownfield site in a prominent position within the City centre, 
deliver economic benefits to the area, deliver housing, enhance the public realm, improve the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Areas, and improve the ability to maintain the 
culverted River Twyver, and is acceptable in design terms. Less than substantial harm would 
be caused to buried heritage assets but this is outweighed by the public benefits of the 
scheme. The scheme fails to provide the policy-level s106 contributions but is justified in 
viability terms. The Environmental Statement has been taken into account in reaching the 
decision and it contains sufficient information and analysis to reach a reasoned conclusion on 
the significant effects of the development on the environment. The proposals mitigate their 
impact on heritage, highway safety, flood risk and drainage, residential amenity, land conditions 
and ecology, subject to certain conditions. There are limited conflicts with policies of the 
emerging Pre-Submission City Plan and of the Joint Core Strategy, but there is otherwise 
broad compliance with the Development Plan and the NPPF. The benefits of the scheme are 
considered to outweigh the disbenefits.  

Condition 1
Application for approval of details of the appearance, layout, scale and landscaping (hereinafter 
called “the reserved matters”) shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the 
expiration of ten years from the date of this permission.

Reason
To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Condition 2
In respect of the phases of development for which outline permission is hereby granted (the 
land within Plots 3c, 3d and 4 and the neighbouring land as defined with an “O” and within the 
dashed grey lines on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application 
boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018 – hereinafter 
referred to as the ‘outline phases’) no development shall start before details of the appearance, 
layout, scale and landscaping (hereinafter called “the reserved matters”) have been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason
 The application is in outline only and the reserved matters referred to in the foregoing condition 
will require further consideration.

Page 126



Condition 3
Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to condition 2 above shall be made to the 
Local Planning Authority before the expiration of ten years from the date of this permission.

Reason
To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Condition 4
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two years from the 
date of approval of the last reserved matters to be approved.

Reason
To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Condition 5
The uses and associated floorspace hereby granted outline permission shall not exceed the 
maximum outline application uses on the schedule ‘Kings Quarter Masterplan, Accommodation 
Schedule, Summary and Uses by Plot’ ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-SA-A-20-100 Rev. P15 (received 
by the Local Planning Authority on 30th January 2020).    

Reason
To establish the terms of this permission. 

Condition 6
No demolition of buildings, tree removal or any other clearance works likely to impact upon 
nesting birds shall take place within an outline phase between 1st March and 31st August 
inclusive within any year unless a survey (by a suitably qualified ecologist) to assess the 
nesting bird activity on the part of the site to be developed during this period and a scheme to 
protect the nesting bird interest on the site have first been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority and then implemented as approved. 

Reason
In accordance with the submitted ecological survey, in the interests of the preservation of 
biodiversity. 

Condition 7
The reserved matters applications submitted pursuant to condition 2 above shall not exceed 
the parameters set out on the following drawings:

- KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-93-002 Rev. P04 - Proposed parameter plan – heights 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 21st November 2019)

- KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-93-003 Rev. P03 – Proposed parameter plan – land use 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 29th November 2019)

- KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-93-004 Rev. P03 – Proposed parameter plan – access
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Reason
To ensure the development takes place in accordance with the parameters that have been 
considered and approved, and to acknowledge the proximity of adjacent premises such as Plot 
3d in relation to the Spread Eagle Court building. 

Page 127



Condition 8
No more than 50% of the aggregate ground floor floorspace of units within the grey hatched 
areas of Plots 3c, 3d and 4 as shown on Proposed Parameter Plan – Land Use ref. KQG-AHR-
MP-ZZ-DR-A-93-003 Rev. P03 (received by the Local Planning Authority on 29th November 
2019) shall be used at any one time for any purpose within Class A4  as defined in the 
schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)). 

Reason
To ensure a suitable mix of uses and to preserve the vitality and amenities of the area. 

Condition 9
Reserved matters applications involving residential use shall demonstrate that at least 50% of 
the residential units within that application would be of a size, configuration and internal layout 
to enable Building Regulations requirement M4 (2) ‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’ (or the 
equivalent standard in any revision or replacement to this Building Regulations requirement) to 
be met. 

Reason
To support the changing needs of residents over time and maintain independence, wellbeing 
and community cohesion. 

Condition 10
All reserved matters applications shall be accompanied by a design statement setting out how 
the proposals accord with the submitted Kings Quarter Outline Plots Design Principles 
document dated 18/11/19 (received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019).

Reason
To secure well considered and integrated, high quality development that responds to design 
constraints. 

Condition 11
Each reserved matters application proposing new buildings pursuant to Condition 2 above shall 
be accompanied by details of all facing materials and detailing for that building (comprising of 
any facing brick and mortar, cladding, roofing material, stonework, window and door frames 
and reveals, rooflights, eaves, parapet walls, balconies (including a section drawing), rainwater 
goods, any vents, flues and meter boxes, provision for television services, and including scaled 
elevations showing their use across the building) have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.

Reason
To ensure that the materials are appropriate to their context.

Condition 12
Each reserved matters application proposing new hard surfacing pursuant to Condition 2 above 
shall be accompanied by details of all materials for hard surfacing for that phase (comprising of 
samples and scaled drawings showing their use across the phase) have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.

Page 128



Reason
To ensure that the materials are appropriate to their context.

Condition 13
Each reserved matters application pursuant to Condition 2 above shall be accompanied by 
details of all boundary treatments and street furniture for that phase (comprising of scaled 
drawings of their location, form, appearance and materials) have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.

Reason
To ensure that the materials are appropriate to their context.

Condition 14
Approved landscaping details for an outline phase shall be carried out in full concurrently with 
the development of the respective phase and shall be completed no later than the first planting 
season following the completion of the buildings of that outline phase. The planting shall be 
maintained for a period of 5 years following the commencement of development of any 
reserved matters approval. During this time any trees, shrubs or other plants which are 
removed, die, or are seriously damaged shall be replaced during the next planting season with 
others of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to 
any variation. If any plants fail more than once they shall continue to be replaced on an annual 
basis until the end of the 5 year maintenance period.

Reason
To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development and to preserve and enhance the 
quality of the environment.

Condition 15
Development of any outline phase shall be undertaken in accordance with the tree protection 
measures set out in the Bosky Trees Arboricultural Method Statement dated 3rd October 2019 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019), and they shall be retained 
for the duration of the demolition and construction period for that phase. 

Reason
To protect trees that are to be retained in the scheme. 

Condition 16
The removal and installation of hard surfacing around trees that are to be retained in the 
development within any outline phase shall take place only in accordance with the methodology 
set out in the Bosky Trees Arboricultural Method Statement dated 3rd October 2019 (received 
by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019).

Reason
To protect trees that are to be retained in the scheme.

Condition 17
Applications for Reserved Matters Approval pursuant to Condition 2 above shall be 
accompanied by a plan showing finished floor levels for all buildings within that application and 
an up to date report justifying a sufficient amount of freeboard to the buildings (minimum of 150 

Page 129



mm), or alternative mitigation, to ensure the surface water exceedance routes do not allow 
surface water ingress to buildings. The minimum design standard shall be a critical duration 1 
in 100 year (plus 40 % climate change) rainfall event. The development shall then be 
completed in accordance with the approved finished floor levels.

Reason
To ensure that the development remains safe for its users over the lifetime of the development

Condition 18
No development shall commence within an outline phase other than site securing, demolition or 
remediation until details for the disposal of surface water (in accordance with principles of 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)) from that phase have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall accord with the proposal set out in 
the applicant’s plan ref. 60571780-ACM-ZZ-ZZ-DR-C-00001 Rev. P04 (received by the Local 
Planning Authority on 13th January 2020). The submission shall include a detailed design, 
demonstrate the technical feasibility/viability of the drainage system through the use of SuDS to 
manage the flood risk to the site and elsewhere and the measures taken to manage the water 
quality for the life time of the development, and provide information about the design storm 
period and intensity, the method employed to delay and control the surface water discharged 
from the site and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or 
surface waters. The approved scheme for the surface water drainage shall be carried out in full 
in accordance with the approved details for that phase before any development within that 
phase is first occupied.

Reason
To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and thereby 
preventing the risk of flooding and reducing pollution. 
These details are required prior to commencement as the proposals will need to be laid out as 
approved as an early phase of work. 

Condition 19
No outline phase development shall be occupied until a SuDS management and maintenance 
plan for the lifetime of the development within that phase, which shall include the arrangements 
for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any other arrangements to 
secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved SuDS management and 
maintenance plan shall be implemented in full in accordance with the agreed terms and 
conditions for the lifetime of the development within that phase.

Reason
To ensure the continued operation and maintenance of drainage features serving the site and 
avoid flooding.

Condition 20
Reserved Matters Applications pursuant to Condition 2 above shall include details of works 
required to manage exceedance flow paths that are associated with the drainage system within 
that outline phase. No occupation shall take place within that phase until the approved details 
have been implemented and they shall be retained in an operable condition for the lifetime of 
the development of that phase. 

Reason
To deal with exceedance flows and mitigate flood risk impact. 

Page 130



Condition 21
No outline phase development shall be commenced other than site securing, demolition or 
remediation until details for the disposal of foul water within that phase have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented in full prior to first occupation of any development within that phase. 

Reason
To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage.
These details are required pre-commencement as the proposals will need to be laid out as 
approved as an early phase of work. 

Condition 22
Reserved matters applications for any land within the outline phase defined as Plot 4 on plan 
ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries (received by 
the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) shall include detailed drawings of 
proposed works to the full extent of the existing culverted watercourse beneath the plot to 
enable maintenance access to the culverted watercourse, and set out the access points from 
ground level to it. This shall broadly accord with the draft scheme shown on plan ref. 
60571780-ACM-ZZ-ZZ-DR-C-05001 Rev. P02 Proposed Culvert Protection Concept Scheme 
Details (within the AECOM Technical Note – Culvert Design Rationale received by the Local 
Planning Authority on 18th November 2019). The approved culvert design shall be implemented 
in full as part of the development of Plot 4 and no above ground development within Plot 4 shall 
commence until the approved culvert works have been completed, unless an alternative 
timescale for their completion is submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Reason
To ensure there is ongoing provision to maintain the watercourse not inhibited by the 
Development, in the interests of minimising flood risk. 

Condition 23
Reserved Matters Applications for any land within the outline phase defined as Plot 3d (as 
shown on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries 
received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) shall include a design 
that sets back the building footprint and foundation level a minimum of 3 metres from the 
outside edge (where closest to Plot 3d) of the culvert that is parallel with northern and southern 
edges of Plot 3d.

Reason
To protect the safe operation of the watercourse and address flood risk.

Condition 24
No development other than demolition down to ground floor slab level or site securing shall 
commence within an outline phase until a written scheme of investigation of archaeological 
remains, including a timetable for the investigation, for that phase, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 

Page 131



the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 25
Each programme of archaeological work pursuant to the written scheme of investigation of 
archaeological remains approved under Condition 24 shall subsequently be implemented and 
development within that phase shall accord with it. 

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 26
Each reserved matters application submitted pursuant to Condition 2 above shall be 
accompanied by a report outlining the results of a programme of archaeological evaluation, for 
that phase.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological evaluation, so as to describe the 
significance of heritage assets of archaeological interest within the site. This is to allow the 
scheme to be designed in a manner that reduces the impact on archaeological remains as 
much as possible. This is in accordance with paragraphs 193 and 199 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 
Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 27
Each reserved matters application submitted pursuant to Condition 2 above shall be 
accompanied by a detailed scheme showing the complete scope and arrangement of the 
foundation design and ground works of the proposed development for that phase (including pile 
type and methodology, ground contamination remediation, drains and services). Development 
shall only take place in accordance with the approved scheme. 

Reason
The site may contain significant heritage assets of archaeological interest. The Council requires 
that disturbance or damage by foundations and related works is minimised, and that 
archaeological remains are, where appropriate, preserved in situ. This accords with paragraphs 
192, 193, 194 and 195 of the NPPF and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 28
No ground contamination investigation works shall commence within an outline phase of the 
application site until a written scheme of investigation of archaeological remains, including a 
timetable for the investigation, for the ground contamination investigation works for that phase 
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Page 132



Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 29
Each programme of archaeological work pursuant to the written scheme of investigation of 
archaeological remains approved under Condition 28 shall subsequently be implemented and 
the investigation works shall accord with it.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 30
No remediation shall commence within an outline phase of the application site until a written 
scheme of investigation of archaeological remains, including a timetable for the investigation, 
for the remediation works for that phase has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 31
Each programme of archaeological work pursuant to the written scheme of investigation of 
archaeological remains approved under Condition 30 shall subsequently be implemented and 
the remediation works shall accord with it.  

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 32
No demolition in respect of no. 8 Market Parade shall take place until a record (equivalent to 
Historic England Level 3 recording) has been made of that building. The record shall include
a measured survey, written description and photographic record and shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority prior to any above ground works being carried out on Plot 3c (as 
shown on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018)

Reason
To record and advance understanding of heritage assets as the mitigation making the removal 
of this building acceptable. 

Condition 33
Prior to the commencement of development of an outline phase details of façade and glazing 

Page 133



design of buildings within that phase that include residential use shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, to demonstrate that internal noise level 
criteria from BS8233:2014 (or subsequent equivalent replacement standard) for residential use 
within that phase can be achieved. 

No residential unit for which measures are identified as required within the approved details 
shall be occupied until those measures have been implemented in full in relation to that unit. 

Reason
To ensure acceptable living conditions for future occupants. 

Condition 34
The rating level of sound emitted from any fixed plant or machinery associated with an outline 
phase of the development shall not exceed background sound levels by more than 5dB(A) 
between the hours of 0700-2300, taken as a 15 minute LA90 at the nearest sound sensitive 
premises and shall not exceed the background sound level between 2300-0700, taken as a 15 
minute LA90 at the nearest sound sensitive receiver. All measurements shall be made in 
accordance with the methodology of BS 4142 (2014: Methods for rating and assessing 
industrial and commercial sound) or any national guidance replacing that Standard.

Where access to the nearest sound sensitive property is not possible, measurements shall be 
undertaken at an appropriate location and corrected to establish the noise levels at the nearest 
sound sensitive property.

Reason
To safeguard the amenities of the area

Condition 35
Construction and demolition work and the delivery of materials within any outline phase shall 
only be carried out between 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800hours to 
1300hours on Saturdays and no construction or demolition work or deliveries shall take place 
on Sundays or Public/Bank Holidays. 

Reason
To safeguard the amenities of the area.

Condition 36
Prior to commencement of any development within an outline phase a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for that phase shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include (but not be limited to):

a. Site access/egress
b. Staff/contractor facilities and travel arrangements
c. Dust mitigation
d. Noise and vibration mitigation
e. Measures for controlling leaks and spillages, managing silt and pollutants
f. Minimisation of disturbance to ecological assets

Development of that phase shall take place only in accordance with the approved CEMP. 

Reason
To protect the environment. 
These details are required pre-commencement due to the potential impacts of the first phase of 

Page 134



works.  

Condition 37
No restaurant/café or drinking establishment use (use classes A3 or A4, as defined in the Town 
and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)) or hotel use if it includes a 
restaurant/café within an outline phase shall open to customers until ventilation and cooking 
fume control measures have been installed in accordance with details that have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the equipment 
shall be maintained in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions.

Reason
In the interests of protecting the amenities of the area

Condition 38
All reserved matters applications pursuant to Condition 2 above shall include details of the 
proposed car parking spaces which shall be constructed so as to enable charging of plug-in 
and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe, accessible and convenient locations. This shall 
include a minimum of 2% of non-residential spaces to be enabled for charging of plug-in and 
other ultra-low emission vehicles and 50% of residential spaces. The approved details shall be 
implemented prior to the occupation of any respective building within the phase in which that 
parking is located.

Reason
To ensure that the development incorporates facilitates for charging plug-in and other ultra-low 
emission vehicles. 

Condition 39
A Waste Minimisation Statement for the Demolition and Construction Period shall be submitted 
prior to commencement of development of any outline phase. The Waste Minimisation 
Statement shall include details of the types and volumes of construction and demolition waste 
likely to be generated including measures to minimise, re-use and recycle that waste, and 
minimise the use of raw materials. Development shall only be carried out in accordance with 
the agreed Waste Minimisation Statement.

Reason
In the interests of waste minimisation. 
These details are required prior to commencement because the measures relate to controlling 
the first stages of activities on site. 

Condition 40
All applications for the approval of Reserved Matters of outline phases pursuant to condition 2 
above shall include a Waste Minimisation Statement for buildings within that phase/those 
phases. The Waste Minimisation Statement shall include;
 Provision within any residential development of on-site storage receptacles for recycling at 

identified locations appropriate in size and location to the number of residential units; 
 Provision within any commercial and business areas of facilities or allocated areas to sort, 

store, treat and manage a majority of the waste produced internal to each of those parts of 
the site; and 

 Suitable processing arrangements for recycling/waste collection vehicles. 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Waste Minimisation 
Page 135



Statement and all the approved measures shall thereafter be retained for the lifetime of the 
development

Reason
In the interests of waste minimisation.

Condition 41
Reserved matters applications shall include a scheme for biodiversity enhancement, including 
incorporation of permanent bat roosting feature(s) and other measures such as nesting 
opportunities for birds. The approved details shall thereafter be implemented, retained and 
maintained for their designed purpose in accordance with the approved scheme. The scheme 
shall include, but is not limited to, the following details:

i. Description, design or specification of the type of feature(s) or measure(s) to be undertaken;
ii. Materials and construction to ensure long lifespan of the feature/measure;
iii. A drawing(s) showing the location and where appropriate the elevation of the features or 
measures to be installed or undertaken;
iv. When the features or measures will be installed and made available.

Reason
To provide net gains for biodiversity. 

Condition 42
All reserved matters applications for outline phases pursuant to condition 2 above shall include 
details of measures to discourage seagulls from nesting and roosting on each building 
proposed. The approved measures shall be implemented for that building in full prior to the 
occupation of the building.

Reason
In the interests of the appearance of the development and to avoid nuisance caused by
nesting and roosting seagulls. 

Condition 43
Each application for the approval of reserved matters for outline phases shall include details of 
cycle and bin storage facilities. No building within an outline phase shall be occupied until the 
cycle and bin storage facilities for that building have been made available for use in accordance 
with the approved plans, and those facilities shall be maintained for the lifetime of the 
development.

Reason
To give priority to cycle movements by ensuring that adequate cycle parking is provided, to 
promote cycle use and to ensure that the appropriate opportunities for sustainable transport 
modes have been taken up, and in the interests of the visual amenities of the area and avoid 
clutter on the highway.

Condition 44
No development on an outline phase shall commence until a highways construction 
management plan addressing the demolition and construction periods for that phase of the 
development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The plan shall address the following matters:
i. parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

Page 136



ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials;
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
iv. wheel washing facilities.
v. a routing strategy for the delivery of plant and materials and construction traffic
vi. details of the methods of communication with local occupants about construction phase 
traffic
Demolition and construction shall only take place in accordance with the approved highways 
construction management plan. 

Reason
To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and accommodate the efficient delivery of 
goods in accordance with paragraph 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
These details are required prior to commencement because they are to address impacts that 
may occur from the initial activities on site. 

Condition 45
No building on Plot 4 shall be occupied until the new street between Plots 2 and 4 (including 
surface water drainage/disposal and street lighting) providing access to that building has been 
provided to at least base course level.

Reason
To minimise hazards and inconvenience for users of the development by ensuring that there is 
a safe, suitable and secure means of access to an adoptable highway for all people that 
minimises the scope for conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians in accordance with 
paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition 46
The approved Travel Plan (Project no. 60571780 December 2018) shall be implemented each 
phase of the development that includes buildings in accordance with the details and timetable 
therein.

Reason
The development will generate a significant amount of movement and to ensure that the 
appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes are taken up in accordance 
with paragraphs 108 and 111 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition 47
Other than for the Kings Square phase (marked as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-
91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on 
the 12th December 2018), no development of a phase other than demolition, site securing, or 
that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall commence 
until parts 1 to 4 below have been complied with for that phase. If unexpected contamination is 
found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site 
affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing until part 4 has been complied with in relation to that contamination. 

1. Site Characterisation 
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning 
application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent 
of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site, which has first been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings 

Page 137



shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report of the 
findings must include: 

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

• human health, 
• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and 
service lines and pipes,
• adjoining land, 
• groundwaters and surface waters, 
• ecological systems, 
• archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 

2. Submission of Remediation Scheme 
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and 
historical environment must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The 
scheme must accord with the provisions of the EPA 1990 in relation to the intended use of the 
land after remediation. 

Where undertaken on a phased basis the Remediation Scheme must specify measures to 
ensure that remediated phases continue to be protected from impacts from un-remediated 
phases. 

3. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 
commencement of development other than demolition, site securing, or that required to be 
carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written 
notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report (elsewhere referred to as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of the 
remediation carried out must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the 
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with the requirements of part 1 of this condition, and where remediation is 
necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
part 2 above, and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification 
report must be prepared, and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority in accordance with part 3 above. 

Page 138



5. Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance 
A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term effectiveness of the 
proposed remediation over an appropriate time period, and the provision of reports on the 
same, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the remediation 
objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the effectiveness of the monitoring 
and maintenance carried out must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 

Reason
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring 
land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, 
and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

This condition is required as a pre-commencement condition because there is potential for 
contamination to exist on the site. 

Condition 48
An information pack setting out the location and sensitivities of the Cotswold Beechwoods 
Special Area of Conservation and Severn Estuary Special Protection Area, Special Area of 
Conservation and Ramsar Site (and Alney Island Nature Reserve as the functionally linked 
area), how to avoid negatively affecting them, alternative locations for recreational activities 
and off road cycling, and recommendations to dog owners for the times of year that dogs 
should be kept on a lead when using sensitive sites (i.e. to avoid disturbance to nesting birds) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
occupation of any residential dwelling within the development and thereafter two copies of the 
approved information pack shall be issued to each new residential occupier within that phase 
prior to the occupation of each respective new dwelling.

Reason 
To mitigate adverse effects on the integrity of the Cotswold Beechwoods SAC and the Severn 
Estuary SPA, SAC and Ramsar Site as a result of the development.

Condition 49
No residential dwelling within the development shall be occupied until works have been 
undertaken at Alney Island to enhance the environment for wildfowl in accordance with details 
which shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason
To secure the mitigation measures necessary to ensure no significance impact on biodiversity. 

Condition 50
The development of the detailed phases of the development hereby permitted shall be carried 
out in accordance with the drawings on the following plans except where otherwise required by 
conditions of this permission:

Page 139



Demolition plan (received by the Local Planning Authority on 12th December 2018)

Masterplans
Kings Quarter Masterplan – Level 0 plan ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-00-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P13
Kings Quarter Masterplan – Level 1 plan ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-01-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P11
Kings Quarter Masterplan – Level 2 plan ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-02-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P12
Kings Quarter Masterplan – Level 3 plan ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-03-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P11
Kings Quarter Masterplan – Level 4 plan ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-04-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P11
Kings Quarter Masterplan – Level 5 plan ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-05-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P10
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 29th November 2019)

Kings Quarter Masterplan – Level 6 plan ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-06-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P08 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 17th January 2020)

KQ Site sections – plan ref. KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-20-200 Rev. P02 
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Kings Square
Demolition plan (received by the Local Planning Authority on 12th December 2018)

Kings Square General Arrangement plan ref. 699 100 Rev. 02
Kings Square Landscape structures plan ref. 699 101 Rev. 01
Kings Square Bench schedule plan ref. 699 104 Rev. 00
Kings Square Trees lost and retained plan ref. 699 200 Revision 00
Kings Square Proposed trees plan ref. 699 201 Rev. 01
Kings Square Planting Strategy plan ref. 699 202 Rev. 03
Kings Square Tree pit detail plan ref. 699 203 Rev. 01 
Kings Square Site sections plan ref. 699 400 Rev. 01
Kings Square Handrails plan ref. 699 502 Rev. 01
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Kings Square Sculptural edge site plan ref. 142-GKA-00-DR-A-002 Rev. P1
Kings Square Sculptural edge site sections plan ref. 115-GKA-00-DR-A-010 Rev. P1
Kings Square Sculptural edge section 1 & 2 plan ref. 115-GKA-00-DR-A-100 Rev. P1
Kings Square Sculptural edge section 3 & 4 plan ref. 115-GKA-00-DR-A-101 Rev. P1
Kings Square Sculptural edge section 5 plan ref. 115-GKA-00-DR-A-102 Rev. P1
Kings Square Sculptural edge typical details plan ref. 115-GKA-00-DR-A-200 Rev. P1
Kings Square Sculptural edge typical details plan ref. 115-GKA-00-DR-A-201 Rev. P1
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 25th November 2019)

Plot 1
Proposed Block Plan – Plot 1 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-ZZ-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P02 
Plot 1 Elevations plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-ZZ-DR-A-20-101 Rev. P06 
Plot 1 Elevations plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-ZZ-DR-A-20-102 Rev. P06 
Plot 1 Landscape plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-007 Rev. P02 
Soft landscape Plan - Plot 1 plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-125 Rev. P01 
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

GA - Plot 1 – Level 0 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-00-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P08
GA – Plot 1 – Level 1 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-01-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P08
GA - Plot 1 – Level 2 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-02-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P08
GA – Plot 1 – Level 3 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-03-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P08
GA – Plot 1 – Level 4 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-04-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P08
GA – Plot 1 – Level 5 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P1-05-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P05
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 5th December 2019)

Page 140



Block 2
Proposed Block Plan – Plot 2 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-ZZ-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P02
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

GA – Plot 2 – Level 0 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-00-DR-AZ-20-000 Rev. P16
GA – Plot 2 – Level 1 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-01-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P15
GA – Plot 2 – Level 2 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-02-DR-A-20-000 Rev. 15
GA – Plot 2 – Level 3 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-03-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P15
GA – Plot 2 – Level 4 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-04-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P14
GA – Plot 2 – Level 5 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-05-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P14 
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 5th December 2019)

GA – Plot 2 – Level 6 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-06-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P13 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 17th January 2020)

Elevations – Plot 2 - Sheet 1 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-ZZ-DR-A-20-101 Rev. P7 
Elevations – Plot 1 – Sheet 2 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P2-ZZ-DR-A-20-102 rev. P8
(both received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019) 

Block 3a
Proposed Block Plan – Plot 3A plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3A-ZZ-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P02
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 19th November 2019)

GA – Plot 3A – Kings House - Level 0 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3A-00-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P06
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 30th January 2020)

GA – Plot 3A – Kings House – Level 1 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3A-01-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P05
GA – Plot 3A – Kings House – Level 2 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3A-02-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P05
GA – Plot 3A – Kings House – Level 3 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3A-03-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P05 
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 12th December 2018)

Proposed elevations plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3A-ZZ-DR-A-20-100 Rev. P09
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Proposed elevations plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3A-ZZ-DR-A-20-101 Rev. P02
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 12th December 2018)

Block 3b
Proposed Block Plan – Plot 3B plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-ZZ-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P02 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Floorplans 
GA – Plot 3B – Level 0 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-00-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P06
GA – Plot 3B – Level 1 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-01-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P06 
GA – Plot 3B – Level 2 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-02-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P06
GA – Plot 3B – Level 3 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-03-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P06
GA – Plot 3B – Level 4 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-04-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P06
GA – Plot 3B – Level 5 plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-05-DR-A-20-000 Rev. P04
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Elevations – Plot 3B plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-ZZ-DR-A-20-101 Rev. P05 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Side Elevation – Plot 3B plan ref. KQG-AHR-P3B-ZZ-DR-A-20-102 Rev. P02
Page 141



(received by the Local Planning Authority on 12th February 2020)

Public realm and landscaping
Kings Quarter Landscape site plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-002 Rev. P05 
Kings Quarter Landscape Hard landscape GA plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-110 Rev. 
P04 
(both received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th January 2020)

Kings Quarter Landscape Hard Landscape plan 1 of 8 ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-111 
Rev. P03
Kings Quarter Landscape Hard Landscape plan 2 of 8 ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-112 
Rev. P03
Kings Quarter Landscape Hard Landscape plan 3 of 8 ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-113 
Rev. P03
Kings Quarter Landscape Hard Landscape plan 4 of 8 ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-114 
Rev. P03
Kings Quarter Landscape Hard Landscape plan 5 of 8 ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-115 
Rev. P03 
Kings Quarter Landscape Hard Landscape plan 7 of 8 ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-117 
Rev. P03
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Kings Quarter Landscape Hard landscape plan (6 of 8) ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-116 
Rev. P04  
Kings Quarter Landscape Hard landscape plan (8 of 8) ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-118 
Rev. P04
(both received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th January 2020)

Kings Quarter Landscape Bruton Way Gateway plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-004 
Rev. P02
Kings Quarter Landscape Cathedral View Gateway plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-005 
Rev. P02 
Kings Quarter Landscape Station Gateway plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-003 Rev. 
P02
Kings Quarter Landscape site sections 1 of 2 plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-130 Rev. 
P02 
Kings Quarter Landscape site sections 2 of 2 plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-131 Rev. 
P02
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Kings Quarter Landscape Kings Square Gateway plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-006 
Rev. P03 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th January 2020)

Tree removal plan ref. TR-1 Rev. A 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Kings Quarter Landscape Tree Retention / Removals Plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-
102 Rev. P02
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Kings Quarter Landscape Soft Landscape Plan GA plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-120 
Rev. P05 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th January 2020)

Page 142



Kings Quarter Landscape Soft Landscape Plan – Market Parade Suds plan ref. 00963-KQG-
AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-123 Rev. P03
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th January 2020)

Kings Quarter Soft Landscape Plan – Bruton Way Gateway plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-
90-L-121 Rev. P02
Kings Quarter Soft Landscape Plan – Cathedral View Suds plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-
90-L-122 Rev. P02 
Kings Quarter Soft Landscape Plan – Spread Eagle Road plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-
90-L-124 Rev. P02
Kings Quarter Soft Landscape Plan – London Plane Gateway plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-
ZZ-90-L-126 Rev. P01
(all received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Kings Quarter Landscape Tree Pit details plan ref. 00963-KQG-AHR-ZZ-ZZ-90-L-300 Rev. P03 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 18th November 2019)

Reason
To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

Condition 51
Development of the detailed phases of the development shall proceed in accordance with the 
Phases set out on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application  
boundaries (received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018).

Reason
To enable the development to proceed in phases and the Local Planning Authority to assess 
details under conditions in each respect. 

Condition 52
No more than 50% of the aggregate ground floor floorspace of units within Plot 2 as shown on 
plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries (received 
by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) that have frontage onto a street 
shall be used at any one time for any purpose within Class A4  as defined in the schedule to 
the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)). 

Reason
To ensure a suitable mix of uses and to preserve the vitality and amenities of the area. 

Condition 53
No demolition of buildings, tree removal or any other clearance works likely to impact upon 
nesting birds shall take place within a detailed phase between 1st March and 31st August 
inclusive within any year unless a survey (by a suitably qualified ecologist) to assess the 
nesting bird activity on the part of the site to be developed during this period and a scheme to 
protect the nesting bird interest on the site have first been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority and then implemented as approved. 

Reason
In accordance with the submitted ecological survey, in the interests of the preservation of 
biodiversity. 

Page 143



Condition 54
No development other than demolition down to ground floor slab level or site securing shall 
commence within a detailed phase other than Kings Square (shown as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-
AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local 
Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) until a detailed scheme showing the complete 
scope and arrangement of the foundation design and ground works of the proposed 
development for that phase (including pile type and methodology, ground contamination 
remediation, drains and services) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall only take place in accordance with the approved 
scheme.

Reason
The site may contain significant heritage assets of archaeological interest. The Council requires 
that disturbance or damage by foundations and related works is minimised, and that 
archaeological remains are, where possible, preserved in situ. This accords with paragraphs 
192, 193, 194 and 195 of the NPPF and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 55
No development other than demolition down to ground floor slab level or site securing shall 
commence within a detailed phase until a written scheme of investigation of archaeological 
remains, including a timetable for the investigation, for that phase, has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 56
Each programme of archaeological work pursuant to the written scheme of investigation of 
archaeological remains approved under Condition 55 shall subsequently be implemented and 
development within that phase shall accord with it. 

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 57
No development other than demolition down to ground floor slab level or site securing shall 
take place within Phase 2 (as shown on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 
Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th 
December 2018) until a report outlining the results of a programme of archaeological evaluation 
for that phase, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological evaluation, so as to describe the 
significance of heritage assets of archaeological interest within the site. This is to allow the 
scheme to be designed in a manner that reduces the impact on archaeological remains as 

Page 144



much as possible. This is in accordance with paragraphs 193 and 199 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 
Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 58
No development shall commence on any replacement of the culvert in front of Plot 3d (as 
shown on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries 
received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) until a detailed scheme 
showing the complete scope and arrangement of the ground works for the proposed culvert 
replacement (including the design of the new culvert and any ground contamination 
remediation) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall only take place in accordance with the approved scheme.
 
Reason
The site may contain significant heritage assets of archaeological interest. The Council requires 
that disturbance or damage by foundations and related works is minimised, and that 
archaeological remains are, where appropriate, preserved in situ. This accords with paragraphs 
192, 193, 194 and 195 of the NPPF and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 59
No development of the culvert in front of Plot 3d (as shown on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-
A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority 
on the 12th December 2018) shall commence within the application site until a written scheme 
of investigation of archaeological remains, including a timetable for the investigation, for those 
works, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 60 
The programme of archaeological work pursuant to the written scheme of investigation of 
archaeological remains approved under Condition 59 shall subsequently be implemented and 
development of the culvert replacement shall accord with it. 

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 61
No ground contamination investigation works shall commence within a detailed phase until a 
written scheme of investigation of archaeological remains, including a timetable for the 
investigation, for the ground contamination investigation works for that phase has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.

Reason
Page 145



To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 62
Each programme of archaeological work pursuant to the written scheme of investigation of 
archaeological remains approved under Condition 61 shall subsequently be implemented and 
the investigation works shall accord with it.  This condition will not be discharged for a phase 
until the programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, publication 
and dissemination and deposition of resulting material for the ground investigation of that 
phase, has been implemented as outlined in that written scheme of investigation and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 63
No remediation shall commence within a detailed phase until a written scheme of investigation 
of archaeological remains, including a timetable for the investigation, for the remediation works 
for that phase has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 64
Each programme of archaeological work pursuant to the written scheme of investigation of 
archaeological remains approved for each detailed phase under Condition 63 shall 
subsequently be implemented and the remediation works shall accord with it.  

Reason
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to record and advance 
understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 65
Notwithstanding the submitted plans, prior to the commencement of any above-ground 
construction of a building within a detailed phase, samples of all facing materials and detailing 
for that building (comprising of any facing brick and mortar, cladding, roofing material, 
stonework, window and door frames and reveals, rooflights, eaves, parapet walls, balconies 
(including a section drawing), rainwater goods, any vents, flues and meter boxes, provision for 
television services, and including scaled elevations showing their use across the building) shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Buildings shall be 
constructed only in accordance with the approved materials. 

Page 146



Reason
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area and setting of listed buildings. 

Condition 66
Notwithstanding the submitted plans, hard surfacing within a detailed phase shall be 
implemented only in accordance with samples and scaled drawings showing their use across 
the phase that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Reason
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area and setting of listed buildings. 

Condition 67
Other than for the Kings Square phase (shown as ‘KS’ on plan ref.  KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-
91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on 
the 12th December 2018), and notwithstanding the submitted plans, any boundary treatments 
within a detailed phase shall be implemented in accordance with scaled drawings of their 
location, form, appearance and materials that shall first be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area and setting of listed buildings. 

Condition 68
Other than for the Kings Square phase (shown as ‘KS’ on plan ref.  KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-
91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on 
the 12th December 2018), and notwithstanding the submitted plans, street furniture within a 
detailed phase shall be implemented on in accordance with scaled drawings of their location, 
form, appearance and materials that shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area and setting of listed buildings. 

Condition 69
No development on Plot 1 (as shown on plan ref.  KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 
Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th 
December 2018) shall take place other than site securing or remediation until a Method 
Statement setting out the method of construction of the building at Plot 1 (and any monitoring 
measures during the construction process to ensure ongoing protection of the adjacent listed 
building no. 102 Northgate Street) and specifying the detailing of any physical attachment to 
the listed building (on scaled drawings) including the arrangement of the roof and rainwater 
goods, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Works 
shall be undertaken only in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason
Page 147



To protect the special character of the adjacent listed building.

Condition 70
Prior to commencement of any above ground development within Plot 1 (as shown on plan ref. 
KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the 
Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) details of soft landscaping (comprising of 
a scaled layout plan and planting specification) for that phase shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason
To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development and to preserve and enhance the 
quality of the environment.

Condition 71
Prior to commencement of any above ground development within the public realm phase 
(shown as ‘KQ’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application 
boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) details of soft 
landscaping (comprising of a scaled layout plan and planting specification) for that phase shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason
To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development and to preserve and enhance the 
quality of the environment.

Condition 72
The approved soft landscaping details for each detailed phase shall be carried out in full 
concurrently with the development of that phase and shall be completed no later than the first 
planting season following the completion of the building works within that phase. The planting 
within that phase shall be maintained for a period of 5 years following implementation of each 
phase. During this time any trees, shrubs or other plants which are removed, die, or are 
seriously damaged shall be replaced during the next planting season with others of similar size 
and species unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. If any 
plants fail more than once they shall continue to be replaced on an annual basis until the end of 
the 5 year maintenance period.

Reason
To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development and to preserve and enhance the 
quality of the environment.

Condition 73
Other than for the Kings Sq phase (marked as KS of plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 
Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th 
December 2018) all construction and demolition work and the delivery of materials shall only be 
carried out between 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800hours to 1300hours on 
Saturdays and no construction or demolition work or deliveries shall take place on Sundays or 
Public/Bank Holidays. 

Reason
To safeguard the amenities of the area.

Page 148



Condition 74
Other than for the Kings Square phase (marked as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-
91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on 
the 12th December 2018) no development shall commence within a detailed phase other than 
demolition, remediation and site securing until details for the disposal of foul water from that 
phase have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall be implemented in full prior to first occupation of development within 
that phase. 

Reason
To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage. 

Condition 75
Other than for Kings Square (marked as KS of plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. 
P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th 
December 2018), no development shall commence within a detailed phase other than site 
securing, demolition or remediation until details for the disposal of surface water (in accordance 
with principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)) from that phase have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall accord with the 
proposal set out in the applicant’s plan ref. 60571780-ACM-ZZ-ZZ-DR-C-00001 Rev. P04 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th January 2020). The submission must include 
a detailed design, demonstrate the technical feasibility/viability of the drainage system through 
the use of SuDS to manage the flood risk to the site and elsewhere and the measures taken to 
manage the water quality for the life time of the development, and provide information about 
the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to delay and control the surface 
water discharged from the site and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving 
groundwater and/or surface waters. The approved scheme for the surface water drainage shall 
be carried out in full in accordance with the approved details for that phase before any 
development within that phase is occupied.

Reason
To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and thereby 
reducing the risk of flooding and to minimise the risk of pollution.

Condition 76
No development within a detailed phase shall be occupied until a SuDS management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development for that phase, which shall include the 
arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any other 
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved SuDS 
management and maintenance plan shall be implemented in full for that phase in accordance 
with the agreed terms and conditions for the lifetime of the development.

Reason
To ensure the continued operation and maintenance of drainage features serving the site and 
avoid flooding.

Condition 77
No development shall take place within a detailed phase (other than the Kings Square phase 
marked as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application 
boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) other than 
site securing, demolition or remediation until details of works required to manage exceedance 

Page 149



flow paths associated with the drainage systems for all the detailed phases and including 
evidence that this provides for the drainage systems for the outline phases have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details 
shall be implemented as approved concurrently with the implementation of the drainage 
system. 

Reason
To deal with exceedance flows and mitigate flood risk impact. 

Condition 78
The ground floor finished floor level of buildings within the detailed phases shall be set for each 
respective building at the levels shown for that building within Annex L of the Kings Quarter and 
Kings Square Flood Risk Assessment November 2019 (received by the Local Planning 
Authority on 18th November 2019).   

Reason
To ensure that the development remains safe for its users over the lifetime of the development

Condition 79
No street furniture shall be installed within the Kings Square phase (marked as ‘KS’ on plan ref. 
KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the 
Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) and no above ground development shall 
take place within the public realm phase (defined as ‘KQ’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-
91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on 
the 12th December 2018) until details of permanent heritage interpretation media within the 
respective phase (comprising of scaled plans showing the location and appearance of the 
interpretation media, and details of the content/display material) have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be implemented 
concurrently with the construction of that phase. 

Reason
To enhance understanding of the significant heritage assets within the site, and to preserve the 
visual amenities of the area. 

Condition 80
Implementation of any detailed phase shall be undertaken in accordance with the tree 
protection measures set out in the Bosky Trees Arboricultural Method Statement dated 3rd 
October 2019, and those measures shall be retained for the duration of the demolition and 
construction period for that phase. 

Reason
To protect trees that are to be retained in the scheme. 

Condition 81
The removal and/or installation of hard surfacing around retained trees within any detailed 
phase shall take place only in accordance with the methodology set out in the Bosky Trees 
Arboricultural Method Statement dated 3rd October 2019

Reason
To protect trees that are to be retained in the scheme.

Page 150



Condition 82
Prior to the commencement of above ground development of Plot 1, 2, or 3b respectively (as 
shown on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries 
received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018), details of façade and 
glazing design for buildings on that Plot shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, to demonstrate that internal noise level criteria from BS8233:2014 (or 
subsequent equivalent replacement standard) for residential use within that phase can be 
achieved. 

No residential unit for which measures are identified as required within the approved details 
shall be occupied until those measures have been implemented in full. 

Reason
To ensure acceptable living conditions. 

Condition 83
The rating level of sound emitted from any fixed plant or machinery associated with the detailed 
phases of the development shall not exceed background sound levels by more than 5dB(A) 
between the hours of 0700-2300, taken as a 15 minute LA90 at the nearest sound sensitive 
premises and shall not exceed the background sound level between 2300-0700, taken as a 15 
minute LA90 at the nearest sound sensitive receiver. All measurements shall be made in 
accordance with the methodology of BS 4142 (2014: Methods for rating and assessing 
industrial and commercial sound).

Where access to the nearest sound sensitive property is not possible, measurements shall be 
undertaken at an appropriate location and corrected to establish the noise levels at the nearest 
sound sensitive property.

Reason
To safeguard the amenities of the area

Condition 84
No restaurant/café or drinking establishment use (use classes A3 or A4 as defined in the Town 
and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)) within the detailed phases 
shall commence until ventilation and cooking fume control measures have been installed in the 
respective unit in accordance with details which have first been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the equipment shall be maintained in 
accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions.

Reason
In the interests of protecting the amenities of the area

Condition 85
Prior to commencement of any development within a detailed phase a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for that phase shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development of that phase shall take place only in 
accordance with the approved details. The CEMP shall include (but not be limited to): 

a. Site access/egress
b. Staff/contractor facilities and travel arrangements
c. Dust mitigation
d. Noise and vibration mitigation

Page 151



e. Measures for controlling leaks and spillages, managing silt and pollutants
f. Minimisation of disturbance to ecological assets

Reason
To protect the environment. 
These details are required pre-commencement due to the potential impacts of the first phase of 
works.  

Condition 86
No development of a detailed phase shall commence until a Waste Minimisation Statement for 
the Demolition and Construction Period for that phase has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Waste Minimisation Statement shall include details 
of the types and volumes of construction and demolition waste likely to be generated including 
measures to minimise, re-use and recycle that waste, and minimise the use of raw materials. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Waste Minimisation 
Statement.

Reason
In the interests of waste minimisation. 
This is required pre-commencement given the impacts are likely to commence immediately 
upon development starting. 

Condition 87
Other than for Kings Square (marked as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. 
P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th 
December 2018), no building within a detailed phase shall be occupied until a Waste 
Minimisation Statement for each building within that phase has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Waste Minimisation Statement shall 
include;
 Provision within residential development of on-site storage receptacles for recycling at 

identified locations appropriate in size and location to the number of residential units; 
 Provision within commercial and business areas of facilities or allocated areas to sort, store, 

treat and manage a majority of the waste produced internal to each of those parts of the 
site; and 

 Suitable processing arrangements for recycling/waste collection vehicles. 

Development shall be completed and maintained in strict accordance with the approved Waste 
Minimisation Statement.

Reason
In the interests of waste minimisation.

Condition 88
Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to any above ground construction within a detailed 
phase other than Kings Square (shown as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 
Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th 
December 2018), a scheme for biodiversity enhancement within that phase, including 
incorporation of permanent bat roosting feature(s) and other measures such as nesting 
opportunities for birds, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved details thereafter shall be implemented concurrently with the 
development of that phase, and retained and maintained for their designed purpose, in 
accordance with the approved scheme. The scheme shall include, but is not limited to, the 

Page 152



following details:

i. Description, design or specification of the type of feature(s) or measure(s) to be undertaken;
ii. Materials and construction to ensure long lifespan of the feature/measure;
iii. A drawing(s) showing the location and where appropriate the elevation of the features or 
measures to be installed or undertaken;
iv. When the features or measures will be installed and made available.

Reason
To provide net gains for biodiversity. 

Condition 89
Prior to the first occupation of a building within a detailed phase, a scheme of seagull mitigation 
measures for that building shall be implemented in full in accordance with details which shall 
first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any management 
measures comprised in the approved details shall be operated for the lifetime of the 
development. 

Reason
To deal with gull nuisance issues in the interests of the amenities of the area.

Condition 90
No public art installation as shown on the approved plans for the public realm phase (‘KQ’ on 
plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received 
by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) shall be implemented until details 
of that public art installation (including scaled layout and elevations, visualisation, details of 
below ground foundations and utilities and a timetable for implementation) have been 
submitted to and approved by Local Planning Authority. Development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details.  

Reason
To secure details of these features, in the interests of the visual amenities of the area and 
preservation of heritage assets. 

Condition 91
Other than for the Kings Square phase (marked as KS on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-
005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 
12th December 2018), no development within a detailed phase shall be occupied until the cycle 
and bin storage facilities for the buildings within that phase have been made available for use in 
accordance with the approved plans, and those facilities shall be maintained for the lifetime of 
the development.

Reason
To give priority to cycle movements by ensuring that adequate cycle parking is provided, to 
promote cycle use and to ensure that the appropriate opportunities for sustainable transport 
modes have been taken up, and in the interests of the visual amenities of the area and avoid 
clutter on the highway.

Condition 92
No development on a detailed phase shall commence until a highways construction 
management plan addressing the demolition and construction periods for that phase of the 

Page 153



development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The plan shall address the following matters:
i. parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials;
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
iv. wheel washing facilities.
v. a routing strategy for the delivery of plant and materials and construction traffic
vi. details of the methods of communication with local occupants about construction phase 
traffic
Demolition and construction shall only take place in accordance with the approved highways 
construction management plan. 

Reason
To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and accommodate the efficient delivery of 
goods in accordance with paragraph 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
These details are required prior to commencement because they are to address impacts that 
may occur from the initial activities on site. 

Condition 93
Prior to the removal of any existing allocated parking space within St Aldate Street or The 
Oxbode the additional parking shall be provided in accordance with the submitted drawing 
60571780.011 Rev B.

Reason
In order to address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in accordance 
with paragraph 110 of the NPPF.

Condition 94
Prior to the link between Spread Eagle Road and Market Parade being closed or Market 
Parade being closed to south-west bound traffic off Bruton Way, four additional bus stops 
including shelters shall be provided on the north west side of Market Parade as shown on 
drawing 60571780.012 Rev A and the associated carriageway widening and the 
decommissioning of stops on the southbound side of Worcester Street shall be completed.

Reason
To provide a layout that maximises the catchment area for bus or other  transport services and 
to provide appropriate facilities to encourage public transport use.

Condition 95
Prior to the removal of any allocated taxi rank space from the existing taxi rank provision to the 
north east of Station Road/Market Parade the replacement provision on Bruton Way to the east 
of Plot 4 (shown on plan ref. 60571780.032 Rev. C received by the Local Planning Authority on 
18th November 2019 within the AECOM Transport Addendum) shall be completed in full in 
accordance with details which shall first be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

Reason 
To ensure that the opportunities for sustainable transport have been taken up in accordance 
with paragraph 108 of the NPPF and Policy INF1 of the JCS.

Condition 96
Page 154



Prior to the commencement of use of the multi storey car park a Car Park Management Plan 
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The proposed multi 
storey car park shall be operated in accordance with the approved Management Plan for the 
duration of its use.

Reason
To ensure that the existing infrastructure remains suitable to serve the development in 
accordance with Policy INF6 of the Joint Core Strategy.

Condition 97
Prior to the first use of the multi storey car park hereby approved, at least 2% of commercial car 
parking spaces and at least 50% of residential car parking spaces shall be constructed so as to 
enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe, accessible and 
convenient locations shall be installed to full working order in accordance with details which 
shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason
To ensure that the development incorporates facilitates for charging plug-in and other ultra-low 
emission vehicles. 

Conditions for the Kings Square phase

Condition 98
Notwithstanding that shown on the approved plans, hard surfacing for the Kings Square phase 
(defined as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application 
boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) shall be 
implemented only in accordance with samples and a scaled layout setting out their location 
which shall first be submitted and approved in writing in advance by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Reason
To ensure an acceptable appearance to the development and to preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. 

Condition 99
Prior to any above ground works within the Kings Square phase (defined as ‘KS’ on plan ref. 
KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the 
Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) details of the treatment of the Via Sacra 
route within that phase (comprising or a scaled layout plan showing the treatment, a detailed 
plan of their appearance, and a materials specification) shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance 
with the approved details. 

Reason
To ensure an acceptable appearance to the development and to preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area.

Condition 100
Notwithstanding the approved plans, prior to any above ground works within the Kings Square 
phase (defined as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed 
application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) 

Page 155



details of the street furniture within that phase (refuse and recycling bins, bollards, benches, 
decking, cycle racks, railings/handrails, freestanding ‘sculptural edge’  seating, lighting fixtures, 
and comprising of a scaled layout plan showing their location, scaled elevations of their 
appearance or equivalent manufacturer details, materials specification, and in the case of any 
lighting - orientation of the fixtures and lux plans) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details. 

Reason
To ensure an acceptable appearance to the development and to preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area.

Condition 101
Drainage within the Kings Square phase (defined as KS on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-
91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on 
the 12th December 2018) shall be implemented in accordance with the Hydrock plan ref. 
KINGSQ-HYD-ZZ-00-DR-C-7000 Rev. P05 (received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th 
January 2020).  

Reason
To provide a satisfactory means of draining the site and dealing with pollution, and addressing 
flood risk issues.  

Condition 102
Prior to installation of the approved drainage system within the Kings Square phase (defined as 
‘KS’ on defined as KS on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed 
application boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) a 
maintenance strategy for the drainage system within that phase shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The system shall be operated in 
accordance with the approved maintenance strategy for the duration of its use.

Reason
To ensure the ongoing functioning of the drainage system to address pollution and flood risk 
issues. 

Condition 103
No development of the Kings Square phase (marked as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-
DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application boundaries received by the Local Planning 
Authority on the 12th December 2018) other than demolition, site securing, or that required to 
be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall commence until parts 1 to 4 
have been complied with for that phase. If unexpected contamination is found after 
development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the 
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until 
part 4 has been complied with in relation to that contamination. 
 
1. Site Characterisation 
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning 
application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent 
of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site, with the exception of 
the areas investigated and reported on in Wilson Associates Draft letter report: ref: TC/4565; 
dated 27th September 2019. The contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing 
of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by 

Page 156



competent persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings 
must include:

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

• human health, 
• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and 
service lines and pipes,
• adjoining land, 
• groundwaters and surface waters, 
• ecological systems, 
• archeological sites and ancient monuments; 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 

2. Submission of Remediation Scheme 
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and 
historical environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management 
procedures. The scheme must accord with the provisions of the EPA 1990 in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 

3. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 
commencement of development other than demolition, site securing, or that required to be 
carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written 
notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report (elsewhere referred to as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of the 
remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the 
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with the requirements of part 1 of this condition, and where remediation is 
necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
part 2, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification 
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority in accordance with part 3. 

5. Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance 
A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term effectiveness of the 

Page 157



proposed remediation over an appropriate time period, and the provision of reports on the 
same must be prepared, both of which are subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the remediation 
objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the effectiveness of the monitoring 
and maintenance carried out must be produced, and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 

Reason
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring 
land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, 
and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

This condition is required as a pre-commencement condition because there is potential for 
contamination to exist on the site. 
 

Condition 104
All ground works (including excavation and construction works) within the Kings Square phase 
(marked as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application 
boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) shall be 
undertaken strictly in accordance with paragraphs 2.2 to 2.20 of the Cotswold Archaeology 
Archaeological Impact and Mitigation Statement (CA Report 18337b Rev. G January 2020) 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 17th January 2020). 

Reason
The site contains significant heritage assets of archaeological interest. The Council requires 
that disturbance or damage by foundations and related works is minimised, and that 
archaeological remains are, where possible, preserved in situ. This accords with paragraphs 
192, 193, 194 and 195 of the NPPF and Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Adopted 2017.

Condition 105
Demolition, construction works and the delivery of materials within the Kings Square phase 
(marked as ‘KS’ on plan ref. KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-005 Rev. P08 Proposed application 
boundaries received by the Local Planning Authority on the 12th December 2018) shall only be 
carried out between 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800hours to 1300hours on 
Saturdays and no construction or demolition work or deliveries shall take place on Sundays or 
Public/Bank Holidays, other than where undertaken in accordance with the times and the 
limitations set out within the Midas Environmental Management Plan for Kings Square 
(received by the Local Planning Authority on 10th February 2020). 

Reason
To protect the amenities of the area. 

Condition 106
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied (other than residential dwellings) until 
an Employment and Skills Training Plan, tailored to the development, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 

Page 158



subsequently carried out in accordance with this approved plan. 
 
Reason
In the interests of delivering local employment and skills training opportunities in accordance 
with Policy B1 of the Pre-Submission Gloucester City Plan 2011-2031. 

Note
The parameter plan should not be taken to indicate that the maximum heights shown would be 
acceptable across the whole plot footprint. This approval is subject to considerations of good 
design, and notably the parameter plan shows a reduced scale of building on Plot 3d adjacent 
to Spreadeagle Court. 

Note
Works within the scheduled areas will require Scheduled Monument Consent under Section 2 
of the Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979. 

Note
Severn Trent Water advises that there are public sewers located within this site. Public sewers 
have statutory protection and may not be built close to, directly over or be diverted without 
consent. You are advised to contact Severn Trent Water to discuss the proposals. Severn 
Trent will seek to assist in obtaining a solution which protects both the public sewer and the 
building. Please note, when submitting a Building Regulations application, the building control 
officer is required to check the sewer maps supplied by Severn Trent and advise them of any 
proposals located over or within 3 meters of a public sewer. Under the provisions of Building 
Regulations 2000 Part H4, Severn Trent can direct the building control officer to refuse building 
regulations approval. 

Please note that there is no guarantee that you will be able to build over or close to any Severn 
Trent sewers, and where diversion is required there is no guarantee that you will be able to 
undertake those works on a self-lay basis. Every approach to build near to or divert our assets 
has to be assessed on its own merit and the decision of what is or isn’t permissible is taken 
based on the risk to the asset and the wider catchment it serves. It is vital therefore that you 
contact Severn Trent Water at the earliest opportunity to discuss the implications of its assets 
crossing your site. Failure to do so could significantly affect the costs and timescales of your 
project if it transpires diversionary works need to be carried out by Severn Trent.

Note 
The implementation of this permission will require the stopping up of established highway rights 
by separate Order before works can commence and the Applicant/Developer is advised to 
instigate that process as soon as possible.

Note
The proposed development will involve works to be carried out on the public highway and the 
Applicant/Developer is required to enter into a legally binding Highway Works Agreement 
(including an appropriate bond) with the County Council before commencing those works.

Note
The parking restrictions and all other highway road markings and signage as shown on the 
submitted plans will require Traffic Regulation Orders and the applicant is advised to 
commencement these procedures as soon as practicable.

Note
For avoidance of doubt the submitted layout plan in relation to the Outline phase has been 
treated as being for illustrative purposes only. 

Page 159



Conditions for 19/01212/LBC

Condition 1 
The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 
of this consent. 

Reason 
Required to be imposed by Section 18(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 

Condition 2
No works shall be undertaken to the listed building until a Method Statement setting out the 
method of construction of the adjacent Plot 1 (and any monitoring measures during the 
construction process to ensure ongoing protection of the listed building) and specifying the 
precise detailing of the physical attachment to the listed building (on scaled drawings) including 
the arrangement of the roof and rainwater goods, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Works shall be undertaken only in accordance with the 
approved details.  

Reason
To protect the special character of the listed building. 

Person to Contact: Adam Smith (396702)

Page 160



Planning Application: 18/01454/FUL

Address: Kings Quarter  Kings Square  
Gloucester 

Committee Date:

© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 10019169
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



M
A

R
K

E
T
 P

A
R

A
D

E

ST ALDATE STREET

H
A

R
E

 L
A

N
E

Bank

S
P

R
E

A
D

 E
A

G
L
E

 R
O

A
D

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

N
E
W

 IN
N
 LA

N
E

C
ham

bers

KINGS SQUARE

TH
E O

XEBO
DE

S
TA

TIO
N
 R

O
A
D

Office

C
ounty

Head Post

Spread Eagle Court

K
in

g'
s 

W
al

k

Roof

H
ou

se

Lister

C
LA

R
E
N
C
E
 S

TR
E
E
T

M
or

ro
w
ay

House

BRUTON W
AY

G
E

O
R

G
E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

H
otel

B
R

U
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

N
ew

ton H
ouse

S
tatio

n

B
rune

l H
ouse

E
D

 &
 W

ard B
dy

S Gantry

S Gantry

El Sub Sta

The

Carriage

Building

Railway

House
S

h
e

lte
r

Tank

DEBENHAMS

THE REGAL

TWYVER HOUSE

WILKINSON

CATHEDRAL VIEW

NORTHGATE STREET

KEEP

CLEAR

KEEP

LOOK R
IG

HT

CLEAR

LO
O

K
 LE

F
T

LO
O

K
 L

E
FT

BUS

KEEP CLEAR

LANE

GATE

ONLY
BUS

STOPBUS

STOPBUS

STOP BUS

BUS
STOP

BUS
STOP

BUS
STOP

BUS
STOP

North

P4

P2

P3A

P3B

P3C

P3D
P1

OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION

DETAIL PLANNING APPLICATION

Kings Quarter Boundary

Outline Planning Application

Commercial - Class A1, A2, A3, A4, B1

Creative Hub KH - Class B1

Office - Class B1

Exhibition Space - D1

Foodhall KH - Class A3

Hotel  - Class C1

MSCP 

Residential - Class C3

Square Maintenance

Sub Station

Key:

AHR Architects Ltd
Vintry Building 
Wine Street
Bristol 
BS1 2BD
United Kingdom

T  +44(0)117 9299146
E  bristol@ahr.co.uk
www.ahr.co.uk

original by

client name

project

drawing

computer file plot date

project number scale

drawing number rev issue status

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all related drawings. All dimensions must 
be checked and verified on site before commencing any work or producing shop 
drawings. The originator should be notified immediately of any discrepancy.
This drawing is copyright and remains the property of AHR.

@A1

date created approved by

As indicated

C:\Revit Projects\KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-M3-A-SITE_P02_Irina.delolmoleung.rvt

P13

Masterplan - Level 0

2017.00963.000

Kings Quarter

Gloucester City Council

IDL / MDLN

17/08/2018

KQG-AHR-ZZ-00-DR-A-20-000

KB

P1

16/08/2018

0

SCALE  1 : 

10 20 30

500

Rev Description Date Dr
by

App
by

P01 FIRST ISSUE 20/08/2018 IDL KB

P02 General amendments 21/08/2018 IDL KB

P03 General update 22/08/2018 IDL,
MDL

N

KB

P04 All plots alignment and layout updated 03/09/2018 MDL
N,
IDL

KB

P05 Plots 1, 2 Updated 18/09/2018 MDL
N

KB

P06 Project Development 11/10/2018 MDL
N,
DD

KB

P07 Design Development 31/10/2018 MDL
N

KB

P08 Design Development 19/11/2018 IDL,
DD

KB

P09 Redline and Schedules Updated 21/11/2018 IDL KB

P10 Design Development 07/12/2018 IDL NH

P11 Plot 3D Commercial units updated 28/01/2019 IDL KB

P12 Addendum Update 11/11/2019 IDL MDLN

P13 Use classes added to key 29/11/2019 IDL MDLN

P
age 163



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Train Station

Bruton Way
Bruton W

ay

Twyver House

London Road

A430

Metz W
ay

A4302

A430

Gloucester Cathedral

Station Road

Northgate Street

Clare
nc

e St
re

et

The Oxebode

St Aldate Street

MARKET  PARADE

M
AR

KE
T  

PA
RA

DE

King's Square

KEY

King's Quarter Boundary
Area =  3.02 Ha ( 7.46 Acres)

Notes

..
issue status

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all related drawings.  All dimensions must be checked and

verified on site before commencing any work or producing shop drawings. The originator should be

notified immediately of any discrepancy.  This drawing is copyright and remains the property of AHR.

drawing number

project number

rev

scale

drawing

project

client

Rev

original by

Description Date App byDr by

@A1

date created Approved by

Gloucester City Council

Kings Quarter | Gloucester

Proposed
King's Quarter Boundary

2017 00963 000

KQG-AHR-MP-ZZ-DR-A-91-001

1.1000

P07 P1

MDLN 28.02.18 HG

THIS DRAWING READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH

AHR Architects Ltd

8th Floor

Clifton Heights

Triangle West

Bristol

BS8 1EJ

United Kingdom

T  +44(0)117 9299146

E  bristol@ahr-global.com

www.ahr-global.com

P01 First Issue 28.02.2018 MDLN HG

P02 Extend on Oxebode and St Aldate Sreet Updated 01.06.2018 MDLN HG

P03 Bus Station Site Excluded Updated 15.08.2018 MDLN GO

P04 Boundary Updated 23.08.2018 MDLN KB

P05 Plot 1 Boundary Updated 29.10.2018 MDLN KB

P06 Bus Station and Bruton Way Extent Updated 08.11.2018 MDLN FC

P07 Status Update to P1 10.12.2018 IDL NH

P
age 165

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
 :



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Abbeydale 
 19/00840/FUL FISHM 
 72 Mandara Grove Gloucester GL4 5XT  

 First floor extension to side of dwelling. 
 G3Y 20/01/2020 

 19/01022/FUL CALDJ 
 115 The Wheatridge East Gloucester GL4 5DW 

 Conversion of detached garage to living space and addition of first-floor 

 G3Y 31/01/2020 

 19/01028/FUL CALDJ 
 51 Fieldfare Gloucester GL4 4WH 

 Removal of cladding and replacement front and part side render 
 G3Y 06/01/2020 

 19/01195/FUL FISHM 
 26 Kinmoor Gloucester GL4 5XN 

 Part single-storey, part-two-storey extension to side and single-storey front porch. 

 G3Y 29/01/2020 

 Abbeymead 
 19/01185/FUL CALDJ 
 7 Deerhurst Close Gloucester GL4 5UG 

 Single storey side extension and part garage conversion 

 G3Y 28/01/2020 

 Barnwood 

  19/01125/FUL FISHM 
 1 Broad Leys Road Gloucester GL4 3YW 

 SINGLE STOREY REAR AND TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION TO DETACHED PROPERTY 

 G3Y 21/01/2020 

 

 

Page 167

Agenda Item 9



 19/01187/FUL RHIAM 
 Dominos Pizza Northbrook Road Gloucester GL4 3BU  

 Proposed change of use from (vacant) A1 retail to sui generis tanning shop use 

 G3Y 07/01/2020 

 Barton & Tredworth 
 19/01065/FUL GIBBJ 
 7 Sidney Street Gloucester GL1 4DB 

 Single storey rear extension. 

 G3Y 28/01/2020 

 19/01149/FUL CALDJ 
 3 Massey Road Gloucester GL1 4LG 

 Demolition of single storey extension. Erection of single storey extension.  

 G3Y 30/01/2020 

 Elmbridge 
 19/00139/ADV FISHM 
 Unit 2 Triangle Park Triangle Way Gloucester GL1 1AH  

 Illuminated projecting roof sign. 

 GC 27/01/2020 

 19/01229/TRECON JJH 
 Flat 1 9 Horton Road Gloucester GL1 3PX  

 TG1 Bay, T1 Hawthorn, T2 Elder, TG2 Mixed species group 

  Fell to combat subsidence damage to 9-11 Horton Road 

 TCNOB 03/01/2020 

Page 168



 Grange 
 19/00937/FUL CALDJ 
 241 Tuffley Lane Gloucester GL4 0NX  

 Dropped kerb. 
 G3Y 24/01/2020 

 Hucclecote 
 19/01192/FUL FISHM 
 23A Dinglewell Gloucester GL3 3HW 

 One/two storey extensions and internal reconfigurations. 

 G3Y 28/01/2020 

 Kingsholm & Wotton 
 19/01017/FUL CALDJ 
 119 Denmark Road Gloucester GL1 3JW 

 Single-storey side and rear extension 

 G3Y 08/01/2020 

 19/01035/CONDIT JOLM 
 Former Civil Service Sports Ground Estcourt Road Gloucester   

 Discharge of Condition 14 (Attenuation basin details) and Condition 15 (SUDS  
 maintenance plan) of Planning Permission 18/00306/FUL for the erection of 100  
 houses. 

 ALDIS 14/01/2020 

 19/01040/CONDIT JOLM 
 Former Civil Service Sports Ground Estcourt Road Gloucester   

 Discharge of Condition 6 (Archaeology) of Planning Permission 18/00306/FUL for 
 the erection of 100 houses. 

 PADIS 15/01/2020 

Page 169



 19/01193/TRECON JJH 
 39 Heathville Road Gloucester GL1 3DS  

 1.   Lime - Repollard in order to prevent too much growth and allow more light 

  2.  Hawthorn - Prune to shape and improve aesthetics (reduce by 30%) 
  3.  Cherry Plum - Prune heavily in order for a new crown to grow naturally 

 TCNOB 03/01/2020 

 Kingsway 
 19/01115/CONDIT CJR 
 Plot J Kingsway Gate Newhaven Road Quedgeley Gloucester   

 Discharge of Conditions 3 (surface water drainage), 4 (foul water drainage), 6  
 (contaminated land remediation - Part A), 8 (landscaping), 10 (tree protection),  
 11 (boundary treatment), 23 (dust management plan), 24 (site waste management 
 plan) and 25 (occupation waste management plan) on planning permission ref.  
  19/00058/FUL. 

 ALDIS 08/01/2020 

 19/01173/CONDIT CJR 
 Plot J Kingsway Gate Newhaven Road Quedgeley Gloucester   

 Partial discharge of condition 5 (archaeology - parts 1 & 2)) and full discharge of 
 condition 15 (travel Plan) on planning permission ref. 19/00058/FUL. 

 ALDIS 08/01/2020 

 20/00004/LAW GIBBJ 
 29 Brize Avenue Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2ED 

 Single storey rear extension 

 LAW 14/01/2020 

 Longlevens 
 19/01002/LAW GIBBJ 
 9 Dane Close Gloucester GL2 0UA 

 Single storey rear extension to provide an extended family kitchen 

 LAW 24/01/2020 

Page 170



 19/01030/FUL CALDJ 
 211 Longford Lane Gloucester GL2 9ET  

 Erection of a single storey side extension, removal of existing garage and  
 erection of single storey garage 

 REF 21/01/2020 

 19/01196/FUL ELENJ 
 31 Innsworth Lane Gloucester GL2 0DQ 

 New roof that extends over the existing conservatory and bungalow. Replacement  
 of existing garage. New Porch. Re-rendering of existing building. 

 G3Y 09/01/2020 

 Matson & Robinswood 
 19/00958/FUL ELENJ 
 21 Birchall Avenue Gloucester GL4 6LP 

 Proposed alterations and extension. 

 G3Y 16/01/2020 

 19/01055/CONDIT RHIAM 
 Dulverton Building Robinswood Hill Country Park Reservoir Road Gloucester  

 Discharge of Condition 3 (Drainage), 7(materials), 9 (Ecology), 10 (external  
 lighting) of planning permission 19/00681/FUL which related to the  
 refurbishment and extension of the existing Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust  

 ALDIS 09/01/2020 

 19/01305/TPO JJH 
 Matson House  50 Matson Lane Gloucester GL4 6ED 

 Numerous trees at the property are covered by TPO 124 (Selwyn School, Matson).  
 Please see inspection report dated December 2019 from Tree King Consulting for  
 full details of the trees involved, and the work required to maintain them. 

 TPDECS 28/01/2020 

  

 

 

 

Page 171



Moreland 

  19/01194/FUL CALDJ 
 223 Linden Road Gloucester GL1 5DU 

 Removal of existing rear extension replaced with single storey rear extension  
 (retrospective). 

 GSC 29/01/2020 

 Podsmead 
 19/01122/ADV RHIAM 
 Bristol Street Motors 3 Ramsdale Road Gloucester GL2 5FE  

 Proposed advertisement consent for 3 fascia signs, 1 overhead entrance marker,  
 1 vertical entrance marker,1 totem,1 parking mast, 1 directional sign, 1 display  
 mast, 1 poster unit. 

 GFY 02/01/2020 

 19/01124/FUL CALDJ 
 22 Keats Avenue Gloucester GL2 5BQ 

 Single storey extension to rear of property 

 G3Y 28/01/2020 

 Quedgeley Fielcourt 
 19/00399/FUL FEH 
 Land Adjoining Beacon View Naas Lane Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2SD  

 Erection of a terrace of three, three bedroom houses 

 REFREA 07/01/2020 

 19/01114/ADV FEH 
 Tesco Supermarket Severnvale Shopping Centre Bristol Road Quedgeley  

 1x 42" LCD media screen. 3x 1250mm x 700mm flag pole signs, overall 2450mm  
 in height. 

 GFY 06/01/2020 

 

 

 

Page 172



 Quedgeley Severnvale 

 19/01102/FUL CALDJ 
 19 Silver Birch Close Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4GG 

 Proposed single storey rear extension (permitted development) & garage conversion 
 G3Y 08/01/2020 

 Tuffley 
 19/00961/FUL CALDJ 
 131 Finlay Road Gloucester GL4 6SE 

 Wooden structure to the front of the property to be used as a car port.  
 (retrospective) 

 G3Y 14/01/2020 

 19/01134/FUL FISHM 
 1 Hillborough Road Gloucester GL4 0JG 

 Demolition of the existing garage and utility room, and construction of a new  
 side extension and the construction of a new porch to the front elevation of the property. 

 G3Y 22/01/2020 

 19/01148/FUL GIBBJ 
 47 Southfield Road Gloucester GL4 6UG 

 Demolition of existing single storey front extension and rebuild of single storey  
 extension to accommodate altered staircase. 

 G3Y 24/01/2020 

 19/01150/FUL CALDJ 
 19 Brookthorpe Close Gloucester GL4 0LJ 

 single storey extension to front of dwelling 

 REF 24/01/2020 

 Westgate 

 19/00644/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Land At Bakers Quay, Llanthony Wharf, And Monkmeadow Bounded By  

 Discharge of conditions 12 (treatment of levels change to northern boundary)  
 and 20 (scheme for ventilation and reduction of fumes and odours) of 16/00634/FUL 

 ALDIS 17/01/2020 

Page 173



 19/00864/PREAPP JOLM 
 Land At Hill Farm Hempsted Lane Gloucester   

 Pre-application relating to Outline application for residential development,  
 public open space, landscaping and sustainable drainage system (SuDs) and  
 vehicular access point from Hempsted Lane.  All matters reserved except for means of  
  access. 

 CLOSED 07/01/2020 

 19/00939/FUL GIBBJ 
 12 The Anchorage Gloucester GL2 5JW 

 Installation of roof lights to facilitate conversion of loft 

 G3Y 27/01/2020 

 19/00944/FUL RHIAM 
 23 Brunswick Square Gloucester   

 Conversion of third floor two-bedroom apartment to 2 no. 1 bedroom apartments. 

 G3Y 03/01/2020 

 19/00991/LBC RHIAM 
 23 Brunswick Square Gloucester   

 Listed building consent for internal works to allow the Conversion of third floor  
 two-bedroom apartment to 2 no. 1 bedroom apartments 

 GLB 03/01/2020 

 19/01113/ADV FEH 
 Tesco Supermarket St Oswalds Road Gloucester GL1 2SR  

 Erection of 1x 42" LCD media screen and 2x 1250mm x 700mm flag pole signs,  
 overall 2450mm in height 

 G3Y 06/01/2020 

 

 19/01119/DEM ADAMS 
 Bentinck House Bruton Way Gloucester   

 Demolition of a ten-level multi-storey car park with night club located under and  
 7-storey office block 

 PRIOR 31/01/2020 

  

 

Page 174



 

 

  19/01164/FUL RHIAM 
 19 Spa Road Gloucester GL1 1UY 

 Retrospective application for alteration of position of new internal wall off clinic 
 kitchen/ WC position running off chimney breast to new position 14cm toward  
 window adjacent to mantel shelf. Insertion of wash hand basin into south- east  
 corner of proposed clinic treatment room. Alteration of proposed positioning of internal     
  door opening 20cm towards window. External air conditioning condenser unit attached to  
  external wall of conservatory. 

 G3Y 13/01/2020 

 19/01165/LBC RHIAM 
 19 Spa Road Gloucester GL1 1UY 

 Retrospective Listed Building application for alteration of position of new  
 internal wall off clinic kitchen/ WC position running off chimney breast to new  
 position 14cm toward window adjacent to mantel shelf. Insertion of wash hand  
 basin into south- east corner of proposed clinic treatment room. Alteration of proposed  
  positioning of internal door opening 20cm towards window. External air conditioning  
  condenser unit attached to external wall of conservatory. 

 GLB 13/01/2020 

 19/01177/FUL RHIAM 
 84 Hempsted Lane Gloucester GL2 5JS  

 Two storey extension to Rear, Single storey extension to side (Revised Scheme). 
 G3Y 30/01/2020 

 19/01210/FUL ELENJ 
 32 High View Gloucester GL2 5LN 

 Double storey extension alongside Semi-detached house 

 G3Y 16/01/2020 

 19/01237/LBC GIBBJ 
 St Michaels Tower Eastgate Street Gloucester GL1 1PD  

 Proposed externally mounted Information Display Board 

 G3L 27/01/2020 

Page 175



 19/01240/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Land At Bakers Quay Llanthony Wharf And Monkmeadow Bounded By  

 Discharge of Condition 4 (noise testing prior to occupation for Phase 1) of  
 approval ref. 18/00680/REM 

 

 PADIS 28/01/2020 

 19/01259/CONDIT RHIAM 
 New County Hotel 44 Southgate Street Gloucester GL1 2DR  

 Discharge of Conditions 3 (written scheme of investigation), 4 (details of roof  
 covering) and 5 (materials) of planning permission 19/00289/FUL which was the  
 the change of use and extension to the storage building to create four additional  
 hotel rooms and ancillary storage space. 

 ALDIS 30/01/2020 

 19/01265/DCC FEH 
 Gloucestershire County Council Shire Hall Westgate Street Gloucester GL1  

 Non material amendment to 15/0122/GLREG3 - including amended configuration  
 of windows on 5th floor, changes to the colour of the cladding at junctions of  
 block 4 to block 5, retention of existing brickwork and changes to ground floor  
 extension of block 4. 

 CLOSED 20/01/2020 

 19/01287/CONDIT RHIAM 
 New County Hotel 44 Southgate Street Gloucester GL1 2DR  

 Discharge of conditions 4 (door, architraves and window details), 5 (roof  
 covering details) and 6 (materials) of planning application 19/00542/LBC which  
 was for the extension and alterations to existing storage building to facilitate  
 the change of use of the building to four additional hotel bedrooms and ancillary storage  
  space. 

 ALDIS 30/01/2020 

 20/00007/CONDIT ELENJ 
 137 Southgate Street Gloucester   

 Discharge of Conditions 3 (Additional Remedial Work) and 4 (Additional  
 Remedial Work of Roof) 

 ALDIS 31/01/2020 

Page 176



 20/00029/EIA ADAMS 
 Former Gloucester Prison Barrack Square Gloucester GL1 2JN  

 EIA Screening for application for : Variation/deletion of Conditions 4, 5, 6, 8, 9,  
 15, 16, 17, 19, 21, 23, 26, 29, 31, 33, 35, 43 and 50 of permission ref.  
 17/00659/FUL 
 
  Original development is for: 
  Redevelopment of the former HMP Gloucester site comprising the partial demolition  
  and conversion of Grade II* and Grade II listed buildings to provide 38 residential  
  dwellings (Use Class C3) and 481 sqm (GIA) of flexible commercial / community floorspace  
  (Use Classes A2, A3, A4, A5, B1, D1, D2) at ground floor and first floor of Block C (Chapel  
  wing); demolition of non-listed structures and the construction of seven new buildings up  
  to six storeys to accommodate 164 residential dwellings (Use Class C3); and associated car  
  parking, cycle parking, private and communal amenity space, landscaping, access and  
  related infrastructure works 

 SCR 14/01/2020 

Page 177



  

DECISION DESCRIPTIONS ABBREVIATIONS 
AAPRZ: Prior Approval Approved 
ALDIS: All Discharged 
AR: Approval of reserved matters 
C3C: Conservation Area Consent for a period of 3 years 
CAC: Conservation Area Consent 
ECREF: PDE Refused - Commenced 
ENOBJ: No Objections 
ENPDEZ: PDE Decision – No objections 
EOBJ: PDE Decision - Objection 
G3L: Grant Listed Building Consent for a period of 3 Years 
G3Y: Grant Consent for a period of 3 Years 
GA: Grant Approval 
GATCMZ: Grant approval for telecommunications mast 
GFY: Grant Consent for a period of Five Years 
GLB: Grant Listed Building Consent 
GLBGOS: Grant Listed Building Consent subject to Government Office of South 

West clearance 
GOP: Grant Outline Permission 
GOSG: Government Office of South West Granted 
GP: Grant Permission 
GSC: Grant Subject to Conditions 
GTY: Grant Consent for a period of Two Years 
GYO: Grant Consent for a period of One Year 
LAW: Certificate of Law permitted 
NOB: No objections 
NOS96 No objection to a Section 96 application 
NPW: Not proceeded with 
OBJ: Objections to County Council 
OBS: Observations to County Council 
PADIS Part Discharged 
PER: Permission for demolition 
RAD: Refuse advert consent 
REF: Refuse 
REFLBC: Refuse Listed Building Consent 
REFREA: Refuse 
REFUSE: Refuse 
RET: Returned 
ROS96: Raise objections to a Section 96 application 
RPA: Refuse Prior Approval 
SCO: EIA Screening Opinion 
SPLIT: Split decision 
TCNOB: Tree Conservation Area – No objection 
TELPRI: Telecommunications Prior Approval 
TPDECS: TPO decision notice 
TPREF: TPO refuse 
WDN: Withdrawn 

 

Page 178


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Manor Gardens, Barnwood Road Gloucester - 19/00672/FUL
	Manor Gardens Site Plan
	Sheets
	2001 - Site Plan



	6 Waterwells Sports Centre - 19/00402/FUL
	Waterwells Layout
	Waterwells Elevs
	Sheets and Views
	197017C Pole Configs-Layout1
	197017C Pole Configs-Layout1 (2)
	197017C Pole Configs-Layout1 (3)
	197017C Pole Configs-Layout1 (4)



	7 Land at Spinnaker Road - 19/01096/FUL
	Site Location Plan
	Proposed Site Layout Plan

	8 Kings Quarter & Kings Square Gloucester - 18/01454/FUL & 19/01212/LBC
	Ground Floor Masterplan
	Site Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	King's Quarter Boundary



	9 Delegated Decisions

